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Details of Directors and board committees composition, please refer to pages 26

to 27 of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Revenue was approximately HK$185.5 million for the year ended
31 March 2025, representing a decrease of approximately 18.2% as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2024.

Gross profit was approximately HK$1.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2025, representing a decrease of approximately HK$1.1 million
or 36.9% as compared with the year ended 31 March 2024.

Gross profit margin decreased to approximately 1.0% for the year ended
31 March 2025 from approximately 1.3% for the year ended 31 March
2024.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$8.3
million for the year ended 31 March 2025, representing a decrease in
loss of approximately HK$9.4 million or 53.2% compared to the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$17.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Basic loss per share amounted to approximately HK$0.04 for the
year ended 31 March 2025, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$0.06 or 60%), compared to the basic loss per share of approximately
HKS$0.10 for the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2025.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Domaine
Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”), we present to you the Group’s annual results for the year ended
31 March 2025 (the “Reporting Period”). During the Reporting Period, the
Group recorded approximately HK$185.5 million in revenue, representing a
decrease of approximately 18.2% as compared to the financial year ended 31
March 2024. Gross profit was approximately HK$1.9 million with gross profit
margin at approximately 1.0%. Loss attributable to owners of the Company was
reported at approximately HK$8.3 million. The Board does not recommend
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: nil).

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2024, The growing reserves of gold in central banks, combined with
ongoing geopolitical tensions, have pushed gold prices to unprecedented levels.
Furthermore, factors such as macroeconomic uncertainties, a dip in consumer
sentiment, and a weakened Renminbi have had a notable impact on the Group’s
sales performance during the year under review. In response to changes in
customer consumption behavior, our group focused more on the gold jewellery
business in the current year, and reallocated business resources to fine artistic
jewellery, gold products and materials, and online sales of gold jewellery and

accessories in the Chinese Mainland market, albeit with lower profit margins.

In addition to online sales, we also focus on online brand promotion and digital
marketing. We promote our brand and products through online platforms
and social media to increase our visibility and influence. We believe that these
efforts will help attract more consumers to our brand and products, thereby

increasing our sales and profits.

We have identified fine artistic jewellery as a key business focus and are
committed to expanding in this market. Through the Group’s network, we
have established good relationships with international and well-known auction
houses and jewellery retailers in Hong Kong. We believe that the Group's
focus on fine artistic jewellery design and creativity is the key to our success.
Our team has extensive experience and skills and is dedicated to providing
customers with the highest quality products and services. By expanding our
fine artistic jewellery business, we will be able to better meet the needs of
high-end consumers and better grasp market trends. We are eager to use high-
quality gemstones, innovative designs, and exquisite craftsmanship to create
fine artistic jewellery products that promote our Group’s brand. The Group will
continue to invest in creativity and marketing resources, meticulously building
our fine artistic jewellery brand. We will leverage online promotion and ensure

excellent sales and services.
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PROSPECTS

I would like to express my gratitude to all of you for your support and trust
in our Group. We have been committed to improving product quality and
customer satisfaction, as well as expanding our market share.

At the beginning of 2025, central bank gold reserves surged, coupled with
ongoing global geopolitical tensions, driving gold prices to repeatedly hit new
highs throughout the year. In the face of macroeconomic uncertainties and
cautious consumer sentiment, we must remain vigilant and promptly adjust our

strategies and plans to respond to market changes.

The increasing proportion of gold jewellery in our sales mix inevitably puts
downward pressure on gross profit margin. To maintain a healthy margin, we
will spare no efforts to create products that will command higher margins. At
the same time, the group is actively expanding its business scope, especially in
the gold business. We are going to purchase the “Trading Membership” and the
“Manufacturing Membership” of the Hong Kong Gold Exchange Limited, and
are actively considering setting up a gold refinery locally, aiming to form an
industrial chain from upstream, midstream, and downstream gold businesses.

In addition, one of the sales channels for the Group’s fine artistic jewellery
products is through auction houses. We have also identified well-known
jewellery retailers to cooperate with in sales, striving for better performance.
We will also proactively broaden our online sales channels to offer convenient
and rapid shopping and customization experiences that cater to the diverse

demands of our customers.

Given the increasing popularity of Augmented Reality (AR) and blockchain
applications for commercial purposes, the Group may identify appropriate
opportunities to develop service platforms using new technologies to increase
its service offerings and strengthen its profitability. These services include but
are not limited to providing a one-stop virtual platform for gold jewellery sales.

The funding for this plan will mainly come from the Company’s reserves.

We will also focus on human resources management and development, and
actively invite experienced professionals from the jewellery industry and
blockchain talent to join our operational team. Our goal is to analyze trends
amidst fluctuations in gold prices and further transform them into potential
profits for the group, thereby enhancing the company’s overall competitiveness.
We will continue to optimize our corporate strategy, cultivate a strong

corporate culture, and create long-term value for our stakeholders.

Art achieves jewellery, and jewellery commemorates legends.
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APPRECIATION

We would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to
our customers, suppliers, business partners, and all stakeholders for their
unwavering support and trust. At the same time, we also sincerely thank
the management team and all colleagues for their collective efforts and

contributions.

Dr. So Shu Fai
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 26 June 2025
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As at 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this report, the Board consists
of seven Directors, comprising two executive Directors, two non-executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors (including one female
independent non-executive Director).

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. So Shu Fai (“Dr. So”), aged 74, who joined the Group in December 2021,
has been appointed as the chairman of the Board cum executive Director and
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”). Dr. So is the sole director and sole owner
of Perfect Gain Group Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Dr. So graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree from The University of
Hong Kong in 1973, and received a doctoral degree in Management Studies
from The International Management Centre as validated by Southern Cross
University, Australia in 2001. He is currently a Chartered Secretary and a
Chartered Governance Professional and a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United
Kingdom. Dr. So is also a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors.

Dr. So is currently the executive director of China Merchants Land Limited
(a company principally engaged in development, sale, lease, investment of
properties; assets management; and investment holding; and listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 978). He is also a director
and chairman of the executive committee of MACAUPORT — Sociedade de
Administragdo de Portos, S.A.

Mr. Tom Xie (“Mr. Xie”), aged 75, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 9 July 2021 and re-designated as an executive Director on 8 November
2021, he has been appointed as an authorised representative (the “Authorised
Representative”) under Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules with effect from 27
November 2021. On 1 December 2021, Mr. Xie has been appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Xie is the member of each of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Xie obtained a Master of Science degree and a Master’'s Graduation
Certificate in Gemology, both from China University of Geosciences (Beijing).
He has two decades’ experience in management and operation over of jewellery
business. He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. He was an independent non-executive director of U-Right
International Holdings Limited (now known as Fullsun International Holdings
Group Co., Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
with stock code 627) from August 2013 to December 2017, and a non-
executive director of China Investment Development Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 204) from September
2019 to September 2020. Mr. Xie had been an independent non-executive
director of Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 332) from January 2010 to March
2024. Mr. Xie is responsible for making major operation decisions for the
Group and overseeing the Group, and is responsible for various management.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Wai Dune (“Mr. Chan”), aged 72, has been appointed as the non-
executive Director with effect from 8 November 2021. Mr. Chan is currently
the chairman and chief executive officer of Crowe (HK) CPA Limited. He has
over 40 years of experience in the finance sector, particularly in the areas of
auditing and taxation. Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant and is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, and is a member of the Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand. He is also an associate chartered accountant of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Chan is
the executive committee treasurer of the Friends of Hong Kong Association
Development Foundation Limited, a member of the Hospital Governing
Committee of Tung Wah Hospital & Tung Wah Eastern Hospital & Tung
Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital. He was a member of the
Selection Committee of the 1st and current 6th governments of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, a member of the 9th to 13th CPPCC
Guangzhou Municipal Committee, and a standing committee member of the
11th CPPCC Guangzhou Municipal Committee. Since 26 May 2025, Mr. Chan
has been appointed as an independent non-executive director and a member of
each of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of WellCell Holdings Co., Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong with stock code 2477, which principally engages in
the provision of (i) wireless telecommunication network enhancement services,
(i) telecommunication network infrastructure maintenance and engineering
services, (iii) information and communication technology integration services;
(iv) telecommunication network-related software development and related
services; and (v) sales of software). Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-
executive director of Tianjin Tianbao Energy Co., Ltd. (a power operator in
Tianjin engaging in co-generation of steam, electricity, heating and cooling
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 1671). From November 2020 to
August 2023, he served as an independent non-executive director of Wai Chun
Group Holdings Limited (a company principally engaged in (i) general trading;
(i) network and system integration by the production of software and provision
of solutions and related services; and (iii) investment holdings; and listed on the
Stock Exchange with stock code 1013).

Mr. Chan was also a non-executive director of Pickquick Plc., a company
incorporated in the United Kingdom, prior to its dissolution. As confirmed
by Mr. Chan, as far as he is aware, the dissolution of Pickquick Plc. has not
resulted in any liability or obligation being imposed against him. Further
information of Pickquick Ple. is set out below:

Principal business
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On 2 February 2010, the HKICPA reprimanded Mr. Chan and CCIF CPA
Limited (“CCIF”) and imposed a penalty of HK$40,000 due to their breach of
a professional standard issued by the HKICPA in relation to the preparation of
the audited financial statements of a listed company in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 July 2004 (the “2010 Reprimand”). Mr. Chan was the then managing
director of CCIF.

The 2010 Reprimand was related to the internal procedures of handling the
audit of CCIF’s client where Mr. Chan had to assume some responsibilities as
being the managing director of CCIF and responsible for signing the relevant
auditor’s report.

Based on the above information and his past performance, the Board is of the
view that with his professional knowledge and experience, Mr. Chan is fit and
proper to act as a non-executive Director and to the best knowledge and belief
of Mr. Chan, no approval or consent from any regulatory body is required in
respect of his proposed appointment as the non-executive Director.

According to a press release of the HKICPA dated 25 March 2022, Mr. Chan
and CCIF, in which Mr. Chan was then the engagement director, among others
respondents, were reprimanded by a Disciplinary Committee (the “Disciplinary
Committee”) of the HKICPA for their failure or neglect to observe, maintain
or otherwise apply professional standards issued by the HKICPA in relation to
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of a listed company in
Hong Kong and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2005 (the “2022
Reprimand”). The deficiencies found in the audits included failures to carry out
audit planning and risk assessment on revenue, to properly evaluate evidence
of revenue obtained from certain parties who had apparently acted only as
agents for ultimate customers, and to assess the impact of the main customer’s
recurring non-response to audit confirmation requests sent to it. In addition,
the audit team failed to carry out sufficient procedures on the completeness
of population of revenue from which samples were drawn for testing, and to
adequately document certain audit procedures performed. Mr. Chan and CCIF
were ordered by the Disciplinary Committee to pay penalties of HK$200,000
and HK$300,000 respectively and to jointly pay with the other respondents for
the costs of HK$493,881 of the HKICPA and the Financial Reporting Council
(the “Order”). Further information on the 2022 Reprimand and the Order is
published on the website of HKICPA (www.hkicpa.org.hk).

Given (i) that the 2022 Reprimand was related to procedural deficiencies
in the internal procedures of handling the audit engagement of CCIF where
Mr. Chan had to share some of the responsibilities as being the engagement
director of CCIF and was responsible for signing the relevant auditors’ report,
(ii) the absence of allegation or finding of fraud or dishonesty against Mr.
Chan, CCIF and other respondents, (iii) that the incident related to the 2022
Reprimand occurred more than 15 years ago, (iv) that the incident related
to the 2022 Reprimand is unrelated to the Group and has or will have no
adverse effect on the business and operations of the Group, and (v) that only
monetary penalties were ordered and Mr. Chan’s practicing certificate as a
certified public accountant was not suspended by the HKICPA as a result of
the 2022 Reprimand, the Board has also considered the past contribution and
performance of Mr. Chan and is of the view that Mr. Chan is considered fit and
proper and remains suitable to continue to act as a non-executive Director of the
Company.
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Details are set out forth in the Company’s announcement dated 8 November
2021 and 6 May 2022.

Mr. Ning Rui (“Mr. Ning”), aged 49, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 11 May 2021 and has been appointed
as a member of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”),
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee with effect from
27 November 2021. Mr. Ning Rui has been re-designated from an independent
non-executive Director to a non-executive Director and has tendered his
resignation as a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from
1 September 2024. Mr. Ning graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University. He
worked in audit department of PricewaterhouseCoopers and financial advisory
department of Deloitte after which he worked as an investment director in a
private equity fund. Mr. Ning is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (CICPA).

M:r. Ning has over 15 years’ experience in investment and financial advisory.
He has extensive experience in deal structuring, valuation, due diligence and
post transaction management etc. relating to investment projects. He is good
at providing solution to turn around under-performing business and enhance
business value. He is familiar with business environment of Mainland China
and has unique insights in opportunities and challenges which a PRC business
could be facing. Mr. Ning is familiar with the capital market in Mainland
China and Hong Kong. He handled many cases involving restructuring, RTO,
re-listing of companies listed on Mainland China or Hong Kong market.
Selective cases include Nanjing Tanker Corporation (600087.SH), Southwest
Pharmaceutics (600666.SH) and Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings
Limited (00923.HK) (formerly known as Fook Woo Group). He has solid

experience in pharmaceutics, bio-tech, real estate as well as entertainment.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yau Pak Yue (“Mr. Yau”), aged 56, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 11 May 2021 and has been appointed
as the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee,
and a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Yau obtained his Bachelor
of Commerce (majoring in Accountancy) from the University of Wollongong
in Australia. He was the chief knowledge officer of Guangzhou Chengfa Capital
Company Limited, a state-owned fund management company, from May
2015 to January 2017. He was a partner at one of the big four international
accounting firms from 2005 to 2012. He has over 30 years of experience in
mergers and acquisitions transaction supports and financial due diligence.
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He is currently the director of Ewin Advisory Company Limited. Mr. Yau
is also a certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow certified
practising accountant in Australia. Mr. Yau currently serves as a non-executive
director of Daisho Microline Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 567), an independent non-executive
director of each of Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 309). Mr. Yau has been
appointed as independent non-executive director of Huscoke Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 704)
with effect from 16 June 2025. Mr. Yau was an independent non-executive
director of Jiayuan International Group Limited (In Liquidation), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (delisted from the Stock
Exchange in October 2024, stock code: 2768) from June 2024 to December
2024. He was appointed as the independent non-executive director of Jiayuan
International Group Limited (In Liquidation) by the liquidators to assist
the company in the implementation of its restructuring plan. There was no
wrongful act or mismanagement on his part leading to the liquidation of this
company. Mr. Yau was an independent non-executive director of each of KEE
Holdings Company Limited (currently renamed as China Apex Group Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2011)
from 2017 to 2019, Ascent International Holdings Limited (currently renamed
as China International Development Corporation Limited), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 264) from 2017 to 2018
and Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited (currently renamed as
Japan Kyosei Group Company Limited), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 627) from 2020 to 2023. Mr. Yau was an
executive director of Freeman FinTech Corporation Limited (currently renamed
as Arta TechFin Corporation Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 279) from 2020 to 2021. Mr. Yau was a non-
executive director of each of Peking University Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 618) from October 2021 to December 2021 and DreamEast Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 593) from July 2023 to January 2024.

Mr. Chung Wai Man (“Mr. Chung’), aged 66, is an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 11 May 2021 and a member of each of the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee of
the Company. He holds a Diploma in Business Management from the Hong
Kong Management Association and a Certificate of Bank of China Banking
Course. He has over 25 years of experience in finance and business consulting.

Mr. Chung started working in The Kwangtung Provincial Bank in 1976, and
his last position before leaving the bank in 1996 was a manager in charge of
the Tai Po sub-branch. After his departure from The Kwangtung Provincial
Bank, Mr. Chung established Raymond Chung Company in 1996, a finance
and business consulting firm for corporations in Hong Kong. In 2004, he set
up another consulting firm, Excel Linker Capital (Asia) Limited, to provide
similar consultancy services. Due to duplicity of the business nature, Raymond
Chung Company was closed in September 2006. In 2009, Mr. Chung applied
to deregister Excel Linker Capital (Asia) Limited as he decided to quit the

consultancy services market.
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Mr. Chung acted as an independent non-executive director of United Gene
High-Tech Group Limited (currently known as Innovative Pharmaceutical
Biotech Limited) (stock code: 399) from March 2007 to May 2009, Fu Ji Food
and Catering Services Holdings Limited (currently known as Fresh Express
Delivery Holdings Group Co., Limited) (stock code: 1175) from June 2011
to July 2013, China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 1380)
from February 2013 to July 2015, Fuguiniao Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1819, the
shares of which were delisted on 26 August 2019) from September 2017 to
June 2018, China Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (stock code: 873, the
shares of which were delisted on 21 February 2019) from November 2018 to
February 2019 and Centron Telecom International Holding Ltd. code: 1155,
the shares of which were delisted on 1 December 2020) from April 2018
to February 2020. He acted as an independent non-executive director from
January 2009 to August 2013 and a non-executive director from August 2013
to September 2014 of U-RIGHT International Holdings Limited (currently
known as Fullsun International Holdings Group Co., Limited) (stock code:
627). Mr. Chung was an independent non-executive director of China Huishan
Dairy Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6863, the shares of which were
delisted on 23 December 2019) from June 2017 until its delisting, and a non-
executive director of Freeman Fintech Corporation Limited (currently known
as Arta Techfin Corporation Limited) (stock code: 279) from December 2020
to October 2021. He was an executive director of Silk Road Logistics Holdings
Limited (stock code: 988, the shares of which were delisted on 23 April 2024)
from June 2021 until its delisting, and an independent non-executive director
of Peking University Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (stock code: 618)
from October 2021 to September 2024.

Ms. Lin Ying (“Ms. Lin"), aged 49, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company with
effect from 1 September 2024. Ms. Lin graduated from Guangdong Commerce
College (J& B 7% B %) with a bachelor degree in economics. She currently is a
director of Shangdong Rio Culture & Technology Co. Ltd. She worked as a staff
consultant/experienced staff consultant — tax, legal & business advisory with
Arthur Andersen (Shanghai) Business Consulting Co., Ltd., Guangzhou Office
from July 1998 to June 2000, as a senior accountant — assurance & business
advisory with Arthur Andersen ® Hua Qiang Certified Public Accountants,
Guangzhou Office from July 2000 to June 2002, as a senior accountant —
assurance & business advisory services with PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhongtian
Certified Public Accountants, Guangzhou Office from July 2002 to April
2003, as a finance manager with Global Market Group (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd.
(member of Global Market Group) from April 2003 to August 2004, as a senior
associate/manager — financial advisory services (Guangzhou) with Deloitte &
Touche Financial Advisory Services Limited from March 2005 to December
2009, as a financial controller with Guangzhou Rio Visual Technology Co.,
Ltd. from August 2011 to October 2013. Ms. Lin is a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (CICPA).
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Ms. Lin has over 20 years of experiences in audit, taxation and financial
advisory. She has extensive experience in deal structuring, valuation, due
diligence and post-transaction management etc. relating to investment projects.
She is good at providing solution to turn around under-performing business
and enhance business value. She is familiar with business environment of
Mainland China and has unique insights in opportunities and challenges which
a Mainland China business could be facing.

Ms. Lin obtained the legal advice in accordance with Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules on 31 July 2024 and has confirmed she understood her obligations as a
Director of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The executive directors of the Company are regarded as senior management of
the Group in view of the fact that they are directly responsible for overseeing
the implementation of the Company’s strategic objectives and the business

operations of the Group.

Ms. Lai Wai Sheung (“Ms. Lai”) was appointed as the Company Secretary,
the Authorised Representative and the process agent of the Company on 1 June
2022. Ms. Lai holds the position as administrative director and senior finance
manager of the Company. Ms. Lai joined the Company on 13 July 2009. She
has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “Institute”) since 25 June 2002 and became a fellow of the Institute on 2
March 2020. Ms. Lai has more than 20 years of experience in finance, audit and
accounting, and company secretarial matters. Ms. Lai meets the qualification

requirements of a company secretary under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules.

Mzr. Tao Hongbo (“Mr. Tao”), aged 53, graduated from School of Gemology,
China University of Geosciences (Beijing) majoring in Geological Engineering
(Gemmology field) in 2010, obtained a Master degree, has been the operating
director of the Company since June 2022, and is qualified to be first-class
inspector of precious metal, jewellery, gems and jade* (35 <3 J& 1 fiffi Bl HE
£ 488 £) and is a national registered jewellery inspector® (1 5% ¥ it B =
B A% ), an examiner of precious metals accessories, diamonds, gems and jades* (5
& B A B A E A AR B, a judge of the National Light Industry
Vocational Skills Contest (Gem Polishing Industry (Industry Category))* ("
A7 B T e (LM B B e R B AT M B), and
graduate gemologist of Gemological Institute of America (GIA G.G.). He has
also completed the “Rough Diamond Planning and Processing Course” of HRD
Antwerp Institute of Gemmology. He has over 20 years experiences in training
jewellery practitioners, internal control and internal audit for experimental
laboratory of jewellery that he could certify with ISO certificates. Mr. Tao is
responsible for quality control and assurance on the precious metals and the
operation service of jewellery and jewellery business.
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Mr. Zhang Chen (“Mr. Zhang"), aged 43, graduated from School of
Gemology, China University of Geosciences (Beijing) majoring in Geological
Engineering in 2017, obtained a Master degree, has been the deputy operating
director of the Company since August 2022, obtained the first class of the
Shanghai Gold Exchange Trader Practicing Certificate® (I # 4 58 %)
38 5y B FERE ) in 2009 and is qualified to be second-class inspector
of precious metal, jewellery, gems and jade* (H By M oA
M ). He is an experienced gold trader and has been managing the gold
trading department for nearly ten years. He has market sense in precious
metals and proven ability to match buyers and sellers. From 2006 to 2007,
Mr. Zhang participated in the Beijing Olympic Games Licensed Producer
Project, and after successfully obtaining the Olympic Games Licensed Producer
qualification, he followed up the production and supply management of the
Olympic Games licensed precious metals souvenirs. In 2013, he cooperated
with Beijing National Highway Gold* (6 3% B % #5 4 ) to develop precious
metals commemorative gifts for Shenzhou No. 9 and Tiangong No. 1, and was
responsible for the production of quality control and supply in production.

Mr. Fung Ho Yin (“Mr. Fung”), aged 40, has been appointed as a deputy
financial controller of the Group since January 2024. He has over 15 years
of working experience and is primarily responsible for financial reporting,
financial control matters and corporate secretarial matters of the Group. Prior to
the joining of the Company, he worked as the financial manager of a company
listed on the GEM Board.

Mr. Fung obtained a bachelor’s degree of commerce in accountancy and a
master’s degree of corporate governance from Macquarie University and The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2008 and September 2021
respectively. He is currently a member of CPA Australia, a Chartered Secretary
and a Chartered Governance Professional of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries).
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Being an integrated fine jewellery provider and an original design manufacturer
with a well-established operating history in Hong Kong, the Group is primarily
engaged in designing, manufacturing, processing and exporting fine jewelleries
to jewellery wholesalers, retailers and high-net-worth customers mainly in
Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland. With the management expertise, the Group
allocated more resources to participate in the fine artistic jewellery market and
captured the market of high-net-worth customers.

Moreover, the Group has been offering a wide range of fine jewellery products
in gold encompassing rings, earrings, pendants, necklaces, bracelets, bangles,
cufflinks, brooches and anklets. Recently, according to the changes in the
market, the management is committed to the development of the fine artistic
jewellery and service platform (asset light) business. At the same time, in
order to enrich the product range, the Group also provides gold products
and materials. The Group's customers are mainly wholesalers and retailers of

jewellery products, and high-net-worth customers.

In 2024, The growing reserves of gold in central banks, combined with
ongoing geopolitical tensions, have pushed gold prices to unprecedented levels.
Furthermore, factors such as macroeconomic uncertainties, a dip in consumer
sentiment, and a weakened Renminbi have had a notable impact on the Group's
sales performance during the year under review. In response to changes in
customer consumption behavior, our group focused more on the gold jewellery
business in the current year, and reallocated business resources to fine artistic
jewellery, gold products and materials, and online sales of gold jewellery and
accessories in the Chinese Mainland market, albeit with lower profit margins.

In addition to online sales, we also focus on online brand promotion and digital
marketing. We promote our brand and products through online platforms
and social media to increase our visibility and influence. We believe that these
efforts will help attract more consumers to our brand and products, thereby

increasing our sales and profits.

We have identified fine artistic jewellery as a key business focus and are
committed to expanding in this market. Through the Group’s network, we
have established good relationships with international and well-known auction
houses and jewellery retailers in Hong Kong. We believe that the Group's
focus on fine artistic jewellery design and creativity is the key to our success.
Our team has extensive experience and skills and is dedicated to providing
customers with the highest quality products and services. By expanding our
fine artistic jewellery business, we will be able to better meet the needs of
high-end consumers and better grasp market trends. We are eager to use high-
quality gemstones, innovative designs, and exquisite craftsmanship to create
fine artistic jewellery products that promote our Group’s brand. The Group will
continue to invest in creativity and marketing resources, meticulously building
our fine artistic jewellery brand. We will leverage online promotion and ensure

excellent sales and services.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

I would like to express my gratitude to all of you for your support and trust
in our Group. We have been committed to improving product quality and
customer satisfaction, as well as expanding our market share.

At the beginning of 2025, central bank gold reserves surged, coupled with
ongoing global geopolitical tensions, driving gold prices to repeatedly hit new
highs throughout the year. In the face of macroeconomic uncertainties and
cautious consumer sentiment, we must remain vigilant and promptly adjust our

strategies and plans to respond to market changes.

The increasing proportion of gold jewellery in our sales mix inevitably puts
downward pressure on gross profit margin. To maintain a healthy margin, we
will spare no efforts to create products that will command higher margins. At
the same time, the group is actively expanding its business scope, especially in
the gold business. We are going to purchase the “Trading Membership” and
the “Manufacturing Membership” of Hong Kong Gold Exchange Limited, and
are actively considering setting up a gold refinery locally, aiming to form an
industrial chain from upstream, midstream, and downstream gold businesses.

In addition, one of the sales channels for the Group’s fine artistic jewellery
products is through auction houses. We have also identified well-known
jewellery retailers to cooperate with in sales, striving for better performance.
We will also proactively broaden our online sales channels to offer convenient
and rapid shopping and customization experiences that cater to the diverse

demands of our customers.

Given the increasing popularity of Augmented Reality (AR) and blockchain
applications for commercial purposes, the Group may identify appropriate
opportunities to develop service platforms using new technologies to increase
its service offerings and strengthen its profitability. These services include but
are not limited to providing a one-stop virtual platform for gold jewellery sales.

The funding for this plan will mainly come from the Company’s reserves.

We will also focus on human resources management and development, and
actively invite experienced professionals from the jewellery industry and
blockchain talent to join our operational team. Our goal is to analyze trends
amidst fluctuations in gold prices and further transform them into potential
profits for the group, thereby enhancing the company’s overall competitiveness.
We will continue to optimize our corporate strategy, cultivate a strong

corporate culture, and create long-term value for our stakeholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

$4 5 Iul e

For the year ended 31 March
BAE3H31H LA

2025 2024

20254 2024 4F

Revenue (HK$'000) Wi (T 45 o0) 185,477 226,754
Gross profit (HK$ 000) EF (F#T) 1,905 3,020
Gross profit margin (%) E F K (%) 1.0 1.3
Loss attributable to owners of the Company (HK$ 000) AN EEEA N AL R (T 0) (8,297) (17,724)

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2025 was approximately
HK$185.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$41.3
million or 18.2% compared with the year ended 31 March 2024. The decrease
in the Group's revenue is mainly due to the Group's adjustment of market
strategy according to market trends. In the Hong Kong market, the Group has
significantly reduced the supply of precious metals and raw jewellery materials.
At the same time, it has increased the allocation of business resources for gold
jewellery products and materials in the market of Chinese Mainland. Therefore,
the revenue from the sales in Chinese Mainland increased by approximately
HK$50.5 million or 37.5% compared with the year ended 31 March 2024.
However, due to the market downturn, sales revenue from Hong Kong
significantly decreased by approximately HK$91.8 million or 99.8% compared
with the year ended 31 March 2024.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2025 was approximately
HK$1.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$1.1 million
or 36.9% compared with the year ended 31 March 2024. Gross profit margin
decreased to approximately 1.0% for the year ended 31 March 2025 from
approximately 1.3% for the year ended 31 March 2024, which was mainly due
to larger proportion of sales of gold jewellery products and material with lower

margin to the Chinese Mainland market.

Selling expenses

The Group’s selling expenses decreased by approximately HK$1.2 million or
43.1% to approximately HK$1.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2025
from approximately HK$2.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2024. The
decrease was primarily attributable to the stabilization of business in the
Chinese Mainland market, which reduced the consultancy and entertainment
fees required for market promotion.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$1.6
million or 8.9%, to approximately HK$16.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2025 from approximately HK$18.2 million for the year ended 31 March
2024. The decrease was primarily due to the optimising of resource allocation,
the decline in consultancy fee, insurance expenses and depreciation expenses
by approximately HK$1.6 million attributable to the strengthening of cost

controls in business operation.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2025 was approximately
HK$58,000, which increase by approximately HK$1,000 or 1.8% as compared
to finance costs of approximately HK$57,000 for the year ended 31 March
2024 due to repayment of lease liabilities.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$8.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2025, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$9.4 million or 53.2% compared to a loss
of approximately HK$17.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2024. The
decrease in loss attributable to owners of the Company was mainly due to the
strengthening of cost controls and the increase in fair value gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) for the year ended 31 March
2025.

Property, plant and equipment

The net carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 was approximately HK$0.2
million, representing a decrease of approximately HK$0.7 million from
that as at 31 March 2024. This was mainly due to depreciation amounted to
approximately HK$0.7 million.

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL which is a life insurance policy amounted to
approximately HK$19.5 million. During the year ended 31 March 2025, the
gain on changes in fair value on financial assets at FVPL of approximately
HK$6.6 million has been recognised in profit or loss. The executive directors
did not alter the Group’s investment strategy due to short-term market

volatilities.

Trade receivables

There was a decrease in trade receivables as at 31 March 2025 of approximately
HK$0.2 million as compared with 31 March 2024, which was mainly due to
effective collection measures.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had current assets of approximately HK$60.3
million (2024: approximately HK$62.9 million) which comprised cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$36.3 million (2024: approximately
HK$36.4 million). As at 31 March 2025, the Group had non-current liabilities
of approximately HK$1.0 million (2024: approximately HK$0.4 million),
and the current liabilities amounted to approximately HK$7.7 million (2024:
approximately HK$8.4 million), consisting mainly of payables arising in the
normal course of operation. Accordingly, the current ratio, being the ratio of
current assets to current liabilities, was approximately 7.8 as at 31 March 2025 (2024:
approximately 7.5).

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2025 was not applicable as cash
and bank balances exceeded interest-bearing borrowings.
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Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach towards its
treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout
the year under review. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
buying credit insurance on certain customers’ receivables, performing ongoing
credit assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To
manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position
to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other

commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

BUSINESS STRATEGIES

With continued political, economic and market uncertainties, the production
and sale of gold jewellery products reported a decrease in gross profit. In light
of the operations and financial position of the Group, the Group intends to
explore other possible business opportunities both locally and abroad while
staying on with its gold jewellery business. The Group aims to develop as a fine
artistic jewellery provider in Hong Kong by improving the brand awareness and
quality of products, strengthening the sales and marketing force and solidifying
its presence in market.

The Group continues to explore opportunities where it believes would benefit
the integrated services it is offering, i.e. providing a wider range of styles and
designs tailored for individual markets and adjusting its production resources
and capacity to better cater for delivery period of varied products, consumer
preferences and festive shopping practices. The Group will also strengthen
its established corporate brand name and proven design capabilities, increase
resources in procuring precious gems in order to attract high-net-worth
customer group. The Group will spend its sales and marketing resources on
promoting its brand and products, participating in selected trade exhibitions,
utilising online marketing, and allocate sufficient design and product
development resources to offer a wider range of products that are favourable to

consumers in different markets.

The Group believes its abilities to create new product designs and develop
innovative production techniques in response to market trends and consumer
preferences contribute to the success of its products. The Group has been
offering customers with a diverse range of products with appealing designs,
made with assorted kinds of precious metals, diamonds and gem stones with
various premium specifications in a bid to cater for a broad bandwidth of
market demand, including collectible grade product. Backed by the “One Belt,
One Road” initiative and increasing number of wealthy in China, the Group
is devoted to expanding into the new market that will provide the Group with
strong momentum for future growth.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign exchange exposure

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Group had monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in- foreign currencies, i.e. currency other than
the functional currency of the respective group entities, which is mainly cash
and bank balances. Consequently the Group had foreign exchange risk exposure
from translation of amount denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 March
2025. Since HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in HK$/US$ exchange rate. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk primarily with respect to RMB. If HK$ as at 31 March 2025
had strengthened/weakened by 5% against RMB with all other variables held
constant, the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company would
have been decreased/increased less than HK$1,000 for the year ended 31 March
2025 (2024: loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company would have
decreased/increased by less than HK$1,000).

The Group does not engage in any derivatives activities and does not commit to
any financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

Capital structure

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2025. As at 31 March 2025, the capital of the Company

comprises ordinary shares and capital reserves.
Capital commitments
As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Group had no capital

commitments.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during the year ended
31 March 2025.

Information on employees

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had 9 employees (2024: 10). Total staff costs
(including the Directors’ emoluments) were approximately HK$8.8 million, as
compared with approximately HK$10.2 million for the year ended 31 March
2024. Remuneration is determined with reference to market conditions and
individual employees’ performance, qualification and experience.
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Apart from the provident fund scheme (operation in accordance with the
provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for Hong
Kong employees) or social insurance fund (including retirement pension
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, injury insurance
and maternity insurance for the PRC employees), discretionary bonuses and
employee share options and share awards may be also awarded to employees
according to the Group’s performance as well as assessment of individual
performance. For details of the share schemes of the Company, please refer to
page 48 to page 53 and page 159 to page 161 of this report.

The Directors believe that the salaries and benefits of the Group's employees
are kept at a competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary and bonus
system, which is reviewed annually.

ADOPTION OF THE 2023 SHARE SCHEME AND
TERMINATION OF THE 2015 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme on 10 February 2015 (the “2015
Share Option Scheme”) under which certain selected classes of participants (including,
among others, Directors and full-time employees) may be granted options to
subscribe for the shares. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the scheme
will remain in force for 10 years from that date. No share option had ever been
granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

In order to provide for the potential issuance of both share options and share
awards as the types of equity incentives that the Company can utilise as part of
its incentive strategy and also to ensure that the new scheme adopted shall be
in compliance with the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules introduced
by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, which came into effect on 1
January 2023, the Board proposed the adoption of a new share incentive scheme (the
“2023 Share Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the Shareholders
of the Company on 14 September 2023. Immediately upon the 2023 Share
Scheme taking effect, the 2015 Share Option Scheme terminated and the
Company shall not grant any options under the 2015 Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, Tricor Services Limited has been appointed to
administer and implement the 2023 Share Scheme. The Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange has approved the listing of and granted permission to deal
in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) to be allotted and issued pursuant
to the awards.

On 28 March 2024, the Board resolved to grant 100,000 share awards to Mr.
Xie Tom, representing 0.0579% of the total number of Shares as at the date
of grant. Moreover, on 28 March 2024, the Board resolved to grant 1,000,000
share options to Mr. Xie Tom, 500,000 share options to Mr. Chan Wai Dune
and 1,050,000 share options to 5 other individual employee participants of the
2023 Share Scheme, representing respectively 0.579%, 0.290% and 0.608% of
the total number of Shares as at the date of grant.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For details of the adoption of the 2023 Share Scheme and the termination of
the 2015 Share Option Scheme, please refer to the circular of the Company
dated 9 August 2023 and announcement of the Company dated 14 September
2023. For details of the grant of share awards and share options pursuant to
the 2023 Share Scheme by the Company, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 28 March 2024 and 24 July 2024 and page 48 to 53 of the
Reports of the Directors of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 March 2025, the Group held financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss in the amounts of approximately HK$19,481,000 as non-current
assets, representing approximately 23.6% of its total assets.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of a life insurance
policy in the amounts of approximately HK$19,481,000, representing
approximately 23.6% of its total assets.

On 2 May 2025, the Board approved and submitted the withdrawal of the life
insurance policy (the “Withdrawal”). For details of the Withdrawal, please refer
to the paragraph “Event after the Reporting Period” on page 25 of this report.

DISPOSAL OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the period from 4 November 2024 to 22 November 2024, by a series
of transactions, the Company disposed of an aggregate of 69,202,000 shares of
Lisi Group (Holdings) Limited, which is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited with Stock Code 526 (“Lisi Group”) (representing approximately
0.86% of the total shares of Lisi Group in issue at the time of the Disposal,
“Disposed Shares”) on the open market at a total consideration of approximately
HK$11,958,088 (excluding stamp duty and related expenses), which was
receivable in cash on settlement (the “Disposal”). The average selling price (excluding
stamp duty and related expenses) for the Disposal of each shares of Lisi Group
was approximately HK$0.1727.

After the Disposal, the Company does not hold any shares of Lisi Group.

Information of the Counterparties

As the Disposal was conducted on the open market, the identities of the
purchaser(s) of the Disposed Shares cannot be ascertained. To the best
knowledge, information and belief of the Directors and having made all
reasonable enquiries, none of the connected persons of the Company has
purchased the Disposed Shares.
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Reasons for and Benefits of the Disposal

As the Disposal was made on the open market at prevailing market price, the
Directors are of the view that the terms of the Disposal are fair and reasonable.
In view of the recent volatile market conditions and the market price of the
shares of Lisi Group, the Directors believe that it is beneficial to adopt a
cautious investment strategy to liquidate the Group’s investment in the shares
of Lisi Group. The Group intends to use the proceeds of the Disposal for general
working capital or other appropriate investment opportunities. Taking into
account the factors above, the Directors consider that the Disposal is in the

interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Financial Effect of the Disposal

As a result of the Disposal, the Group recognised an audited gain of
approximately HK$6,600,000 (excluding stamp duty and related expenses),
which is calculated by the difference between the fair values on the disposal date
and 31 March 2024.

For details of the Disposal, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 25 November 2024.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no definite future plan for material investments or acquisition of
material capital assets as at 31 March 2025.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Significant Investments Held” in
this report, the Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries or affiliated companies during the year ended 31 March 2025.

On 2 May 2025, the Board approved and submitted the Withdrawal of the life
insurance policy. For details of the Withdrawal, please refer to the paragraph “Event
after the Reporting Period” on page 25 of this report.

CHARGES OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2025, the Group had no short-term secured borrowings (2024:
Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2025 (2024:
Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Withdrawal of Life Insurance Policy

On 2 May 2025 (after trading hours), the Board approved and submitted the
relevant form to HSBC Life (International) Limited (“HSBC Life”) for the
withdrawal by KTL Jewellery Trading Limited (“KTL"), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as the policy holder and beneficiary of a life
insurance policy entered into by KTL with HSBC Life on 26 June 2015 (the “Life
Insurance Policy”), at the surrender value (the “Withdrawal”).

Information about the Life Insurance Policy

The Life Insurance Policy is to insure for Mr. Kei York Pang Victor, who was a
controlling shareholder, an executive Director and chief executive officer of the
Company. The current insured person is Mr. Tao Hongbo, the chief operation
officer of the Company who is responsible for daily operation and strategy of the
Company.

Financial Effects of the Withdrawal

Based on the surrender value of the Life Insurance Policy as at 2 May 2025
amounting to an aggregate of approximately US$2,480,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$19,344,000) and the single premium paid of the Life
Insurance Policy, the value of Life Insurance Policy was already breakeven. As
the Withdrawal will take effect on a date to be mutually agreed between HSBC
Life and KTL, after all surrender requirements are received in good order by
the Company to HSBC Life, the surrender value may vary upon the effective
date of the Withdrawal. The Company will ensure that the highest applicable
percentage ratio calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in
respect of the Withdrawal at the effective date will be less than 25% and will
comply with the relevant Listing Rules.

It is expected that the net proceeds from the Withdrawal will be used to
increase working capital and develop gold jewellery products.

Reasons for and Benefits of the Withdrawal

Taking into account that the Withdrawal is expected to be already breakeven,
after due and careful consideration by the Board, it is considered that the
Withdrawal will increase working capital and provide fund available for use to
develop gold jewellery products. In view of the above, the Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) are of the view that the terms of the
Withdrawal are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

For details of the Withdrawal, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 2 May 2025.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other significant event of the Group after the
Reporting Period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate governance
principles and practices has always been one of the top priorities of the
Company. The Board believes that good corporate governance is one of the
areas that lead to the success of the Company and in balancing the interests of
shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board is devoted to ongoing
enhancements of the efficiency and effectiveness of such principles and practices.

The Board has adopted the Principles and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix Cl1 to the
Listing Rules as the basis of the Company’s corporate governance practices
enabling its shareholders to evaluate. During the year ended 31 March 2025,
the Company had complied with the Code Provisions.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix C3 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transaction by
Directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiries to all the Directors,
the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2025.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND CHANGES

As at 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this report, the Board comprises
seven Directors, of which two are executive Directors, two are non-executive
Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors. In addition, a list
containing the names of the Directors and their roles and functions is available
on the websites of the Group and the Stock Exchange. The composition of the

Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. So Shu Fai (Chairman)

Mr. Tom Xie (Chief Executive Officer)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Dune

Mr. Ning Rui (Re-designated on 1 September 2024)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Pak Yue

Mr. Chung Wai Man

Mr. Ning Rui (Resigned on 1 September 2024)
Ms. Lin Ying (Appointed on 1 September 2024)
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DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULES 13.51(2) AND 13.51B OF THE
LISTING RULES

During the year ended 31 March 2025 there were certain changes of the
Directors and board committees composition:

With effect from 1 September 2024:

(1) Mr. Ning Rui has been redesignated from the position of independent
non-executive Director to the position of non-executive Director;

(i)  Ms. Lin Ying has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director;

(iii)  Mr. Ning Rui has resigned from the position of the member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company; and

(iv)  Ms. Lin Ying has been appointed as a member of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the

Company.

Details of the above changes of Directors and their biographies, and board
committees composition, respectively have been disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 30 August 2024.

RESIGNATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Wong Tang Thomas (“Mr. Wong”) has tendered his resignation as the chief
financial officer of the Company with effect from 30 June 2024 as he would like
to devote more time on his personal affairs. Mr. Wong has confirmed that he
has no disagreement with the Board and there is no other matter relating to his
resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong or the shareholders of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing the Company’s
affairs, including the responsibilities for the adoption of long-term strategies
and appointing and supervising senior management to ensure that the operation
of the Group is conducted in accordance with the objective of the Group.
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As no corporate governance committee has been established, the Board is also
responsible for determining the Company’s corporate governance policies and
has considered the following corporate governance matters during the year
ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this report, which include:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate

governance;

(i1) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(iii)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  to review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to employees and Directors;

(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

(vi)  to review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and its subsidiaries as set out in code provision D.2.1
of the Code Provisions.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain responsibilities are
delegated to various Board committees which have been established by the
Board to deal with different aspects of the Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise
specified in their respective written terms of reference as approved by the Board,
these Board committees are governed by the Company’s articles of association
as well as the Board’s policies and practices (in so far as the same are not in
conflict with the provisions contained in the articles of association). With
the composition of members of the nomination committee, the remuneration
committee and the audit committee, the independent non-executive Directors
will be able to effectively devote their time to perform the duties required by
the respective Board committees.

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing its strategies
and the day-to-day operation to the management of the Company under the
leadership of the executive Directors. Clear guidance has been made as to the
matters that should be reserved to the Board for its decision which include
matters on, inter alia, capital, finance and financial reporting, internal controls,
communication with shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority

and corporate governance.

The deputy Financial Officer and/or Company Secretary or secretary of the
board committee attended all regular Board Meetings and Board Committee
Meetings to advise on accounting and financial, corporate governance and
statutory compliance matters. Senior management has formal or informal

contact with the Board Members as and when necessary.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by the Directors and
Board Committee Members upon reasonable request. The Company responded
as promptly as possible to any queries raised by the Directors.
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The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of financial position
and financial performance of the Group. The financial statements set out on
pages 101 to 175 were prepared on the basis set out in note 2 to the financial
statements. Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with statutory and/or regulatory requirements. The declaration of
reporting responsibility issued by the external auditors of the Company on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 95
to 100.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board and at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional

qualifications , or accounting or related financial management expertise.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of the independent non-executive
Directors has submitted a written statement to the Stock Exchange confirming
their independence and has undertaken to inform the Stock Exchange as soon as
practicable if there is any subsequent change of circumstances which may affect
their independence. The Company has also received a written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence. The Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent in accordance with the independence requirements set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors take an active role in Board meetings,
contribute to the development of strategies and policies and make sound
judgment in various aspects. They will take lead when potential conflicts of
interest arise. They are also members of various Board committees and devote
sufficient amount of time and attention to the affairs of the Company.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operational and financial performance of the Company. Other Board
meetings will be held when necessary. Such Board meetings involve the
active participation, either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. Notices of not less than fourteen
days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors with
an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for regular board

meetings.

Apart from formal meetings, matters requiring Board approval were arranged

by means of circulation of written resolutions.
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The attendance of individual Directors at Board Meetings (BM), Audit
Committee Meetings (ACM), Nomination Committee Meetings (NCM),
Remuneration Committee Meetings (RCM) and Annual General Meeting (AGM)
during the financial year is set out below:

A BUEEE RN > WA EFRER GG T
ZAGGH® RAZEGGH FMEEGER
B FBE AU A R B 9 R A

Executive Directors

AT S
SO Shu Fai #f 8} # 66 - 3/3 212 11
Tom XIE #f # # 6/6 - 33 212 11
Non-executive Director
FEPAT S
CHAN Wai Dune i 4 i 66 - - - /1
NING Rui % % (Note i) (Fff 5E1) 66 12 2/3 11 11
Independent Non-executive Directors
oI PAT B
YAU Pak Yue K 1f1 §i 6/6 212 33 212 11
CHUNG Wai Man % # & 6/6 2/2 3/3 2/2 11
Lin Ying M8 (Note ii) (Fff i) 6/6 12 /3 11 11
Notes i 53
i Resigned as independent non-executive Director on 1 September 2024, i 202449 A1 H BEAT 8 7 IF 1T > 0 ik 2024

redesignated as non-executive Director on 1 September 2024.

ii Appointed as independent non-executive Director on 1 September 2024.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors attended training sessions which place emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director.

All Directors have provided record of training attendance and the Company
will continue to arrange and/or fund the training in accordance with the Code
Provisions.
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According to the records of training maintained by the Company Secretary,
during the financial year under review, all the current Directors pursued

continuous professional development and relevant details are set out below:

AR 2% A Bk 3 BT DR A ) 15 9 RT 8% o A (] R B4
FEN BT A BULE S A 2 B SRR 2l
AR B RS T

Executive Directors
AT S

SO Shu Fai Jf 1] #f
Tom XIE #ff #t +f

Non-executive Director

BT S

CHAN Wai Dune B 4 i
NING Rui % % (Note i) (Fff 5E1)

Independent Non-executive Directors
WA ES

YAU Pak Yue I ff1 %

CHUNG Wai Man # ff

Lin Ying A8 (Note ii) (Ff & i)

v v
v v
v v
v v
v v
v v
v v

Notes

i Resigned as independent non-executive Director on 1 September 2024,

redesignated as non-executive Director on 1 September 2024.

ii Appointed as independent non-executive Director on 1 September 2024.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the Code Provisions, the Company fully
supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of power and authority during
the year ended 31 March 2025. As at 31 March 2025 and up to the date of this
annual report, the positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were
held by Dr. So Shu Fai and Mr. Tom Xie, respectively.

i 202449 A 1 B B AL 8 57 JE AT 8 3> 6 % 2024
HoHIHWMATAEIITES -

i 202449 A1 H M RAT R B FE AT E S -

AR F 20254F 3 H 31 H AR BE > MR 95 <7 RIS <8
Al Cscoate s AXNFR AW LIHFERFG TN X
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T o jA20254E3 H31IH R EARER AL > R
FAT B AR 2 Wk A7 43 7 b 8k A8 T 1 T Al it A 2
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of directors
are laid down in the Company's Article of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition, developing
and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
directors, monitoring the appointment and succession planning of directors and

assessing the independence of independent non- executive Directors.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the date of
appointment, subject to re-election and each of the non-executive Director and
independent non- executive Directors has signed a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of two years commencing from the date of

appointment, subject to re-election.

At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
additional Director to the existing Board subject to any maximum number of
Directors, if any, as may be determined by the members in general meeting.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first annual general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being
will retire from office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third shall
be the number of retiring Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All of these three committees of the
Board are established with defined written terms of reference. The majority of
the members of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
all members of the Audit Committee are independent non-executive Directors.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors on 10 February 2015 with written terms of reference in
compliance with paragraph B.3.1 of Appendix Cl of the Listing Rules. Its
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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The primary duties of the nomination committee include, but not limited to
(1) to review the structure, size and composition of the Board on regular at least
annually; (ii) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; (iii)
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or reappointment of Directors.

As at the date of this annual report, the nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Pak Yue, Mr. Chung Wai
Man, and Ms. Lin Ying and two executive Directors, namely Dr. So Shu Fai and
Mr. Tom Xie. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Dr. So Shu Fai.

The Nomination Committee will conduct meeting at least once a year.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the nomination
committee following the nomination policy and carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, education background,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Board Diversity Policy for achieving diversity of the
Board, and also the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations required for the positions. All candidates must be able to meet
the standards as set forth in Rule 3.08 and Rule 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A
candidate who is to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director
should also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY

Under the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the Board, the Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board towards
enhancement of overall performance. With a vision to achieving a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company regards increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in achieving a diversity of perspectives and
supporting the attainment of its strategic goals. Appointments of directors
are made on merits while having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board.

At present, majority of the directors on the Board are non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors. They represent diverse career
experience in various enterprises. They bring with them diverse professional
backgrounds. The board composition reflects various cultural and educational
backgrounds, professional development, length of service, knowledge of the
Company and a broad range of individual attributes, interests and values.
The Board considers the current line-up has provided the Company with a
good balance and diversity of skills and experience for the requirements of its
business. The Board will continue to review its composition from time to time
taking into consideration board diversity for the requirements and benefits of
the Company’s business.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 10 February 2015 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.25 and Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules. A revised set
of terms of reference of the remuneration committee has been adopted by the
Company since 1 January 2023 to get in line with the amendments to chapter
17 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the remuneration
committee was adopted in compliance with the Code Provisions. Its terms of

reference are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include, but are not limited to: (i)
making recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the Group, (ii)
ensuring none of the Directors determine their own remuneration and (iii) to
review and/or approve matters relating to the share schemes. The emoluments
of executive Directors are determined based on the skills, knowledge,
individual performance as well as contributions, the scope of responsibility and
accountability of such Directors, taking into consideration of the Company’s
performance and prevailing market conditions. In order to attract, retain,
and motivate executives and key employees serving the Group, the Company
adopted a share option scheme on 10 February 2015 (the “2015 Share Option
Scheme”). In 2023, the Board proposed the adoption of a new share incentive
scheme (the “2023 Share Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the
Shareholders on 14 September 2023. Immediately upon the 2023 Share Scheme
taking effect, the 2015 Share Option Scheme terminated and the Company
shall not grant any options under the 2015 Share Option Scheme.

The remuneration committee has reviewed the remuneration of the grantees
of the 2023 Share Scheme compared to market peer and the value of grant
to the said grantees and made recommendation to the Board regarding the
grant of share options and share awards under the 2023 Share Scheme on 28
March 2024. For details of the grants, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 28 March 2024 and 24 July 2024. In relation to the share
awards granted to Mr. Tom Xie, the executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company, all the relevant share awards shall vest on the third
month from the date of grant (the “said vesting period”). The remuneration
committee (with Mr. Tom Xie abstaining from voting) has resolved that,
considering (i) the experience, work experience and contribution to the
Company of Mr. Tom Xie, and (ii) the benefits of the said vesting period
which include enabling the Company to offer competitive remuneration and
reward packages to Mr. Tom Xie, the said vesting period would be justified
and reasonable for the interests of the Company and its shareholders, as well
as consistent with the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the said vesting period is
considered appropriate and aligns with the purpose of the 2023 Share Scheme,
which is to, among others, provide the Company with a flexible means of,
attracting, remunerating, incentivising, retaining, rewarding, compensating
and/or providing benefits to relevant participants of the 2023 Share Scheme.
Due to administrative procedures in connection with the vesting of the share
awards to Mr. Xie, the actual vesting date of the share awards was 30 September
2024.
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The remuneration policy of non-executive Director and independent
non- executive Directors is to ensure that the non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors are adequately compensated for their
efforts and time dedicated to the Company’s affairs including their participation
in respective Board committees. The emoluments of non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors are determined with reference to
their skills, experience, knowledge, duties and market trends. As at the date of
this annual report, the remuneration committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Yau Pak Yue, Mr. Chung Wai Man, Ms.
Lin Ying, and two executive Directors, namely Dr. So Shu Fai and Mr. Tom
Xie. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Yau Pak Yue. Details of

remuneration of Directors are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

At the 2024 AGM, a resolution was passed to authorise the Board to fix the
Directors’ remuneration. A resolution will be proposed at the forth coming
Annual General Meeting to obtain shareholders’ authorisation for the Board to
fix Directors’ remuneration.

Up to 31 March 2025, save as disclosed in this report, there was no other
significant change in the policy and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee will meet
at least once a year for reviewing the remuneration policy and structure
and making recommendations to the Board on determining the annual
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management and other
related matters.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee pursuant to a resolution of
the Director passed on 10 February 2015 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules. A revised set
of terms of reference of the Audit Committee (the “Revised Audit Committee
Terms of Reference”) has been adopted by the Company since December
2015 to get in line with the amendments to the Code Provisions and the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Revised
Audit Committee Terms of Reference are available on the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee include but are not limited to (i)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor, (ii) reviewing the financial statements and
material advice in respect of financial reporting and (iii) overseeing the

Company’s financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems.
In relation to (iii), the Audit Committee is:

—  to review the Company’s financial controls, and to review the Company’s

risk management and internal control systems;
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—  to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management and to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have effective systems. The discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial functions;

—  to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management’s response to these findings;

—_ where an internal audit function exists, to review the internal audit
programme, ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to

review and monitor its effectiveness;
—  to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

—  to review the external auditor’s management letter, any material queries
raised by the auditor to management about accounting records, financial

accounts or systems of control and management’s response;

—  to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues

raised in the external auditor’s management letter;
—  to report to the Board on the matters set out in the Code Provisions;

—  to consider other matters, as required by the Board, to be performed by
the Audit Committee.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Pak Yue, Mr. Chung
Wai Man and Ms. Lin Ying. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr.
Yau Pak Yue, who holds the appropriate professional qualifications as required
under Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee has considered and
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and has
discussed matters in relation to internal control and financial reporting with
the management. The Audit Committee considers that the financial results for
the year ended 31 March 2025 are in compliance with the relevant accounting
standards, rules and regulations and appropriate disclosures have been duly

made.
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The Audit Committee has held a meeting with the external auditors on 26 June
2025 to (i) review the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024; (ii)
discuss the internal control and financial reporting matters of the Group; and (iii)
review the financial statements and the auditor’s report and recommend to the
Board for approval. All members of the committee have attended that meeting.
The Audit Committee will meet at least twice a year to review the financial
results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, the report
of the internal auditor on the Company’s internal control and risk management
review and processes, and the re-appointment of the external auditor. Pursuant
to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the Company, the minutes
of meetings were circulated to all Committee Members. The minutes were kept
by the Company Secretary.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board has not taken a different view
from the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or

dismissal of external auditors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for keeping proper accounting
records and preparing the financial statements of each financial period, which
shall give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
financial performance and cash flows for that period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, the Directors have made
judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable, and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

The relevant responsibility statement from the external auditors is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 95 to 100.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other financial disclosures required by the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements.

The senior management has provided such explanation and information to the
Board as necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the Group put to the Board for
approval.

The basis on which the Company generates or preserves value over the longer
term and the strategy for delivering its objectives are explained in the “Management

Discussion and Analysis” set out in pages 16 to 25 in this report.

The section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” has explained the factors
affecting business performance and outlook of the Group. Financial statements
have been presented in accordance with the disclosure requirements of Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the total remuneration paid or payable
to the Company’s auditors, Ernst & Young, totaling approximately HK$1.5
million.

Analysis of remuneration paid or payable to the auditor is set out below:

Types of services

e i 1 <

B E2025F3 H31 H ILFE > AN A B A 8RE A A
o TR BT 28 Ak 6w S T O B A AR A B 1S
HEH T -

A7 B A B0 AT A R 1 M < 2 AT S AT

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

ke 5 %5 20254E3H31H 202443 H31H
HK$°000 HK$'000
Tt T

Audit services % % M5
Annual audit service AF B 9 % R 1,500 1,500
Non-audit service IE 2] 4% R = -
Total HEr 1,500 1,500

DIVERSITY OF WORKFORCE

As at 31 March 2025, the Board comprises seven Directors, including one
female Director. Moreover, the Company comprises 4 female employees and 5
male employees. The Company would continue to maintain at least one female

employee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Chairman, the Board and Board
committees by ensuring the Board policy and procedures are followed. The
Company Secretary reports to the Board and assists the Board in functioning
effectively and efficiently. The Company Secretary also advises the Board on
applicable law, rules and regulations, and advises the governance matters and

facilitates the induction and professional development of Directors.

Ms. Lai Wai Sheung (“Ms. Lai”) has been appointed as the Company Secretary,
the Authorised Representative and the process agent of the Company with
effect from 1 June 2022.

Ms. Lai joined the Company on 13 July 2009. She has been a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “Institute”) since 25
June 2002 and became a fellow of the Institute on 2 March 2020. Ms. Lai has
more than 20 years of experience in finance, audit and accounting, and company
secretarial matters. Ms. Lai meets the qualification requirements of a company
secretary under rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary reports directly to the Board and is responsible for,
inter alia, providing updated and timely information to all Directors from time
to time. For the year ended 31 March 2025, Ms. Lai has taken over 15 hours of
relevant professional training and therefore she has complied Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rule.
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AMENDMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The third amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of the
Company was adopted by way of a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting held on 4 September 2024. The
third amended and restated memorandum and articles of association is available

on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. To this end, the Board oversees and approves the
Group’s risk management and internal control strategies and policies, which
are aimed at evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks
that are compatible with the Group’s strategic objectives and risk appetite,
with the main purpose for provision of reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss rather than absolute elimination of the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.

Reporting to the Board, the Audit Committee is delegated with the authority
and responsibility for ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the effectiveness
of the relevant systems. In December 2015, the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee were updated to formally incorporate the risk management into its
scope of duties.

Areas of responsibility of each business units are clearly defined with
specific limits of authority in place to ensure effective segregation of duties.
Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, maintenance of proper accounting records, assurance of
the reliability of financial information for internal use or publication and
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. Risk management system,
internal control measures and procedures are continuously under review and
being improved where necessary in response to changes in business, operating
and regulatory environments. Furthermore, a Whistleblowing Policy has been
adopted by the Group, with the authority and responsibility being delegated
to the Audit Committee. Such Whistleblowing Policy is for employees and
those who are in business with the Group such as customers and suppliers to
raise concerns, in confidence, with our Internal Audit and any and all relevant
complaints received may then be referred to the Audit Committee and/or
chairman of the Company about possible improprieties in any matter related to

the Group.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Audit Committee has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and procedures covering all controls, including
financial, operational and compliance and risk management, and the adequacy
of resources, qualifications, experience and training of staff of the Company’s
financial reporting and treasury function. Confirmations from management in
the form of certification that risk management and internal control procedures
are functioning effectively to meet the respective financial reporting, operational
and compliance needs, are submitted by business unit heads and reporting to
the Audit Committee.
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Based on the result of the review as reported by the Audit Committee, in
respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2025, the Directors considered
that the risk management and internal control systems and procedures of the

Group were effective and adequate.

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

The Internal Audit Department reviews the effectiveness of the internal control
system. The Internal Audit Department carries out an annual risk assessment
on each identified audit area and devises an annual audit plan according to
the nature of business and risk exposures, and the scope of work includes
financial and operational reviews. The audit plan is reviewed and agreed by
the Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of work, the Internal
Audit Department conducts other review and investigative work as may be
required. The Audit Committee receives summary reports from the Internal
Audit Department periodically while the results of internal audit reviews
and responses to the recommended corrective actions are also reported to the
executive Directors. The Internal Audit Department is also responsible for
following up the corrective actions to ensure that satisfactory controls are

maintained.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST DECLARATION

The Group adopted conflict of interest declaration policy as one of the
important internal control procedures. Employees are required to provide
annual declaration of conflict of interest, and strictly comply with the policy
to ensure that the Group and its customers, business partners, shareholders,
employees and business community of the transactions and dealings are in line

with the highest standards of business conduct and ethics.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group established a whistleblowing policy for employees under
confidentiality to file complaint and report any suspected misconduct, fraud
and irregularities, in an orderly manner. The Internal Audit Department is
responsible for receiving, reviewing complaint and report, to investigate, to
draw conclusion and to make appropriate recommendations for improvement,
and inform the relevant departments senior management to implement
corrective action. Internal Audit Department reports twice a year their findings
on complaints to the Audit Committee.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not
less than one-tenth of the Company’s paid-up capital at the end of deposit
of requisition and having the right to vote at general meetings can submit a

requisition to convene an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”).
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Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, namely,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong or the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong at Unit 2203A, 22/F, Wu Chung House, 213 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. Shareholders who wish to put enquiries to the
Board can send their enquiries to the Company Secretary who will ensure these
enquiries to be properly directed to the Board. Shareholders may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available. Corporate communication of the Company will be provided
to Shareholders in plain language and in both English and Chinese versions to
facilitate Shareholders’ understanding. Shareholders have the right to choose
the language (either English or Chinese) or means of receipt of the corporate

communications (in hard copy or through electronic means).

All resolutions put forward at an EGM will be taken by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Shareholders who are unable to attend the EGM can appoint
proxies to attend and vote at the general meeting. The Chairman of the EGM
will provide explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and
then answer questions (if any) from the shareholders regarding voting by way of
poll. In addition, the poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange after the EGM.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to
which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain sufficient reserves for future development.
The Company in general meeting may declare Dividends in any currency
but no Dividends shall exceed the amount recommended by the Board. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter
alia, the Group’s financial results, the general financial condition of the Group,
the Group’s current and future operations, capital requirement of the Group,
obligations and financial covenants (if any) of the Group, the Group’s debts
to equity ratio and return on equity, surplus received from the Company's
subsidiaries and any other factors that the Board deems appropriate. The
Company'’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to all applicable laws, rules
and regulations in the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong, and the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company. The Board will continually review
the Dividend Policy and update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy
from time to time. The Dividend Policy shall not constitute any legally binding
commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any

time or from time to time.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with all
shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. The Company is committed
to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its
shareholders and investing public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business developments
and financial performance through its corporate publications including annual
reports and public announcements. Extensive information about the Company’s
activities for the year ended 31 March 2025 has been provided in this annual
report. While the Annual General Meeting provides a valuable forum for
direct communication between the Board and its shareholders, the Company
also maintains its website (www.domainepower.com) to provide an alternative
communication channel for the public and its shareholders. All corporate
communication and Company's latest updates are available on the Company's
website for public’s information.

Hong Kong, 26 June 2025
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and has its registered
office at Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and principal place of business at Unit 2203A, 22/F,
Wu Chung House, 213 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

Being an integrated fine jewellery provider and an original design manufacturer
with a well-established operating history in Hong Kong, the Group is primarily
engaged in designing, manufacturing, processing and exporting fine jewelleries
to jewellery wholesalers, retailers and high-net-worth customers mainly in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. With the management expertise, the Group
allocated more resources to participate in the fine artistic jewellery market and
captured the market of high-net-worth customers. In producing fine artistic
jewellery products, we are eager to design featured products with high quality
gemstones and jadeites. The management believes that providing fine artistic
jewellery products is a positive element in promoting the brand of the Group.
The Group will continue to input sales and marketing resources in order to
craft our fine artistic jewellery brand, and utilise online marketing to promote

sales.

Moreover, the Group has been offering a wide range of fine jewellery products
in gold encompassing rings, earrings, pendants, necklaces, bracelets, bangles,
cufflinks, brooches and anklets that are generally targeted at the middle
segment, among the three tiers of the fine jewellery market segments in terms
of retail prices. Recently, according to market analysis, the management is
committed to the development of the fine artistic jewellery and service platform
(asset light) business. At the same time, in order to enrich the product range,
the Group also provides gold products and materials. The Group’s customers
are mainly wholesalers and retailers of jewellery products, and high-net-worth

customers.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), including a discussion
of the principal risk and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s businesses, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set on pages 16 to 25 of this Annual
Report. This discussion forms part of this directors’ report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2025
and the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2025 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 106.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 176. This summary does not form part of the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
104 of this annual report and note 24 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 June 2014. As at
31 March 2025, the Company’s distributable reserves, calculated under the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$72.9 million.

DONATIONS

During the year, no donations were made (2024: nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to the

major customers and suppliers respectively during the financial year is as follows:

Percentage of the Group’s total

Sales Purchases
The largest customer 85.1%
Five largest customers in aggregate 99.8%
The largest supplier 98.0%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 100.0%

At no time during the Year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

Major customers

The following are the details of the Company’s three largest customers for the
year ended 31 March 2025:
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Since its IPO date, the Company has accumulated a portfolio of variety of
customers engaging in different jewellery and gold products businesses.
The Company has endeavoured to mitigate the liquidity risk by focusing on
customers which were able to accept a shorter credit period (i.e. 7 days to 120
days). As a result, the Company has maintained good financial health.

The Company considers that the customer revenue concentration is a short-
term phenomenon due to the temporary change in the Group’s credit control
policy. With the development of fine artistic jewellery and online jewellery
business, the Group’s customer base will be naturally broadened in the near

future.
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Besides developing the business of fine artistic jewellery and online sale of
jewellery, the Company is also confident in continuing its business of sale
of jewellery products, gold products and materials. Given the Company’s
high reputation in the industry, the Company is confident that its business
relationship with customers is strong and will continue to support the
Company'’s business.

The Company has explored different customers’ segments to reduce the level of
concentration of corporate customers. Further, since the business relationship
with the current customers remains very strong, the Company will conduct
business with broader customer base following its relaxation of credit control
policy. Hence, the Board is of the view that the issue of reliance on major

customers will be improved in the future.

SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the major subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 1 to the

financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

As of 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group had no borrowings.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company who hold office during the year ended 31 March
2025 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Dr. So Shu Fai (Chairman)
Mr. Tom Xie (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Wai Dune
Mzr. Ning Rui (Re-designated on 1 September 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Pak Yue

Mr. Chung Wai Man

Mr. Ning Rui (Resigned on 1 September 2024)
Ms. Lin Ying (Appointed on 1 September 2024)
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All existing executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 1 December 2024, which
may be terminated by, not less than three months’ notice in writing served by
either party on the other and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation of our Directors as set forth in the Articles
of Association.

The existing non-executive Director has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of two years commencing from 8 November 2023,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting and
until terminated by not less than one month’s notice in writing served by either
party on the other.

Existing independent non-executive Directors have signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
1 July 2024 and Ms. Lin Ying has signed a letter of appointment for a term
of two years commencing from 1 September 2024 subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meeting and until terminated by not
less than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other.

No Director has a service contract which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, one-third of the
existing Directors shall retire from office, at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Accordingly, Dr. So Shu Fai, Mr. Ning Rui, Mr. Yau Pak Yue and
Ms. Lin Ying, who being eligible, will retire from office at the annual general
meeting and offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive Directors and all of them are considered to be
independent under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest (either directly or
indirectly) subsisted at the end of the year under review or at any time during

the year under review.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 8 to 15 of this annual report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company or its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) had a material interest subsisted
at the end of the year under review or at any time during the year under review.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreement which may result in the Company issuing shares
was entered into or existed during the financial year, other than Share Option
Scheme.

ADOPTION OF THE 2023 SHARE SCHEME AND
TERMINATION OF THE 2015 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted the share option scheme on 10 February 2015 (the “2015
Share Option Scheme”) under which certain selected classes of participants (including,
among others, Directors and full-time employees) may be granted options to
subscribe for the shares. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the scheme
will remain in force for 10 years from that date. No share option had ever been
granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

In order to provide for the potential issuance of both share options and share
awards as the types of equity incentives that the Company can utilise as part of
its incentive strategy and also to ensure that the new scheme adopted shall be
in compliance with the amended Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules introduced
by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, which came into effect on 1
January 2023, the Board proposed the adoption of a new share incentive scheme (the
“2023 Share Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the Shareholders
of the Company on 14 September 2023. Immediately upon the 2023 Share
Scheme taking effect, the 2015 Share Option Scheme terminated and the
Company shall not grant any options under the 2015 Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, Tricor Services Limited has been appointed to
administer and implement the 2023 Share Scheme. The Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange has approved the listing of and granted permission to deal
in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) to be allotted and issued pursuant
to the awards.
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On 28 March 2024, the Board resolved to grant 100,000 share awards to Mr.
Xie Tom, representing 0.0579% of the total number of Shares as at the date
of grant. Moreover, on 28 March 2024, the Board resolved to grant 1,000,000
share options to Mr. Xie Tom, 500,000 share options to Mr. Chan Wai Dune
and 1,050,000 share options to 5 other individual employee participants of the
2023 Share Scheme, representing respectively 0.579%, 0.290% and 0.608% of
the total number of Shares as at the date of grant.

For details of the adoption of the 2023 Share Scheme and the termination of
the 2015 Share Option Scheme, please refer to the circular of the Company
dated 9 August 2023 and announcement of the Company dated 14 September
2023. For details of the grant of share awards and share options pursuant to
the 2023 Share Scheme by the Company, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 28 March 2024 and 24 July 2024. Please also refer to the

disclosure as follow:

Purpose

The purpose of this scheme is to provide the Company with a flexible means
of, attracting, remunerating, incentivising, retaining, rewarding, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the eligible participants of the 2023 Share Scheme
(the “Eligible Participants of the 2023 Share Scheme”) through aligning the
interests of Eligible Participants of the 2023 Share Scheme with those of the
Company and Shareholders by providing them with an opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and become Shareholders, and thereby,
encouraging Eligible Participants of the 2023 Share Scheme to contribute to
the long-term growth, performance and profits of the Company and to enhance
the value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company and
Shareholders as a whole.

Eligible Participants of the 2023 Share Scheme

Eligible Participants of the 2023 Share Scheme are determined by the scheme
administrator of the 2023 Share Scheme (the “Scheme Administrator”) from
time to time to be eligible to participate as grantees under this scheme, and
shall fall under the below category:

Employee Participant, being an employee, director (excluding independent
non-executive director) or officer of the Group on the grant date of the 2023
Share Scheme (the “Employee Participant”).

Awards

Awards may take the form of a share option or a share award, which can
be funded by shares of the Company (the “Shares”) or an equivalent value
determined by prevailing market prices.
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Maximum number of awards available for grant and new Shares available
for issue under the scheme mandate

Scheme mandate limit:

The total number of Shares that may be issued pursuant to all awards to be
granted under the 2023 Share Scheme and awards to be granted under any other
share schemes of the Company is:

(a) initially set at 10% of the Shares in issue as at the adoption date of the
2023 Share Scheme, being 17,260,000 Shares (the “Scheme Mandate”);
and

(b)  may be subsequently refreshed in accordance with the scheme rules of
the 2023 Share Scheme and the Listing Rules, as further approved by
Shareholders at general meeting.

The 2023 Share Scheme was adopted on 14 September 2023. During the
Reporting Period, 100,000 new Shares were issued pursuant to the 2023 Share
Scheme. Therefore, as at 31 March 2025, 17,160,000 new Shares were available
for issue under the Scheme Mandate. As at the date of this report, 17,160,000
new Shares (representing approximately 9.94% of our total issued share capital
as of the date of this report) were available for issue under the Scheme Mandate.

Number of Shares underlying awards available for grant:

The aggregate number of Shares underlying all grants made or to be made
pursuant to the 2023 Share Scheme was 17,260,000. On 28 March 2024, 2,650,000
Shares underlying awards were granted under the 2023 Share Scheme. It follows
that, as at 1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025, there were 14,610,000 Shares
remaining to be issued as a result of awards that remain to be granted under the

2023 Share Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participants of the 2023 Share
Scheme

There is no specific maximum entitlement for each Eligible Participants of
the 2023 Share Scheme under the 2023 Share Scheme, save as the relevant
requirements on threshold of grants to individuals under the Listing Rules.

Issue price and exercise price

The Scheme Administrator may determine in their absolute discretion the issue
price for the exercise of share awards and/or the exercise price for share options
for awards in the form of share awards and/or share option (as the case may be)
and such prices shall be set out in the award letter.

The exercise price for share options shall be no less than the higher of: (i) the
closing price of the Shares on the grant date; and (ii) the average closing price of
the Shares for the five business days immediately preceding the grant date.

The issue price shall be determined on an individual basis for each of the grantee
by the Scheme Administrator, taking into account the purpose of the 2023
Share Scheme, the interests of the Company and the individual circumstances of
each grantee.
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Exercise period

The Scheme Administrator may determine in its absolute discretion the exercise
period for any award of share options and/or share awards and such period shall
be set out in the award letter. However, the exercise period for any award of
share options shall not be longer than 10 years from the grant date.

Vesting period

The Scheme Administrator may determine the vesting period and specify such
period in the award letter. The vesting period may not be for a period less than
12 months from the grant date, except in limited circumstances set out in the
scheme rules of the 2023 Share Scheme. These circumstances may only apply
to Employee Participants and are consistent with the scenarios contemplated in
FAQ13 — No. 12 issued by the Stock Exchange, including where:

(a)  grants of “make whole” awards to a new Employee Participant to replace
the awards that the Employee Participant forfeited when leaving their
previous employer;

(b)  grants to an Employee Participant whose employment is terminated due

to death or disability or event of force majeure;

(¢)  grants of awards that are subject to the fulfilment of performance targets
as determined in the conditions of the grantee’s grant;

(d)  grants of awards the timing of which is determined by administrative
or compliance requirements not connected with the performance of the
Employee Participant, in which case the vesting date may be adjusted to
take account of the time from which the Award would have been granted

if not for such administrative or compliance requirements;

(e)  grants of awards with a mixed vesting schedule such that the award vests

evenly over a period of 12 months; or

® grants of awards with a total vesting and holding period of more than 12

months.

Remaining life of the 2023 Share Scheme

The 2023 Share Scheme is valid for 10 years commencing on its adoption date
(being from 14 September 2023 to 13 September 2033). The remaining life of
the scheme is approximately 8 years 2 months.
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Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the rules of the 2023 Share Scheme, the vesting period may be less
than 12 months from the date of grant of the share awards in the circumstances
of, among others, the grant of share awards which are subject to the fulfillment
of performance targets pursuant to rule 12 of the rules of the 2023 Share Scheme.
The remuneration committee of the Company (with Mr. Xie abstaining from
voting) has resolved that, considering (i) the experience, work experience and
contribution to the Company of Mr. Xie, and (ii) the benefits of the said vesting
period which include enabling the Company to offer competitive remuneration
and reward packages to Mr. Xie, in such circumstances that would be justified
and reasonable, which is also consistent with the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
said vesting period is considered appropriate and aligns with the purpose of the
2023 Share Scheme. Due to administrative procedures in connection with
the vesting of the share awards to Mr. Xie, the actual vesting date of the
share awards was 30 September 2024.

() The actual vesting date was 28 March 2025.

3) The exercise price of HK$1.17 per Share represents no less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of HK$1.17 per Share as stated in the daily quotations sheet
issued by the Stock Exchange on 28 March 2024, being the date of grant of the
share options; and (ii) the average closing price of HK$1.17 per Share as stated on
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant of the share options.

(4) 5 other Employee Participants excluding Mr. Xie and Mr. Chan as disclosed above,
on individual basis.

Further details of movements in the 2023 Share Scheme are set out in Note
25 to the consolidated financial statements of the 2024 Annual Report of the
Company.

Apart from the aforesaid 2015 Share Option Scheme and 2023 Share Scheme, at
no time during the Reporting Period was any of the Company and its holding
companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of
the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age 18, had any right to
subscribe for the shares in, or debentures of, the Company, or had exercise any
such right.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES AND INTEREST IN
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At as 31 March 2025, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing

Rules were as follows:

T T 4y~ R B e Ay B
B HH 6 2 T 2 i 4

20253 H31H AnFERE R EREITHAR
TR 7 ) BSCEL AR T T (R 98 L A 3 1 2 571 B
a5 25 S B A (1 a8 25 R 0 B e ] )) S XV R 2
JBe 3~ B Ay AR J o B D BT AR 8 FIAR
5 8 5 T 1Bk 00 5 352 M L E A L Y B T Y
Ef SR - AR R B S BT b TR S RS B 3 BT
1 B <y )0 A 2 A W 52 BT R RE 4R S IR O
m

Dr. So Shu Fai (Note 1) Interest of a controlled corporation
A1 (B 5E ) B2 A v R g

Mr. Tom Xie (“Mr. Xie”) (Note 2) Beneficial owner
AR e A (TR AE D) (BEgE2) T XEWN

Mr. Chan Wai Dune (“Mr. Chan”) (Note 3) Beneficial owner

oA o 5 A (TBRSEAE D) (B 5E3) HaHA A
Notes:
1. Perfect Gain Group Limited is solely owned by Dr. So Shu Fai which in turn

owns 129,349,494 shares of the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So Shu Fai is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the shares which are beneficially owned by
Perfect Gain Group Limited.

2. These interests comprise: (i) 100,000 underlying Shares for the Share Awards
granted to Mr. Xie under the 2023 Share Scheme which were vested on 30
September 2024; and (ii) 1,000,000 Shares that may be issued pursuant to an
exercise of options granted to Mr. Xie under the 2023 Share Scheme. Such grant of
share options was approved by the board and the vesting date was 28 March 2025.

3. These interest refer to 500,000 Shares that may be issued pursuant to an exercise
of options granted to Mr. Chan under the 2023 Share Scheme. Such grant was
approved by the board and its vesting date was 28 March 2025.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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129,349,494 74.90%
(long position)
129,349,494 %
()

1,100,000 0.64%
(long position)
1,100,000 /B
()

500,000 0.29%
(long position)
500,000 fIZ
()

B RE :

1. WG o6 4 B A PR )l R RE T A E A W
HE A AR F129,349,494 B B3 o MR8 55 % O &
{1 > TR ASH AR 1 - Bl A s R RS 25 4 AT R
UNCINCEE RN 0Nl Sk o £

2. W% HE 2 AL EE ¢ (100,000 B AR $5 2023 4F i 40 w1
T2 T it A 0 R 0 8 8 9T 5 % 00 AR B R (B
202449130 H & ) 5 $(ii)1,000,000 B AR 9% 2023 4F
JB 073 w5 #1452 e A 0 S T R AT 0 IRE ] B AT
B A5y o A B P e MR 5 T 0 HE S e L S S e H
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, none of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which was required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2025, so far as was known to the Directors, the following
persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
had, or were deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or

which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

B b SCHT 4 5 K A > 202543 H 31 H s AR A
T N AT BN B TR AR 4 ) s H AT ] AR T ik
(G2 38 L3 2 L BB XV IR 2 B0 ~ A0 B ik
3 B 5 v ARE U T A RE B 4 A A R AR R R IR
7B 16 9] 585 35246 B e A7 B R B RO I A R 25 Rk
B kAR PR T UE ST R ZE S0 AR 2 W RO WE AR T BRAR
P ATE < ) EL b R o 28 0 B AR N W) R 58 T I AT
Al HE 35 SRR A o

BB R B LAt N\ R AR 2 W] B B M B
JBe B3 v 2 HE 4 B SR AT

20254E3 H31 H > shEF A L A+ Bl
(FE oA A EZATELN B BRI B A28 7 R
SAR B R WA BB A A R PR S
B ) 5 XV B B 2 B B 3 40 A SC B ) AR N T B
T ME R BOR A > o B Bk AR IR R S O B R
55336068 A AN R ZE AT B B R 4 T RE £ sk
/UF

Beneficial owner

A A

Perfect Gain Group Limited (Note 1)
A i 2 A B2 (B

Ms. Cheng Miu Bing Christina (Note 2)
Y vk L+ (BfE5E2)

Interest of spouse

i 165 HE 45

Notes:

1. Dr. So Shu Fai beneficially owns 100% of the issued share capital of Perfect Gain
Group Limited. By virtue of the SFO. Dr. So Shu Fai is deemed to be interested in
129,349,494 shares held by Perfect Gain Group Limited.

2. Ms. Cheng Miu Bing Christina is the spouse of Dr. So Shu Fai. By virtue of
the SFO, Ms. Cheng Miu Bing is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Dr. So Shu Fai.

129,349,494
(long position)
129,349,494 1
(5 57)

74.90%

129,349,494
(long position)
129,349,494 i
(&)

74.90%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2025, the Directors were not aware of
any other persons/entities (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) who had interests and short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group has made pension scheme contributions and Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme. Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note 2 to

the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

During the year, none of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or has any other
conflict of interests with the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every Director is
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all costs,
expenses, losses or liabilities, which he may sustain or incur in or about the
execution and discharge of the duties of his office, to the extent as permitted by

laws.

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance which has been
in force throughout the financial year and up to date of this report to provide

appropriate insurance cover for Directors” of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2025, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed

securities.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the

shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Group's corporate governance practices can be found in the
Corporate Governance Report contained on pages (26) to (41) in this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the management, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on the operations of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2025.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to build an environmental-friendly corporation that
pays close attention to conserving natural resources. The Group strives to
minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and encouraging

recycle of office supplies and other materials.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintain the highest
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business. The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in

environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.

Further discussion on the environmental policies is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report section in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

This annual report and the financial results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2025 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has also discussed matters with respect to the accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Company, risk management and internal control
systems with senior management members of the Company.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the Company to attend the
annual general meeting to be held on 28 August 2025, the register of members
will be closed from 25 August 2025 to 28 August 2025, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be entitled
to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrars, Tricor Investor Services Limited, 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 August 2025.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on 28 August 2025. Shareholders
should refer to details regarding the annual general meeting in the circular
of the Company and the notice of meeting and form of proxy accompanying
thereto.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young (“EY”) was appointed as the auditor of the Company at the
2024 AGM and to hold office from the conclusion of the 2024 AGM until the
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company. The Board confirmed
that there was no disagreement between EY and the Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year ending
31 March 2025 have been audited by EY, who shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

By order of the Board

Dr. So Shu Fai

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2025

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
2025 Annual Report

W 0 B A R R T A

Ty Tl FE AR F) B I A% R 2025 458 H 28 H BR 4T
B RO AT R 1 B AR > AR S AL Y 2025 4F 8 A
25 H 202548 H2s H LW (IR EWM A)
15 0 B B AR EE T A RO & M B AT Al 1
W F RS o By AT A G S R IR AU AR Rl &
RV BT T SN L A B R 2R BB RN
202548 H 22 H (ML) T4 MUK =+ 2 i 3% %2
AN TR A B R T B i AR R BT
HBRAE > Hhk A A w4 A 16 E KA
7B DL BT o

Jie 38 4K

AN TR 2025 4E 8 H 28 H SR AT B R 4E K & o A7
BB AR R G R R S AN F W
H LK) e K& 5 ] T RS R AT A o

¥ B Bl

2 K B g B S T (142 7K 1) W 2024 4F i o3 48 K
& b T AT B AR N RO AT 2024 4F B K
FERCB NS = i S R NN D o K S N i
WAy I o 3R G RERD > Bk LA N B 2 R A 4
FLAr B o

A4 [ 202543 A 31 H Ik B AR B 4 S B
R ek EE HATWIE R - B4 88 &

BT o MU L T AR 2 R A B 2 PR SR
T JeE A R AR R AR R e

TR W

B A 1
FIHAITES

s > 20256 H 26 H



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the ninth Environmental, Social and Governance report ("ESG Report™)
of Domaine Power Holdings Limited (“"Domaine Power” or the “Group”)
(Stock code: 442). This report outlines the Group’s management approach and

performance on environmental and social aspects.

Reporting Period and Scope

This report focuses on disclosing the Group’s environmental and social
performance during the period from April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025. Unless
otherwise stated, contents of this report cover businesses in which its holdings
are greater than 51%, including jewellery products business (manufacturing
and sales) in both Hong Kong and China.

Reporting Standard

This report is prepared in accordance with requirements of Environmental,
Social, and Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2 of Listing
Rules of HKEX. It fulfils the mandatory disclosure requirements and meets the

“comply or explain” provisions.

Feedback

The Group has taken into consideration the interests of its stakeholders to
the greatest extent possible in compilation of this report. Your thoughts and
feedback regarding what you would like to see incorporated in future reports
are welcome. Please contact us at:

Address: Unit 2203A, 22/F.,
Wu Chung House,
No. 213 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai,
Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2363 8868
Fax: +852 2416 6326
Email: enquiry@domainepower.com
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ESG GOVERNANCE

Board Statement

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) acknowledges its responsibility for
sustainable development of the Group and is committed to overseeing the
Group's overall ESG policies and performance. The Group’s risk management
strategy incorporates assessment of ESG issues, with particular emphasis on
identified and prioritised risks that have a higher likelihood of occurrence.
Considering the nature of our business and the prevailing circumstances, we set
targets aimed at minimising our environmental impact. The Board regularly
reviews the progress towards these ESG targets. We are committed to managing
ESG-related risks and opportunities that are material to us, striving for
sustainable development across environmental, economic, and social dimensions

through meticulously developed policies and procedures.

To ensure that the Group’s ESG strategy is well-aligned with the realities of its
business, we conduct extensive stakeholder engagement to identify and prioritise
material ESG topics. Feedback from stakeholders provides critical input for
developing a comprehensive materiality matrix. Stakeholder engagement and
coordination on ESG-related matters is led by the Administration Department.
The final list of material topics is carefully reviewed and approved by the Board,
with priorities determined based on relevance and impact. This process forms
the foundation for formulation of the Group’s ESG governance and the related
strategy.

The Group deeply recognises that promoting responsible ESG management is
vital to its long-term and resilient growth. The Group’s core business revolves
around sale of high-quality jewellery. Although the direct environmental
impact is relatively limited, we are committed to integrating sustainability
principles into both strategic decision-making and day-to-day operations. We
ensure that environmental and social implications are fully considered during
strategy formulation. By proactively mitigating adverse impacts and actively
contributing to wellbeing of the communities in which we operate, we not only
fulfill our corporate social responsibilities but also reinforce our resilience to and
competitiveness in an increasingly dynamic environment.

The Board confirms that this report has undergone thorough review and
approval. To the best of its knowledge, the content covers all material topics
and presents a true and fair view of the Group’s ESG approach and performance.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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Materiality Assessment

We place strong emphasis on understanding and addressing the concerns of
our stakeholders and view their expectations as integral to the Group’s long-
term sustainability. Through proactive and transparent engagement with both
internal and external stakeholders via a range of communication channels, we
are able to gain valuable insights into their evolving priorities. This enables
us to identify and respond to stakeholder concerns in a timely and effective
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manner.
Stakeholders Concerned Topics Engagement Channel
For#E B 1 i 8 2 IR
Employees . Training and development . Labour union and equality working group
& B B R Bk T LA R4 TAR /N
. Occupational health and safety . Intranet and monthly newsletter
Ik 2% i e S 22 & AL T A A5
o Remuneration o Mailbox
i A
. Workplace discrimination o Year-end appraisal
T 35 A FERF
Customers . Product quality . Product advertisement and exhibitions
R FE fi B R 7 il B A R B
. Feedback from front-line employees
Tl 47 8 5 B R
. Company website
I T A o
Government . Employee protection . Compliance with laws and regulations
B i B P4 B IE HER
o Business ethics
[EESEE
Community . Helping people in need . Support charity organisations
AL B HofAwmEAL SRR LA
Investors and Shareholders . Corporate governance . Annual General Meeting
& H B R 3B Jie SR 4 R
o Operational risk o Annual report and public announcement
28 By A JBE i B A
. Business operations . ESG report
R ESG
U Disclosure U Company website
i 25 F A
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A materiality assessment was conducted to identify and prioritise ESG aspects
most relevant and significant to the Group. This process involved gathering
stakeholder perspectives and feedback through online surveys and phone
interviews. The collected data enabled us to assess the relative importance
of specific issues to both internal and external stakeholders, as well as to our

business.

As a result of this assessment, the Group has identified six key material topics:

1) Emissions management

2) Environmental compliance

3) Customer satisfaction

4) Economic performance

5) Product and service quality management
6) Supply chain management

Other key topics include anti-corruption, business ethics, talent management,
operational compliance, employee health and safety, raw materials consumption,
and risk management. The Group is committed to addressing these issues
through ongoing stakeholder engagement and continuous enhancement of its
ESG strategy, policies, and measures, as detailed in this ESG report.
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OUR ENVIRONMENT

Domaine Power is firmly dedicated to embedding sustainability principles in
the entire strategic planning and operational processes. The Group is committed
to continuous enhancement of its environmental management systems and to
proactive steps for mitigation of its environmental impacts.

Environmental Management

The Group acknowledges the environmental impact of its operations and is
committed to minimising any adverse effects. We take proactive steps to ensure
that both our manufacturing operations in China and our office-based activities
in Hong Kong comply with the applicable laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) and local environmental standards.

The management team holds overall responsibility for incorporating
environment-friendly and resource-saving practices into the Group's daily
operations. We promote recycling, prioritise environmental compliance, and
implement green initiatives across our offices and manufacturing operations,

continually working to enhance our environmental performance.

To conserve energy and resources, the Group adopts a range of sustainable
practices, closely monitoring emissions to ensure compliance with regulatory
standards. We regularly engage employees in environmental awareness
campaigns, underscoring the importance of environmental preservation. Specific
environmental protection targets have been established, and our performance is

continuously assessed against these targets to drive ongoing improvement.

Addressing Climate Change

The Group is fully aware that climate change is a critical issue requiring serious
attention from all parties involved. To address this, a comprehensive Climate
Change Policy has been developed, outlining the necessary steps to manage
the issue. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure the Group has the relevant
information and resources to monitor and assess the impact of climate change

on its operations.

To address the growing challenges of climate change, we refer to the climate-
related disclosure guidelines set out in the International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) S2. This involves identifying and evaluating the associated
risks and opportunities, enabling us to effectively navigate the evolving climate
landscape.
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Physical Risks
18 R

Transition Risks

38 6, 65

Climate-related Risks

SR 15 A B e, B

Acute

=

o Increased severity of extreme weather events such as
cyclones and floods

JoL J A0 3 S5 S5 i S K SR Y e R BE 9%

Chronic

8 1

e Prolonged periods of extreme hot weather
R A8 il R R

e Rising sea levels

i 7 7t

Policy and Legal
BOR R ik

e Increased pricing of GHG emissions rights

i e Ui SRR P R E

e Enhanced obligations on climate-related disclosure
T i SR A A Bl 48 5 2 5

Technology

A
e Costs of transition to lower emission technology

R 2 AR T ) A

Market

L

e Changing customer behaviour
%5 E s

e Increased cost of raw materials

JE A A B R

Reputation

BE
e Increased stakeholder concern or negative stakeholder

feedback
e # A 3 B Ok 3 4R 0 & Y & T R
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Potential Financial Impacts

8 1e B o

* Reduction in revenue from diminished production
capacity

JE HE N B B0 B

e Increased capital costs (e.g., damage to facilities and
structures)

B A (U0 B B KSR W) 52 48) BT

e Higher costs due to negative impacts on the workforce
(e.g., health, safety, absenteeism)
55 B F7 % LAY BT R AR - T A Gk
o) MEOIA LR

e Lower sales

ST R

e Increased cost of compliance and operation

o B R B AR BT

e Additional investment required for technological
upgradation

T T AN BE

e Reduced demand for products due to shift in consumer
preferences

T 2 B G SO i T SR

e Reduced revenue from decreased demand for goods/
services
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Potential Financial Impacts

8 1e B o

Climate-related Opportunities

e . FJse of lower-er‘nissio‘n sources of energy e Reduced operational costs (e.g. through use of low-
£ U5 39 ARSI B R TR emissi0f1 energy) )
TR AR B (i 3 R AR B ik i TR
e Shift in consumer preferences e Increased revenue through demand for environment-
Products RNy related products and services
B e Ability to diversify business activities TR R W B s T R A B A B T
Z LB RRE N

Energy Consumption BB U5 Y #E
Energy consumed during the year was primarily attributable to petrol and TR BE R T FE B WK R B ) o S L
electricity. A total of 3,942 litres of petrol were used for vehicles, alongside JH 3,942 FF V50 % A W 11,696.00 T FL IR 78 11 E TR
11,696.00 kWh of purchased electricity. The total energy consumption was MBI FREF (FIRERD > HpiK
about 168.71 Gigajoules (“GJ"), with petrol being the major component which T A B BB R AL BT A3 o A AR TR ARRE R 759 o

contributed more than 75% of total energy consumption. The total energy ] AR > RRUR AR E A B8 s TIREEH A ©

intensity was approximately 18.75 GJ/person during the year under review.

Energy Consumption and Intensity

18.75
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions

As part of environmental monitoring efforts, the Group tracks its greenhouse
gas ("GHG”) emissions. The Group’s GHG emissions include direct emissions
from fuel consumption (Scope 1) and indirect emissions from the use of
electricity (Scope 2). During the year under review, the total GHG emissions
were 17.97 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO,e”); Scope 1 and Scope

2 emissions accounted for approximately 58% (10.49 tCO.e) and 42% (7.49
tCO,e ) respectively. The emission intensity was approximately 2.00 tCO,e/

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Green Office — Let’s GO

To further foster environmental awareness among employees, the Group
displays stickers and posters across its offices, encouraging the adoption of
sustainable practices and green habits. Throughout the year, we continued to
implement the “Let’s Go” green office initiative within our Hong Kong offices,
integrating a variety of energy- and resource-saving measures into our daily
operations. We remain steadfast in our commitment to conserving energy and
natural resources, embedding environmental sustainability into our corporate

culture.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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Climate Change . 100% of electrical appliances to have energy-saving labels by 2025
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Resources Management HUHEH

Business operations of the Group consume resources including water and A 4 T SE T 8 4 01 I FE B R LG K K g

packaging materials. B o

Lighting & ]
« Adopted LED lighting system
{# FILED #8 I 5 4%
« Switch off lightings during lunch break

A RS 1] B

Air Conditioning 72

«Set the air conditioning systems at an average temperature of 25°C

7122 8 28 0 -2 B BUE R 25°C
+Switch off air conditioning when not in use

AN R B P 22 o

Office Equipment H¥ 2 s

» Adopted Grade 1 (the most efficient) electrical appliances
il —#% (B = BER) A%

» Used switch-sockets to reduce redundant energy use

55 FH ) ] 4 22 ok ) 22 B RE R

Energy Conservation Initiatives

B RETE s

‘Water Resources K& IR
During the year under review, the Group consumed approximately 38.00 m’ A [l B AE BE R > A 4 BT RE #938.00 57 J7 K Bk T
of municipal water for both domestic and production use, with an intensity of FH KA 06 R e i g E 4 42250 ) ﬂﬁ/
approximately 4.22 m’/person. The Group did not have any issue in sourcing N o A A [ 4 TROE R K R AR A B R O T I 4
water fit for the purpose. il R -
Packaging Materials (E-Fop
Engaged in the manufacture of fine jewellery, the Group consumes paper AR A R R R B S T FE AR
products for finished products’ packaging. During the year, a total of 48.18 kg BLRE G o AE A FRAM A L A 48.18 T v 4K AU 2K A
of paper packaging materials were used. No plastic packaging materials were BE o A4 5 O RH L 2 AL R o
used.
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Resources Conservation

To minimise water consumption and discharge, the Group recycles the water
used in production processes in order to use it for several other purposes,
including washing gypsum moulds. A specialised service provider helps us to
collect the small quantities of effluents generated containing metal particles and
colourants, ensuring these materials are recycled appropriately.

Paper /1] AR

IR 2

2y TR WK 2 T K I FE B B K BE s A 4R
Wi AR EE R K I U BR ORI R A B B
B4 A M & o B3 MBS Bt RE B 0 B 3k M
WHEDLPBCEE S A B E & FH A MK E
K e PR % A AR B B R P o

» Use Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified paper

{5 FH ARAMRE B2 Bl O A

» Adopt electronic means for promotional & internal communication

{51 76 72 XA i i K 1A 3 2 el

Water 7K

- Installed self-closing taps with optimised timing

LA RTIRF Y 1B ) B PR 61t

* Check water pipes regularly to prevent water leakage

E WA AKAE > Bk iRK

Others HAth

« Use video calls to reduce business travel

(SR RS > WD PRS2

* Reuse stationery (paper clips and envelops etc.)

VEER 6 I SCH (AR K5 #155)

Resources Conservation Initiatives

BIREIAT T 1l

Emission Management

Air Emissions

The Group’s air emissions in Hong Kong come mainly from petrol consumed
by its vehicles. During the year under review, the Group emitted SOy, NOy and
particulate matter amounting to 0.058 kg, 1.233 kg and 0.091 kg respectively.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
68 2025 Annual Report
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Air Emissions (kg)
BERBERY (F50)

NOx PM
REAALY  REEFREA

Fume emissions arising from the jewellery polishing process at our plants in
China are carefully managed through the deployment of a baghouse system
and a desulphurisation unit, which effectively eliminate particulate matter
and neutralise acidic sulphuric gases prior to discharge. During the reporting
period, an accredited third-party conducted air pollutant emissions tests and
inspections to verify compliance with the Level 2 standard of the Integrated
Emission Standard of Air Pollutants set by the People’s Republic of China.

Wastewater

To ensure compliance with regulatory standards, we test all wastewater,
including domestic and production effluent, twice a year to verify that the
discharged water meets the requirements outlined in the permit issued by the
Guangzhou government. Our effluent discharge is closely monitored to prevent
release of any hazardous substances into the surrounding environment.

A three-stage treatment is used for treating domestic wastewater prior to
discharge, ensuring that stringent discharge standards are met. This process
eliminates over 80% of pollutants, such as oil, debris, and organic compounds.
Additionally, water is reused for cooling of the central air-conditioning
system, further supporting our sustainability efforts and promoting resource

conservation.
Aspect Target
i W5 H

BB A& LB HE

1

1.233

SOx
ek

FAM A v IR R A BB O T 2 e A Y B B
i 7 A T R 4 R B AR AT M L e AT I R A
P W% 4 it BE AT R 2% B DR ) 3 R R R A i SR
S A2 P EAT PR o A Hi i A A & AT KRR AR
14 55 = 77 BH R DR SRS e Wy B AR 0 - B R A
AN R B ORSRTS e ) &5 & PR AR E) —
AR AE Y TR o

Jg% 7K

LR AT A B e IRAM R AE TR T5 K AR
JEE JBE K HEE AT W U A o e R HE BOK B A RN T
I 8 B 1 HE 5 7 R R SR o FRAM S A% B 4 BE K
PR B IR YR RE BT .

A 95 K TE B AT A8 = AR P T 25 e (R
B Je A5 1) PR T RR YE o B2 PR AR AT 2% BR o B 1
BV Ge s > B IIE - B A AL S AE o Bt
Sh > R BRAR B K 3 1] R FP R 2 R AR A Ve A BR
B A SRR IR B T R AR R HOAR R

Wastewater

JB% 7k 100% #5 <F 15 7K b PR FF

100% compliance with sewage treatment procedures
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Waste

To minimise our environmental impact, we have implemented a range of
waste reduction initiatives. These include recycling old furniture, adopting
digital promotion methods on social media to reduce paper consumption, and
providing dedicated bins in the office for ensuring recycling of metals, paper,
plastics and glass.

Following the relocation of our Hong Kong office to our parent company’s
premises, we are no longer able to track waste generated specifically by our

operations. Similarly, waste generation in our operations in China is not

JiE S W

AR BRI MO HE— R
9B G o P RL AR )RR KL A A S
AT SRS B DLW AR DL R R S ERE &
J& ~ ARER - BB B B 1] A

T 7 S 8 AR A R R A AR > TRAM A ik
i Wi 7 T EE AR I A E IR SEW) o R AR - FRAM O
O B Y R A B A B ) o

recorded.

Aspect Target

i e H B

Waste The proportion of paper recycling is gradually moving towards 100%

BEEY A%l 1] g BE B I 2 45 8 15] 1009

Noise Control

We recognise the significance of noise pollution generated by our production
facilities and treat it as a critical issue requiring serious attention. To mitigate
this, we have installed shock absorbers and sound insulation systems.
Furthermore, we get regular audits conducted by the local noise monitoring
unit to ensure that our noise emissions remain within the prescribed regulatory

limits.

Plant Site Greening

The Group is deeply committed to ecologically friendly upkeep of both
its production facilities and the surrounding environment. To support this
commitment, we have employed dedicated professionals to cultivate and
maintain plants and greenery. This initiative aims to enhance air quality
at our production sites and contribute to the overall well-being of the local

community, furthering our environmental sustainability efforts.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS

At Domaine Power, the pursuit of excellence in product quality is embedded in
operations. We rigorously implement a robust quality management system and
prioritise active engagement with our customers.

Product Quality

The Group is committed to providing jewellery products that meet the
highest quality standards. An Organisation for Quality, comprises the Board
of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Finance Department, Operational
Department and Administration Department, oversees and manages the
production process. To ensure the effectiveness of the quality management

system, an annual evaluation is conducted.

Board of Directors

CE

BEBE A\ KR WE
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Organisation for Quality

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standards in jewellery
production by ensuring that all employees are certified for the technical skills
required. Our quality checks process includes rigorous checks and inspection
at each production stage, from raw materials to semi-finished and finished
products. We follow a strict procedure to guarantee premium quality. All raw
materials, including gems, diamonds, and precious metals, undergo thorough
inspection before being used in production. These raw materials are classified
and graded in compliance with the Chinese national standards set by the
Standardisation Administration of China. A two-step quality check is conducted
for every product, with inspections carried out by experienced professionals at
each stage. Any products that do not meet our standards are sent back to the
production site for necessary corrections. Only products that pass all quality
checks are approved for sale.
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Customer Satisfaction

Customer feedback is highly valued by the Group and serves as an important
foundation for delivering products and services of the highest quality.
Maintaining effective communication with customers enables us to better
understand and respond to their expectations. To ensure that concerns and
complaints are addressed promptly and professionally, standardised procedures
for customer complaint handling have been established.

Responsibility for identifying and resolving product quality issues rests with the
Quality and Production Engineering Department, while the Sales Department
is responsible for liaising with customers regarding their complaints. Following
a thorough investigation, appropriate rectification and/or preventive measures

are implemented as necessary to address the root cause.

Furthermore, a product recall procedure is in place to manage incidents where
non-compliant products are mistakenly delivered to customers. The Quality
and Production Engineering Department oversees the examination of recalled
or defective products and ensures they are either repaired or otherwise rectified
to meet the required standards.

Supply Chain Management

To ensure consistent product quality, the Group has implemented a robust
and efficient supply chain management system. The Procurement Department
conducts comprehensive assessments to identify suitable suppliers. For each
procurement task, at least three potential suppliers are shortlisted, evaluated,
and scored by a review team, before final approval. Following approval, a
probation period of three to six months is set by the relevant departments for
each newly engaged supplier. During this period, the Procurement Department
monitors and evaluates supplier performance. Should any supplier fail to meet
the required standards, it is promptly removed from the approved suppliers’
list. Performance of all existing suppliers is reviewed and assessed at least twice
a year to ensure continued compliance with the Group’s quality expectations.

Supplier Distribution
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During the reporting period, the Group collaborated with a total of 10
suppliers. Extensive market research was conducted to source diamonds,
gemstones, and semi-precious stones that met the required quality standards.
The Group collects quotations from various companies to compare prices.
Throughout the procurement process, the Group adhered to principles of
fairness, ethics, and equity in sourcing polished diamonds, raw materials, and
related services.

Suppliers undergo an initial evaluation against clearly defined criteria,
encompassing pricing, product and service quality, delivery performance,
consistency of supply, and overall competitiveness. Only those who fulfil all
requirements are approved for procurement of raw materials. To maintain
high standards of quality and operational resilience, supplier performance
is systematically monitored and assessed on a semi-annual basis. Suppliers
demonstrating substandard performance are promptly removed from the
approved suppliers’ list to uphold the Group’s commitment to supply chain
integrity and excellence.

Data Privacy and Intellectual Property Protection

The Group places great emphasis on the security and privacy of both customer
and employee data. We have stringent policies in place that prohibit disclosure
of confidential information without proper authorisation. Employees are bound
by confidentiality obligations that extend beyond their tenure with the Group.
Whenever handling sensitive data, employees are required to consult with
their supervisors or department managers to ensure compliance with these

confidentiality protocols.

To ensure compliance with laws and regulations related to intellectual property
rights and ensure information security, the Group has established a robust set
of policies and regulations focused on preventing data leakage and enhancing
cybersecurity. All office software used on the Group's computers are procured
exclusively from authorised sellers only.

To protect the legitimate rights and interests of the Group and prevent
infringement of patents held by the organisation and its personnel, the
Marketing Communications Department is responsible for managing patent
applications for all inventions and creations within the Group, in accordance
with the Patent Management System. The department provides quarterly
updates to the Group’s management on the status of patent applications and the

protective measures in force.
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Business Ethics

The Group is committed to upholding the highest standards of integrity and
transparency. We maintain a strict zero-tolerance policy towards all forms of
corruption, including bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering. Anti-
corruption standards are in place to help determine what constitutes corrupt
behaviour at the workplace and dealings with upstream and downstream firms
in the supply chain.

Our Employee Handbook includes a comprehensive Code of Conduct that
outlines our anti-corruption standards. Employees are provided with clear
guidelines to manage and avoid potential conflicts of interest, as well as
receipts of improper advantages. To ensure compliance, the Operational and
Finance Departments regularly conduct checks on bank accounts and customer
names. The track records of new customers are thoroughly investigated by an
independent professional organisation. For existing customers, we perform
annual reviews of their conduct and public reputation. Financial personnel
routinely review documents and customer accounts receivables, promptly
reporting any abnormality to their superiors. Additionally, the Group
continuously educates relevant personnel on anti-money laundering practices,
ensuring they understand the importance of these measures and their role in

preventing illicit financial activities.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group has a strong whistleblowing policy, grounded in principles of
fairness, mutual trust, ethics and integrity. We have established clear guidelines
to address conflicts of interest, and actively encourage employees and third
parties to report any instances of misconduct or irregularities. Upon verification
of authenticity of a reported incident, the internal audit department works
closely with the relevant authorities to take appropriate actions and impose
suitable penalties on offenders.

The Group’'s Administration Department is responsible for receiving
information of wrongdoing from employees and transferring it to the Internal
Audit Department. After confirming the facts, the Administration Department
works with the relevant departments to determine authenticity as well as
the required disciplinary action(s). Whistle-blowers may report concerns to
internal audit or superior authorities, either anonymously or openly, through
various channels, including email, written correspondence, a 24-hour telephone
hotline, or other forms. Employees may also submit reports via the Employee
Suggestion Box in accordance with the Standard Operating Procedure SOP-
HRM-21. The Group has also established a robust whistle-blower protection
policy, which ensures confidentiality of informants’ identities and safeguards
them from retaliation or threats, and facilitates fair and efficient investigation of

reported incidents.
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PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES

Domaine Power recognises that its employees constitute a core element of
its success. We are committed to fostering a positive and supportive work
environment that enables employees’ professional growth through a variety of
development opportunities. At the same time, we prioritise their well-being,
ensuring they receive appropriate benefits to support their overall health and
satisfaction.

Employee Overview

As at 31 March 2025, the Group employed 9 full-time staff, of which 3
employees are based in Mainland China. The ratio of male to female employees
is 5:4. Regarding age, 78% of our staff are aged 31-50 and 22% are aged above
50. Among the employees, 67% are managerial staff and 33% are general staff.
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Employee Rights and Wellbeing

The Group is dedicated to creating a diverse and inclusive work environment,
where all employees are treated with dignity and respect. We have a policy of
zero tolerance for any form of discrimination or harassment, whether based on

age, gender, marital status, race, religion, or disability.

To safeguard the rights and benefits of our workforce, we have implemented
comprehensive internal regulations that address key areas such as remuneration,
recruitment, promotion, working hours, and equal opportunities for all

employees.

Talent Acquisition

The Group has articulated and elaborated human resources management
processes and procedures, as outlined in the employee handbook. As an
equal opportunity employer, we adhere to a non-discriminatory approach in

recruitment and employment practices.

Our recruitment and promotion processes are transparent and equitable,
focusing on merit, educational background, work performance and professional
experience. We conduct open and fair assessments to identify the most
qualified individuals. Additionally, employees undergo annual evaluations
that encompass their work performance, attitudes, and other key performance
indicators. These appraisals serve as the basis for promotions, position changes,
and salary adjustments.

Wellbeing and Benefits

The Group recognises that employee satisfaction is integral to sustaining long-
term growth and operational excellence. Accordingly, we are committed to
motivating our workforce through provision of competitive and comprehensive
remuneration and benefits packages. Employee compensation is subject to
regular review, with adjustments made in response to market trends and taking
into consideration individual performance, qualifications, and expertise.

Beyond statutory entitlements, employees benefit from an extensive suite of
welfare initiatives, including healthcare coverage, maternity and paternity
leave, marriage leave, and gifts on festive occasions and birthdays. In our China
operations, complimentary annual health examinations are offered to promote
employee wellbeing. Furthermore, we provide comprehensive social and labour

insurance coverage to safeguard employees’ rights and welfare.

To attract, motivate, and retain talented individuals, the Group has
implemented a structured incentive scheme that awards performance-based
bonuses to employees who demonstrate exceptional contributions. The scheme’s
effectiveness is reviewed on an annual basis. In addition, long service awards
and bonus incentives are granted to employees who have served the Group for
over five years, as a recognition of their enduring commitment and valuable

contributions.
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Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

To uphold its commitment to fair and impartial recruitment practices, the
Group ensures that all job applicants receive equal consideration, irrespective
of gender, nationality, disability, age, skin colour, race, or family status. We
actively encourage employees to report any instances of discrimination or
harassment to their supervisors or to the HR Department.

In China, an Equality Working Group has been established to oversee
enforcement of anti-discrimination policies and to handle relevant complaints.
The Group treats all reports of discrimination or harassment with utmost
seriousness, conducting prompt investigations into each case. Where allegations
are substantiated, appropriate corrective and remedial actions are taken without
delay.

Employment Standards

The Group places strong emphasis on protection of labour rights and strictly
prohibits the use of child or forced labour across its operations. We adhere to
rigorous labour standards and internal policies to ensure full compliance with all
relevant legislation. All new recruits are required to present valid identification
documents to verify that they are at least 16 years of age. Furthermore,
employment contracts are entered into on the basis of mutual consent between
the Group and employees, reinforcing our commitment to lawful and ethical

labour practices.

Employee Communication

Effective and open communication with employees is a priority for the Group.
We use various communication channels, including the intranet and monthly
newsletters, to ensure employees are kept up-to-date about the latest policies
and developments within the Group. These methods allow us to engage
with our employees, keeping them well-informed and connected to key
organisational updates.

We actively promote an open-door policy, encouraging employees to contribute
their ideas and offer feedback on product designs and company policies. To
safeguard employees’ legal rights and ensure their best interests, the Group has
established a labour union and a women workers’ committee, both of which
play a key role in resolving labour disputes.

Training and Development

The Group acknowledges that its continued growth is directly dependent on
the expertise and competencies of its employees. We are therefore committed
to significant investment in professional development of our employees and
facilitate enhancement of their capacities to reach the full potential. We
provide a comprehensive range of training opportunities, carefully aligned
with the individual career development paths of employees. Training needs are
systematically assessed through annual performance evaluations, ensuring that
employees are equipped with role-specific skills and knowledge. Throughout
the reporting period, 100% of employees received training, with an average of
37.8 hours of training per employee, reflecting our ongoing commitment to
fostering a culture of continuous professional development and learning.
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To ensure development of both the Group and its employees, the HR
department facilitates in-house training programmes. These programmes
encompass a broad range of subjects, including technical expertise, management
skills, and stone jewellery classification. By providing employees essential skills
and knowledge, we empower them to continuously improve their performance.
All new employees are mandated to participate in both internal and external
training sessions in order to deepen the understanding of their roles and
operational procedures. Internal training is delivered by experienced managerial
staff, who share their practical insights and knowledge with their colleagues,

ensuring transfer of valuable expertise across the Group.

In partnership with the Panya Vocational Training Centre, the Group offers
training opportunities for talented individuals in the jewellery-making
industry. Looking ahead, we aim to offer further professional career support to

all staff members by assigning tutors with high professional competencies.

Occupational Health and Safety

Safety and well-being of employees remain a top priority for the Group. We
are committed to maintaining a safe and healthy work environment, taking
proactive measures to eliminate potential hazards. To achieve this, we have
implemented rigorous safety management systems, procedures and regular
training. During the reporting period, there were no cases of work-related
accidents and 0 lost days were recorded; there were no work-related fatalities.

Safety and Crisis Management

We prioritise the safety of our employees by strictly adhering to applicable laws
and regulations. To ensure compliance, we have implemented a comprehensive
production safety management policy, along with an occupational hygiene
management organisation, that monitors and oversees all operational activities.

The HR Department plays an essential role in maintaining safety standards,
conducting annual evaluations to assess potential risks, and ensuring correct
use of personal protective equipment. In addition, persons-in-charge of the
production units are responsible for ensuring safety practices are followed and
for delivering ongoing safety training to employees.

To effectively handle potential emergencies, we have established an
emergency handling group, led by the HR Department, to address both
natural and human-made accidents, such as fires, flooding, or chemical leaks.
Comprehensive emergency plans, including preventive strategies and clear
handling procedures, are in place to ensure swift and effective action during

emergencies.
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Workplace Safety Management

Our fine jewellery production processes, which include casting, polishing and
gold-filling, present various safety risks to employees. To address these safety
hazards, various safety measures are implemented at the workplace. These
measures include the provision of personal protective equipment, such as gloves,
masks, and eye protection, to safeguard employees from potential hazards.

. . Handle flammable and

Post safety warnings at . .
. L explosive materials
prominent positions in the .
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Safery Measures
A

To proactively identify and address risks related to exposure to hazardous

materials, high temperatures, dust and noise emissions, we regularly
commission third-party safety evaluations. When potential or existing risks
are identified, prompt and appropriate corrective actions are taken. To ensure
effective safety management, we have established a system of monetary rewards
and penalties, which are applied based on the performance of individuals

responsible for managing safety issues.

The Group attaches great importance to the health and well-being of its
employees. In addition to offering annual occupational health checks, we
maintain detailed occupational health profile of each employee, enabling close
monitoring of the health status. Where occupational health risks are identified,
appropriate medical treatment is provided, and any unsafe workplace practices
contributing to such risks are promptly rectified. Through these measures, we
are committed to actively mitigating occupational health risks and safeguarding
the long-term well-being of our employees.

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRY - G LER#E

LA 53 7 % 2 5 B
{88 T A AT 4 G mﬁ&%i’%ﬁ

B T B A R 2 A B o A R K AR AR AR
TAE 35 BT 9% B £ JH 22 A R o B4 4 B R 9 4

FE - O K SR A R B
o 52 BAE fE B v

e

Require employees to use

~\

personal protective

equipment at work
ZORAE B TARRS

{#E‘FH ﬂ_l /\rﬁuz K{’TLL

FAM 72 WIEAT 58 = O 2 PN Bk Rk A
SLYE A R L R BB % W P O B Y
ﬂszo*E%‘*iﬁ & S BUAT BB > AN 5 57 R BR

IRC B S IE K i o 2 W OR A O 2 A B FRAM
O i OL < 88 4% b B 1 ) - JLAR R R R B K

2 B AR BT LU -

A G M JE o LR B R (R BELAR AL o B 45 AR R R
ik f RRE A A A > FRAM IR B 5 A B L RE AR Y

Wi 2 M FRERE 22 > B U UDEE A ORI - — HLEE
AT ] I 3 f B S gy - AT B B 3 DD 3E B - 3

T S I B ESORH B B ) A AT R 2 A AR S i A
o B RZ SR A I > FRAM BT T B AR T I 2 fk
JFE R B o O B A A R 0 A Ak o

IRl A R 2 ]
SRTHARRRE

79



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BBE - dE KR WAE

80

Safety Training

The Group places prevention at the core of its safety management approach,
recognising that enhancing workplace safety awareness is essential to reducing
the likelihood of injuries. In line with our production safety management
policy, comprehensive safety training is mandatory for all new employees,
temporary workers, and transferees to ensure they are equipped with the
necessary knowledge of safety issues.

Newcomers are required to complete safety training before commencing
their duties. This training covers occupational health and safety practices and
the correct usage of personal protective equipment. Following the training,
newcomers must pass an assessment to demonstrate their understanding before

taking up their job responsibilities.

Given the Group’s operations involve technical manufacturing procedures,
employees engaged in specialised procedures must undergo professional safety
training and obtain the necessary certification, confirming their competency
to operate specific machines. To reinforce safety leadership, government
organisations are regularly invited to provide safety education and training to

managerial personnel and those responsible for occupational health and safety.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Group upholds the principle of “taking from society and giving back to
society” and is committed to supporting the communities in which it operates
by undertaking charitable activities and making donations. Looking ahead, the
Group remains dedicated to fulfilling its social responsibilities by continuing to
contribute to the development and well-being of local communities where its
operations are based.
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS B R A

To ensure strict compliance with all applicable laws and regulations, the Group T T AR S 6 0 <F TR B R R A BOE L AR
has established and implemented management approaches including policies il 7 I E 7 B AL 45 BT 3 & BESG # RE T
and initiatives in response to each ESG issue. The list of applicable laws and Y BR S H E o T R A SR ELE BT

regulations is as follows:

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Compliance Statement

J& T P B By

Environment e Environmental Protection Law of the PRC We strictly comply with relevant laws and
B rhE N B B B A OR regulations regarding environmental protection.

e Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Waste
rh 2 N B A [ A BE ) VS Ul BR A B A L

e Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC
rhE N B3R B K IS G B iR A

e Energy Conservation Law of the PRC
HEE N B R B T 4 AR VR 75

Employment and ¢ Employment Ordinance
Labour Standards 1 1175 46 151
1 /5 B2 55 14k Hi e Labour Law of the PRC
2 N R 3L B 25 B i
e Law of PRC on the Protection of Persons with Disabilities
o N R L R B N R B
e Race Discrimination Ordinance
AR e I A5 A6 4]
e Sex Discrimination Ordinance
A T 0 A5 491
e Family Status Discrimination Ordinance
R E {57 IE AL 16k
Health and Safety e Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
ikt BE B & & Occupational Diseases

Hh g N R A R R 2 VA ik
e Law of the PRC on Work Safety
e N R N B 2 A A i
e  Production Safety Law of the PRC
g N R LN B R I

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not
aware of any activities that violated any provisions
of these laws and could have had a significant
impact in terms of air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
T AM e A% 2 T R IT AR AR BR R AR
T i 5 A R o A AR O AR 08 R B A2 AT R B
SRR i 2 SR PR~ 1) K B b e P -
A E B E Y A AR Y TR R SO
S EE R R B L -

We strictly comply with relevant laws and
regulations regarding employment and labour
practices. During the Reporting Year, the Group
was not aware of any instances of failure to meet the
relevant legal and regulatory requirements relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare, prevention of child
labour and forced labour that could have had a
material impact on the Group.

T A e A 2 <Y U A e 5 L R BR IR R
Tk 1 o R il 4R > A 5 I A 5% BLAE
0] A7 R 307 M T 1 0 ~ HH S R E T AR
W B PR E - 2ol - B
Lo A5 28 AR A~ By 1k 3T KR 55 T
Ho A A J 3 T R B L A
‘H o

We strictly comply with relevant laws and
regulations regarding occupational health and
safety. During the Reporting Year, the Group
was not aware of any instances of breach of laws
or regulations relating to occupational health and
safety standards.

FAM e A S S B B A M R A
ek Bl o T i it 4F S5 5 A< 45 ) 31 4 9% BUAT
o] 3 S Wik S f B B2 A B M N B i R K
LRI DL -

IRl A R 2 ]
SERIAAEERYE S
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Compliance Statement

B

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations
e it A B B
Product Responsibility * Registered Designs Ordinance
JE fh B AT ot M SN BLSE FT Ak 91
®  Trade Marks Ordinance
[ERE2CS1
e Patent Law of the PRC
S DN Rl BN

Anti-corruption J

R BTG

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
2025 Annual Report

Chinese National Standards issued by the Standardisation
Administration of China

I % B AL A B 2 B A A A R R A

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
Biy L1 i i Aok 191
Anti-unfair Competition Law of the PRC

Hh 3 N R S A0 B S AN I R i

We strictly comply with relevant laws and
regulations regarding product responsibility.
During the Reporting Year, the Group was not
aware of any breach of laws and regulations relating
to its products, services, operations, sales and
promotions or other business practices that resulted
in sanctions or had liabilities of material adverse
effect on the Group. The Group was also not
aware of any breach of data security as it strictly
complied with the relevant laws and regulations in
all jurisdictions in which it operates.

FAM e A% 2 < E o 35 AT AH BRI AR SRR -
T AR BE A SR 0 R 2B AT ] PR
dh o MRS~ R SR R B BOH: A i E
Ty 7 SR A TR T B AR 2 B
1l R BRI R 5 B BAL o A
il A% T8 S BT A AC 8 BT AE F I HE I 0 AR B
B BERL > MUK A 8 BT o S R %
ZHIEI -

We strictly comply with relevant laws and
regulations regarding anti-corruption. During the
Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any
legal or regulatory activities relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering that had a
significant impact on the Group.

T A B 4% B ST SRS AR B A R L R -
R AR A S T G A B AT T AT B
M~ AR TR KUk B8 LR B T
R EIERERATS -
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY BB E

Environment B

2025 2024

Environment Total Resources Consumption
B BE IR A
Electricity (kWh) 11,696.00 16,670.43
T (T I)
Petrol (litres) 3,942.00 3,327.82
Al (1)
Total energy consumption (GJ) 168.71 166.89
BB IR AE (TIREH)
Energy intensity (GJ/person) 18.75 16.69
AE R 2% (T IR H N
Water (m’) 38.00 85.56
K (3277 K)
Water intensity (m’/person) 4.22 8.56
F KB B (3L KN
Packaging materials
GEIrE
Paper (kg) 48.18 85.84
A (T 52)
Plastics (kg) 0 0
SR (T 52)
Air Emissions
JBE SRk
Sulphur oxides (SOy) (kg) 0.058 0.049
fi 2L ¥ (T 52)
Nitrogen oxides (NOy) (kg) 1.233 1.233
REAEALY) (T 5)
Particulate matters (PM) (kg) 0.091 0.091
R R (T 50)
Waste
JBE FEY)
Hazardous waste (Tonnes) 0 0
A BE Y (M)
Non-hazardous waste (Tonnes) 0 0
I B S ) (M)
GHG Emissions and Intensity
L 2 S 8 D i e
Total GHG emissions (tCO,e)
UL 25 S0 MR R B O — AL i i)
Scope 1 (¢tCO,e) 10.49 8.85
A [ 1 (Mg — A R E )
Scope 2 (¢CO,e) 7.49 10.49
5 [ 2 (M S L e )
Total GHG Emissions 17.98 19.34
i = S 1 B A
GHG intensity (tCO,e/person) 2.00 1.93
1% SR B 2 B (g — UL E =N

IRl A R 2 ]
SERIAEERE 83
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Social Fi

2025

2024

Workforce Total Headcount
= FEUN 4
By Geographical Distribution
12 b [ %) 43
Hong Kong
i
Mainland China
Hh B A
By Age
i AR 1 ) 3
<31
31T
31-50
31E 50K
>50
505k PA |
By Gender
e 3 o3
Male
J
Female
o
By Position Level
T2 8k A7 o A ) 43
Managerial staff
EHLE AT
General staff
—AT
By Employment Type
T A A2 )
Full-time
N3
Part-time
AT
Employee Turnover Rate
1 B i &k %
By Age
A % H1 7
<31
31U A
31-50
31 % 505K
>50
S0 LA b
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2025 2024

By Gender
e P il 3 43
Male
H 1
Female
/g
By Geographical Region
12 b [ %) 43
Hong Kong
ik
Mainland China
Hh B A
Training Percentage of Employees Trained
3wl Z g B | L
By Gender
1 1 3 o3
Male
Bk
Female
ok
By Employment Type
e A AR 5T )
Managerial staff
EHEAT
General staff
—BET
Average Training Hours
- £ 52l Ik
By Gender
21 1 # 53
Male
2 Ris
Female
otk
By Employment Type
3 VRS D
Managerial staff
EHEEART
General staff

—AT

Health and Safety Work-related incident (case)

e B % 4 T (1)
Lost days due to work-related injury
TAG R TAE H 3
Work-related fatalities

TG T-FH

20% 0%

0% 0%

17% 0%

0% 0%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

30 25

48 53

37 34

40 40

IRl A R 2 ]
SERIREERE S5
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX R 5 TESGH A & 5l
Material Aspects Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
EGNA) T 22 B ESG # o 4 51 B & B Rk
Governance Structure
(REE
Mandatory Disclosure A statement from the Board containing: ESG GOVERNANCE — Board Statement
o il B 7% (i) adisclosure of the Board’s oversight of ESG issues; ESG & jh—H F & i i

(ii) the Board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the methods used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to
the issuer’s businesses); and

(iii) how the Board reviews progress made against ESG-related
goals and targets with an explanation of how they relate
to the issuer’s businesses.

MG BE > Py

() PiFEEFGTHESGHEEMEE

(i) #EJ & B BSG AT BT 81 S G > BLIE FEAS ~ IR
PE B B 8 B 2 () ESG A B L (I BT A
SRR 1R K&

(iii) 2 5 & W] 4% ESGAH B H A2 Al 3 B > NI i f
TAM 0 fa] BB AT A ZE RS A B A o

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
W5k 22 Jir ESG #it 1 47 51 8L &

BB A& LB HE

Section/Remarks

T, AR

Reporting Principles
HE ¢ )5t S

Mandatory Disclosure

i ol 4 R

A description of, or an explanation on, application of the
following Reporting Principles in the preparation of the ESG
report:

a) Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the
process used to identify and the criteria for selection of
material ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder engagement
is conducted, a description of significant stakeholders
identified, and the process and results of the issuer’s
stakeholder engagement.

the

methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools

b) Quantitative: Information on standards,
used, and source of conversion factors used, for reporting
emissions/energy consumption (where applicable) should
be disclosed.

c) Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report
any changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other
relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

i it B R AE AR M ESG i BRE 4 AT R 1 E i

S Al

a) T ESGYR 15 ME PE#F ¢ sk 9l E FESG H &
RO R R S RE e N R MR s G B 1T A B
HEATRE Y B 2 B> O kA 1Y B B RE 0 3 0
BEEAT NFE 0 5 2 SRR R &G 5 -

by Ak : A7 B RE P iR R VR AR (A ) Br
P AR e Tk s B B TR E R
DK I ol P 1% DR 3% 19 2l U E T B o

o) —EME B AT AMEAEESGHR 5 P P &R A EE ik
o[B8 S 2 A A ) A (AN AT ) AT fa] G fh B
FREFBLLEWHBHNE -

The reporting principles of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance,
and Consistency underpin the preparation of this ESG
report. This report has been prepared in compliance with the
ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (HKEX).

a) Materiality: Through stakeholder communication,
management interviews and material issues assessment,
we identify issues that have significant economic,
environmental and social impacts on the Company’s
operations, and ESG issues that have a significant impact
on stakeholder assessment and decision-making.

b) Quantitative: The data contained in this report have
been examined and analysed to illustrate year-on-year
changes. Please refer to the “Performance Data Summary”
in this report for the criteria used in the calculation of
environmental KPIs.

¢) Balance: We disclose the positive and negative impacts
of the Group’s operations, as well as our work and
performance on major ESG issues, for stakeholder review.

d) Consistency: In order to maintain comparability of
information, unless otherwise stated, the statistical
methods used in this report are consistent with the past
and are designed to facilitate meaningful comparison.

Data in this report have been checked and analysed to explicate

year-on-year changes and are presented in a way that allows

for meaningful comparison. This report is published in both

Chinese and English. In case of any discrepancy between the

two versions, the English version shall prevail.

WEE - B T — B SRR A AR AR ESG

WM R ARECUBEBH AL IARA

A (F U RS 5 ) B S5 LT AR BB Bk - B

ESG ik 15 6 51 4w Y -

a) EEUEVE SR A M B R O O A B ek
&N T TR 4 NN St o N
HETE B B Rk By R 0 DL R B
Aty Je P o FL A K S B BSG ik A

by Ak A BT R O A8 A I S b > DA
T AT AR B Bl o AT BH R T BR BT B SR AU A AR
ST R e > G 2 A S [ B i o

o P AN 42 G P R A S 6 A A Y E T &
TR 5 2 DA S AR B [ fE B R ESG R i TR K
K D E AR -

d) —EME AR ERAT L > B SA B AN A
WA RSy k8 DT g
R -

A BT MO T A A > DL W R AR A AR

By E) - WAl T A BRI X 28 - AW

DA AP e SO R o i W AR AR A A AT T 0B B HI DL B

IRl A R 2 ]
SRTHARRRE
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Material Aspects Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
LGN W 22 it ESG #it 5 i3 51 L € Bk

Reporting Boundary

e i

Mandatory Disclosure A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG  Reporting Period and Scope
i i P 2% report and describing the process used to identify which ¥ 5 HH [H] & i [

A. Environmental

A B

Aspect Al: Emissions
JEHAL = FEiH

General Disclosure

— M4

entities or operations are included in the ESG report. If there is
a change in the scope, the issuer should explain the difference
and reason for the change.

fift T8 ESG ik At Ay HEE % 865 ] - B il At Bk 23 IR 46 7T 18 R
2E5 A AN ESGHR I R R o 7 T ¥ HE B A T el g

Information on:

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

A7 ] JBE SR B SRR R~ ok R R PRS- A

M B ) Y RE AR

a BUR R

by S B R AT AT TR B A B 1 R 4

MR o

KPI Al.1

e S A AR ALY

The types of emissions and the
respective emissions data.

P e ST BN R B e o -

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total

P G 45 308 £ A1.2 (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
1 2 5 A A P AR (DL MR 3
o (hn g J) 8 BE (4 LA A B
fir ~ 45 B wE 5

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste generated

[ S 45 30 F5 B A1.3 (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

JofY 7 AR AT B R A (LM
) B Chne 1) o B (n DA g
A BB o

KPI Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste generated
B o A AT A AL 4 (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,

intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

I A O ) AR R (LA
) Fe (g 1) % L (hn LA g
A BREBR MR o
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OUR ENVIRONMENT — Emission Management
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OUR ENVIRONMENT — Emission Management
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Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
W5k 22 Jir ESG #it 1 47 51 8L &

BB A& LB HE

Section/Remarks

T, AR

KPIALS
B S B R ALS

Description of emissions target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
i 2t € 11 72 PR AR A S
AT B H R PR IR R 25 B o

KPI Al.6 Description of how hazardous and

[ 6 45 2 F5 #E A1.6  non-hazardous waste are handled, and
a description of reduction target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

i 2t e PR A % BE TR Y
D7k~ Rk il WOPE B R
DL K 23 SO BB B I R B

2B o

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

Je A2 R A

General Disclosure

— i ¢ 9

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

AT YR (B AR U - K B HC A RS RL) B9 B
5o
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy

I G 45 308 B A2.1 consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

PSR B o3 1 T 4 R ]
AEUR (10158 ~ SR alim) 48FE = (LU
T T FC W RS K BE (A L)
BB AL B IH SO0 R )

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and

B S A5 AR A A2.2

intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume per facility).

REFEK 5 B B ( ﬁDU\!F% B
h (SR )

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency

P G A5 308 B A2.3  carge(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
fiit 2 E AE IR T 2 as AR
DA Be 25 32 B0AT B AR T R G
A .

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any

A S B3 B2 A2.4 issue in sourcing water that is fit for
the purpose, water efficiency target(s)
set and steps taken to achieve them.
il 2t SR HC8 KR B AT A AT ]
1R~ Bl E K 3R H A L
T I 2 BOCAT Bl B I R BRI 25
B o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging materials used for

FH S 45 5 FE 2 A2.5 finished products (in tonnes) and, if

applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

Sk BT T L B A AR
(LLMAEES) K (g F) 5 AR
LAVALE

OUR ENVIRONMENT — Addressing Climate Change
FRAMT Y BRI — M S AL

OUR ENVIRONMENT — Emission Management
FRAM B Tk B — PE Ay R

OUR ENVIRONMENT
Resources Management

— Addressing Climate Change,

OUR ENVIRONMENT — Resources Management
FeAM B 3R B — R B

OUR ENVIRONMENT
Resources Management

TRAM 0 B — ME B S A AL U

— Addressing Climate Change,

OUR ENVIRONMENT — Resources Management
Fe A B 3R 5 — R B

OUR ENVIRONMENT — Resources Management
T A By B 5 — R B

IRl A R 2 ]
SRTHARRRE
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Material Aspects
EPNT]

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
W5k 22 Jir ESG #it & 4 51 8L A&

Section/Remarks

T AR

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

JE A3 : BR BT K AR B

General Disclosure

— B 4% 2

Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

AR HE AT N B B R R R R A T KB A Y
o

KPI A3.1

B SR R A3

Description of significant impacts

of activities on the environment and

natural resources and the actions

taken to manage them.

Pl SE B U5 W) B IR B MR R K

TR 11 H R R B K PR U AT
R ATH)

Aspect A4 : Climate Change

J T A4 ¢ SRR 52 AL
General Disclosure

— B 9% 2

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

WG AT N B B R R AR IR A T KB A Y
KPI A4.1

B BB AR A4

Description of the significant
climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.

il O 88 K m] BE & SR AT N
e 5 2 ) R S e A B L M
CORRBCE B B 20T -

B. Social

B. &

Aspect B1: Employment
Je T B1 : A

General Disclosure

— B 4% R

Information on:

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

A B T M D A R R T AR R R

WG Zonil - OB R R H A R B R AR

FHY -

2 BUR K

by ST PR AT A HOK R 2B 0 R B i A SR A

B R o

KPIB1.1

B S AR B

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical
region.

TR R AR - AR B A I
Bl i ) 73 ¥4 R B AR 0
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age
P S 4530 F5 BEB1.2  group and geographical region.
T~ AR 8% A B [ ) 4y
[N S RNy e

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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OUR ENVIRONMENT — Noise Control, Plant Site Greening
T A9 BRI — W o~ AR AR AL

OUR ENVIRONMENT —Noise Control, Plant Site Greening
FoAM B B AT — W R K D A AL

OUR ENVIRONMENT — Addressing Climate Change

OUR ENVIRONMENT — Addressing Climate Change
T P 0 B2 M S0 B 1

PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES
Wellbeing
DL 2 7 1 £ (L 9 — A 50 W ) A )

— Employee Rights and

PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Employee Overview
DL 2 7 1) A (L 1L — AR A 300

PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Employee Overview
DL 2 7 ) {6 (L9 — 1R B AL
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Material Aspects Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
K W 22 it ESG #t 5 i3 51 L € Bk

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
J Wi B2 : f RS K A

General Disclosure Information on: PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Occupational Health and
— % P 7 a) the policies; and Safety
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that havea LA N B A 0 (B — B e Mg e e 2
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.

A 4R it A U/ BR O % PR R BB T CE T e

EH
a BUR R
by PR EEAT A KR A R B i O 4
MR
KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work-related PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Occupational Health and
P G 45 30 P8 B B2.1  fatalities in each of the past three years  Safety

including the reporting year. DL 5 A ) A (B BY — ok 3 filt e B 2

R 2 AR (RS R AR ) A%

AR A Y TR A B AR T SE TR

N L2 o
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injuries. PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Occupational Health and
BSEA IR B2 I TAG R TAE H % - Safety

DL 70 78 11 {0 B 9 — Tk 3 fidt e B %2 4

KPIB2.3 Description of occupational health and PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Occupational Health and
P 8 A 035 1 B2.3  safety measures adopted, how they are  Safety

implemented and monitored. DL 2 7 1 £ (L 98— Tk 3 {8 B B 22 &>

Toh 0L T R A ) T 2 ek B B &
T DL AR B AT S By
%

Aspect B3: Development and Training

J& B3 ¢ B R K B

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Training and Development
— k% R discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. DL 2y A ) A8 0 881 — B ol B
A B B2 THIE BB AT AR I TR0 0k B R AR B B -
i 2t 85 JI13E B o
KPIB3.1 The percentage of employees trained PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Training and Development
[ G 45 30 F8 1 B3.1 by gender and employee category DU 7 A B (8 (81 — 550l S 3%
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).
e B Al B8R (e A
JE T AR B AE) W23 1 32

B 5ot e
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed ~ PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Training and Development
[ S 4 3 3 B B3 .2 per employee by gender and employee LA A By A (8 (E B — B9l s

category.

e 2 A BT ) o 45 4
58 2 A P 2 T S o

IRl A R 2 ]
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Material Aspects
EPNT]

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
W5k 22 Jir ESG #it & 4 51 8L A&

Section/Remarks

T AR

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

JE T B4 : 55 T4 HI
General Disclosure

— B 4% 2

Information on:

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to prevention of child and forced labour.

B B 1k FE TR A i 5 T

a) BUR K

by AP IEEAT N A EE R N AR B s A 2L

R o

KPI B4.1

B B A8 AR B B4

Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.

28 AR w7 A ) 199 4 it DA 2B
e T il 55 T o

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate
B § A5 0B A B4.2 such practices when discovered.

Tl 2t A 5 A IR AT LR PR A
RERVNR7S

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
Je& i BS = {3 HE 4 4% B

General Disclosure

— A

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the

supply chain.
AR TR AL 8 G 1Y BRI R 6 R R o
KPIBS.1 Number of suppliers by geographical

) S AR A BS

region.
2l ) 2 ) E R B

KPIB5.2 Description of practices relating

[ G 45 30 F8 B BS.2 o engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

it A TR T 0L A A
1) FE AT A7 G A8 091 3% B 7
H o~ DA KA BAE B0 AT 2
Kk e

KPIB5.3 Description of practices used to
B 4 A5 AL P8 A5 BS.3  identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

ol 20 T Wl o S E B I 1 B
Lokt g Jal B i A8 1 DA B AT
S AR AT B AR 0 T 3

KPI BS .4 Description of practices used to
[ S 45 50 F8 HEBS.4  promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting
suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

it 7 8% A3 B 7 I D A 4T R
TR i b W s ) 119 DL 2 3
A7 3 B 456 A TR AL 490 A 7 1 o
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PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Employment Standards
DA T 7 1 £ R0 98 — {45 & 1)

PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Employment Standards
DA J 7 1 £ (R 981 — {45 ¥4 J1

PEOPLE-FOCUSED VALUES — Employment Standards
DA 7 7 1 £ (6 980 — 1 45 4 J

SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Supply Chain Management
AT A R — R g

SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Supply Chain Management
T R A I B A R

SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Supply Chain Management
TR A — A

SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Supply Chain Management
AT e A A 3t E P

SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Supply Chain Management
T A I A



Material Aspects
K

ENVIRONMENTAL,

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
W5k 22 Jir ESG #it 1 47 51 8L &

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BB AL g R RS

Section/Remarks

T, AR

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

JE T B6 ¢ JE i B AE

General Disclosure

— B % R

Information on:

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and

privacy matters relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress.

A B T B AR A R IROBS ) £ R B g2 A - R4S - R R

Be AL B 5 E DL SR RO R

a) BUR K

by HE P EEAT N A EE R N AR B s A S LA

R o

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or

B S A5 2L B A BG6.1  shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.
O BT A 2 i AR P 22
A s il R B by T 2L (] o) S
[EE

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service

B 4 S5 4R HEBG 2

related complaints received and how
they are dealt with.

FERE BRI E v B W 14 A R
DL R R 5 77 1k o

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to
2] %?ﬁf&ﬁ 15 B6.3 observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

i 2t BELAfE o5 R (R IO R ik E R AT
Bl 1 A 1

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance

A S A5 2B A BG4 process and recall procedures.
i 2t BT A AR AR B TR i
FEJF o

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data

) S AU RHR A BG.S

protection and privacy policies, how

they are implemented and monitored.
i3t 9 2 RO B B L B B
o DL R M B AT R RS OT I

SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Product Quality
AR AR R

Our business does not involve advertising and product
labelling. Therefore, these aspects had no significant impact on
our operations.

FeAM B 2EHF AW T B B SRR o L AT B T
T 36 A1 1 Sl 0 TR B

SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Product Quality
AR AR R

SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Customer Satisfaction
CIEES & g/ Mo b ;s

SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Data Privacy and Intellectual
Property Protection

TR AR R L R T A AR

SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Product Quality
AR AR R

SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Data Privacy and Intellectual
Property Protection

AT RE AR R R LB % Al R R

IRl A R 2 ]
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Material Aspects
LGN

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
W5k 22 Jir ESG #it & 4 51 8L A&

Section/Remarks

T AR

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

JEMB7 : R &5

General Disclosure

— B 4% 2

Information on:

a) the policies; and

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

A BB IE B DR R Sk AR BRI

a) BUR K

by AP IEEAT N A EE R N AR B s A 2L

R o

KPIB7.1

B AR BT

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

TP REE #5013 B AT N B R B
2 Sl O 88 4 Y ST R s = A
B B AR

KPIB7.2 Description of preventive measures
S 553018 #£B7.2  and whistleblowing procedures, how
they are implemented and monitored.
it By A e B B AR )Y o LA
Do AR BT Do BB Uy ik -
KPIB7.3 Description of anti-corruption training
I G 45 3018 152 B7.3 provided to directors and staff.

fib e 1) S e B TR A0 I
15 5l e

Aspect B8: Community Investment

JE T BS : k[ &

General Disclosure

— i % 9

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

A BR DAL [ 2 BRAR TR R AT N 8 T A A [ 2R
e AR HC S5 T ) @ % A IR ) 4 Y B

KPI BS.1

Bl 9 R HEBS.

Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
B EBAERE (A - R E
B~ B LER R - sofe -
F) o

KPI B8.2

) 2 45 K 46 HE B8 .2

Resources contributed (e.g. money or
time) to the focus area.

T S 6 0 T 500 U (0 4
R IRE[H])
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SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Business Echics
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SUSTAINABLE OPERATIONS — Business Ethics
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 37 b Wt e

Ernst & Young RKEF BT Tel &% : +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place BRBIRRREBE79 Fax f8H: +852 2868 4432
&* 979 King's Road Kty —EE274E ey.com
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of Domaine Power Holdings Limited Bhk 6 ¥ I A PR 2 B B OR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Domaine Power
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 101 to 175, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2025, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") as issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

(7% b 2 1 55 2 0 S 19 A TR 2 )

2R

AN T A 7150 A 5 101 % 175 B I AE B R R A
Al (TE A )) S b g 2 /) (B RS T & 48 ) 19 45
BB BLIER 2025463 H 31 A 45 A BE B IR
T2 B 2 5% HOIE 4F R0 &5 A 1H 25 B Hth 4 i i
HE -HGAMGEBRREABHEREER DX
GAEMBWMENT G EREGFIBORE R -

FAEE T - W% AR S R OB e
O (17 s g wt B 2 8 1) A B0 A ol U 5 i ot 2
R 5t e B BB o s T 3 AR R 2025
331 H M AR S BB IR UL K B E % H R AR
Wi a B R RGEBR R I O3 HEE
SO R 0 407 R KR AE %2 I B A o
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A O AR B8 7 w2 1 A A R 9 R e
Py (4 ot 5 w3 Q) A AT 3 w1 o BRAMAE 2 56 HE T
R YE I AT O 78 AR [ B B L7 At AR A
T IR R AR B FTAT L0y P AR — 2B Mk - AR A
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To the shareholders of Domaine Power Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition from contracts with customers

The Group’s revenue amounted to HK$185.5 million for the year ended 31
March 2025 and related to the sale of jewellery products, precious metals and

raw jewellery materials.

Revenue from sales of jewellery products is recognised when the customers take
possession of and accept the Group’s products, which generally occurs when the
products are delivered to the designated location, or when the Group sells the
products to the customers at consignment stores.

Given that revenue is a key performance indicator and therefore is internal and

external stakeholders’ focus, we considered this to be a key audit matter.

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4 and 4 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
2025 Annual Report
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To the shareholders of Domaine Power Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures included:

. Understanding and evaluating management’s key controls in respect of

revenue recognition;

. Assessing the revenue recognition policy based on HKFRS 15, in
particular the timing to recognise revenue;

. Reconciling revenue to the supporting documentation, such as
acknowledgement of receipts and invoices on a sampling basis;

3 Performing cut-off testing on sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the end of the reporting period; and

U Assessing the Group’s disclosures relating to revenue recognition.

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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To the shareholders of Domaine Power Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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EY::

To the shareholders of Domaine Power Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

3 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

3 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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To the shareholders of Domaine Power Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

U Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Lin, Yang.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Bk A 4R AR B Bl 4 i i 2R R

For the year ended 31 March 2025

#E 202543 31H IR

2025
20254
HK$°000
Ti#x
REVENUE W g 4 185,477 226,754
Cost of sales B 5 A (183,572) (223,734)
Gross profit EF 1,905 3,020
Other income HAb g A 5 1,109 686
Selling expenses B85 B XX (1,546) (2,716)
Administrative expenses 17 1__9’( B Sz B (16,569) (18,182)
Impairment loss on financial assets, net SR E A - (651)
Other gains and losses, net HoAt e 5 K 48 o 1R E 6 6,749 77
Finance costs 5 A 7 (58) (57)
LOSS BEFORE TAX B At i M 4R 8 (8,410) (17,823)
Income tax expense Jit 45 B 3¢ 11 (46) (64)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR GANY i (8,456) (17,887)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Al A T i 35
Other comprehensive loss that may be AJ BE i KL 7% A I T 7 7 M0 2 1A 4t
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 19 Al 2 1 5 15 —
— Exchange differences on translation of foreign PR F [ S ST E A 1 B S 5 R
operations (437) (879)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR A gt A T 4
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 1B B (437) (879)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS A5 9 2 T s 4R A8
FOR THE YEAR (8,893) (18,766)
Loss for the year attributable to: T 5N L A 4R R i 4K
Owners of the Company UNINEETE SN (8,297) (17,724)
Non-controlling interests JE $2E I HE 25 (159) (163)
(8,456) (17,887)
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to: T 51 A\ == JBE A 45 Ay 2 1 i $H 48 %«
Owners of the Company E/NEIE 2SN (8,734) (18,603)
Non-controlling interests I 2 B HE 25 (159) (163)
(8,893) (18,766)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AR 2 w0 R AN A
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF (53174 Fi|
THE COMPANY
— Basic and diluted — B B 13 HKS$(0.05) HKS$(0.10)
(0.05) # 75 (0.10)# 7T
I AE I A PR 2w
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

5 A W IR DL

As at 31 March 2025
202543 H 31H

102

2025
20254F
HK$’000
Tt
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik Ui B B
Property, plant and equipment L/ E & 14 215 930
Intangible assets Y 5 15 724 724
Right-of-use assets I RE B 16(a) 1,565 864
Financial assets at fair value through F A F A FE AR 5 0 4 il
profit or loss 17 19,481 26,061
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEAT 3KIE > e 4 S H At FE i s E 20 130 735
Total non-current assets IE it B A A AE 22,115 29,314
CURRENT ASSETS i B
Inventories & 18 12,434 12,957
Trade receivables 7 UK IH 19 10,835 11,030
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE AT B ~ i 4 B oAt E U 3R OIH 20 794 2,495
Cash and bank balances B4 K ORAT & B 21 36,280 36,394
Total current assets it B & E AE 60,343 62,876
CURRENT LIABILITIES bl =R
Trade and other payables and accruals B R At A K TE T I 22 6,636 7,483
Lease liabilities T 16(b) 739 565
Tax payables JREAH B TH 355 360
Total current liabilities B & AR 7,730 8,408
NET CURRENT ASSETS i B s 52,613 54,468
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES Ik U By A
Lease liabilities H A% A 1 16(b) 857 338
Deferred tax liabilities % HIE Bl TH £ ik 26 106 106
Total non-current liabilities PN R=E gk 963 444
Net assets W EFE 73,765 83,338

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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8
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

0 S R DL

As at 31 March 2025
R 20254E3 531 H

2025
20254
HK$°000
T # o
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7% 2> 7 #E A7 A JE A # #5
23 863 863
24 72,902 80,502
73,765 81,365
Non-controlling interests - 1,973
4t 5 73,765 83,338
Tom Xie
A B
Director
A
I AE I A PR 2w
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BOMGEE R

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 20253 31H 1L

Asat 31 March 2023 R202343 A 310 863 122,787 7946 1665 105366 - (GSI8)  (134850) 99,959 2136 102,095
Loss for the year F - - - - - - - 7,724 (17,724 (163 (17,887)
Other comprehensive loss for FREA A TEEE

the year:

Exchange differences on BE RN ER L

translation of foreign 11 B 3t A
operations - - - - - - (879) - 879) - 879)
Total comprehensive loss for A2 T s A

the year - - - - - - (879) (17,724) (18,603) (163)  (18,766)
Employee share-based compensation 1 £ [t 134 8 4 F1

benefics - - - - - 9 - - 9 - 9
Asat 31 March 2024 and R20244 37310 %

1 April 2024 20244 4H 10 863  122787*  7,946* 1,665 105,366 9 (4697 (152574 81365 1973 83338
Loss for the year i H = = = = = - - (8,297) (8,297) (159) (8,456)
Other comprehensive loss for A A 2 T 4R

the year:

Exchange differences on BERMEREE

translation of foreign 1 B 34 40
operations - - - = = = (437) = (437) = (437)
Total comprehensive loss for e R

the year - - - - - = (437) (8,297) (8,734) (159)  (8,893)
Acquisition of non-controlling W 9 P P

interests - - - (193) - - - - (193) (1,814) (2,007)
Employee share-based compensation 1 £t 14 i 4 71

benefits - - - = = 1,327 - = 1,327 = 1,327
Asat 31 March 2025 202543 431 B 863  122787*  7,946* 1472 105,366 1336 (134) (160871 73765 - 73765
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * W25 IR AR AR A IR TR PR &

& f# 72,902,000 % TG (2024 4 : 80,502,000
Wor) o

HK$72,902,000 (2024: HK$80,502,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RAEBERERL

For the year ended 31 March 2025

202543 31H IRAFEE
2025
20254F
HK$’000
Tt
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REWDFEHSRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax 5 Bl AT G 18 (8,410) (17,823)
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs B A 7 58 57
Interest income FE A 5 (1,032) (467)
Loss on lease termination #E A B 6 - 44
Depreciation of property, plant and & R
equipment 8 715 970
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 187 ) RE & T 5 8 744 701
Reversal of write-down of inventories to A7 55 Ul 438 I = ] s B R
net realisable value 8 — (565)
Impairment loss on financial assets, net S A UE NG 1R TR — 651
Fair value losses on financial assets at &N U AEFE AR 45 10 4 Rl A
fair value through profit or loss FY 2> B R 18 6 - 124
Gain on disposal on financial assets at fair A A E R AR 45 1 A Rl
value through profit or loss R AR 6 (6,600) -
Employee share-based compensation benefits & B I 13 #i 15 4@ F 1,327 9
(13,198) (16,299)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 17 & 9‘/ (3 0m) 523 (2,016)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B 5y W i A B b / (38 Jim) 102 (10,421)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TA A BT ~ i 4 e HAih R Wi
other receivables A D 472 4,025
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables B 5 Ko HoAth JRE A5 FCIE I JE St
and accruals & Y 5 m (842) 23
Cash used in operations K8 T B 4 (12,943) (24,688)
Interest elements of lease payments FHE A 3K 00 R E 3R 4 (58) (57)
Income tax paid B AF T 5B (45) (51)
Net cash flows used in operating activities A0 05 T BT B 4 R TR AR (13,046) (24,796)
Wk R A PR A B
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_ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Zallaemak
For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 20253 31H 1L
2025
20254
HK$’000
TF#n
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BEE G By 5 BB R R
ACTIVITIES
Interest received i ) & 1,032 467
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets W R A EFE AR AR
at fair value through profit or loss 4 E E T AT SOH 13,875 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B B Bk = (437)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Wi i IF 22 B 1 A (207) -
Net cash flows generated from investing OB S By T A B A R T AR
activities 14,700 30
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING fih 5 9 By P 1 Bl & R
ACTIVITIES
Principal elements of lease payments FEL 5 ASF 35 8 A < 8 16(b) (814) (715)
Interest elements of lease payments L A 3 L35 4 16(b) 58 -
Net cash flows used in financing Pl 0 B BT B 4 U R TR A
activities (756) (715)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH B34 & B & % [ ¥ 3 i~ (W )
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ekl 898 (25,481)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4 ] B 4x & Bl & &) 36,394 62,648
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes H1 T FEE %6 5 ) 114 5% 28 (1,012) (773)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERBRERBREEHED
AT END OF YEAR 21 36,280 36,394
Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Domaine Power Holdings Limited (formerly known as Hifood Group
Holdings Co., Limited) (the “Company”) was incorporated as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 6
June 2014. The registered office address of the Company is located at
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1108, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is Unit 2203A,
22/F, Wu Chung House, 213 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 11 March 2015 (the “Listing”).

During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) were principally involved in the manufacture
and sale of jewellery products, and the trading of precious metals and raw
jewellery materials to customers in Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of the
Company is Perfect Gain Group Limited, which was incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, and the ultimate controlling shareholder is Dr. So
Shu Fai.

B By A 5 e A W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
202543 31H 1L

o ) e 5 R

e A R A w2 V6 A 1 AR P iR
HIRAW) (T4 27 ] R20144F6 H 6 H 75 BH
SHEEMR L A EREARAF - AL
w0 5 9 g5 & Mtk 2% Windward 3, Regatta
Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1108, Cayman Islands > ﬁﬁﬁf%%%iﬂgﬁﬁﬁ
AT 2 5 R 213 98 8K B 22422034
oo AN F MM E B201543 H11 H R &
WA 2 5 A IR A A (TH 22 BT D) T b
(= A

P FE 20253 H31 H IEFE s AN A KH
B JBG 2n ) (AR RR T AS B2 ) - B4 3 5 A s I
oK B TR BN B R U M
LB R RE M EE S -
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- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 B 5 R R M R
For the year ended 31 March 2025
{ B E 2025930 31H 1L

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 2w KEEEER &)

Information about subsidiaries A B JB§ 2 W) i R
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2025 R 202543 H 31 H » A | 32 52 [t i A\ &F
are as follows: TR

KTL Jewellery Holdings Group Limited British Virgin Islands HK$1,950,009 100 - Investment holding
SHRHBERAMARLT  RRAR D L5500091E T B
KTL Management Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of management services to intra-group
=MERARA A B 10,0009 70 companies
1] 4 [ i 24 ) B 3 R
K.T.L. Development Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding and provision of car rental
=MEZHRAR R 10,0009 7T service to inter-group companies
BRI R B 8 R AR AR L
e
KTL (Guangzhou) Jewellery Limited* ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland HK$10,000,000 - 100 Manufacture of jewellery
HEA (B 5 A7 B2 7]+ B K B 10,000,000 # 7 3 3
Guangzhou KTL Jewellery Limited* PRC/Chinese Mainland HK$10,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and trading of jewellery
BT FAETaMERAR B PRk 10,000,000 J¢ KU RE S
KTL Jewellery Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Manufacture and trading of jewellery products,
(“KTL Trading”) H ik 10,000 7G precious metals and raw jewellery materials and
SMKEEHARAR investment holding
([=MEEES) WEEML  REW - REEM G R
* These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign-owned enterprises under * W% S5 B B 2w AR v I A T 2 A 1
PRC law. B o

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or

formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) as issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 March 2025. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(o) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

B By A 5 e A W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
202543 31H 1L

oy ) B B OB (0

R T B 2 ) Rk (4)

b RBVRA ] Wi 2 R 5 T R
% 45 W o> ) AR TR AR AR R B K
MINAEBEEFEHL TEMD - HHR
Ry FES AR B 2 R 2 BRI E S BUR A
Il

€t BUR

2.1
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 0 S i R M
For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 2025434318 LR
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is

accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the
related assets, liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the
exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
accumulated losses, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group has directly disposed of the related assets or

liabilities.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRS Accounting

Standards for the first time for the current year’s financial

B By A 5 e A W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#2025 3 31H IR

2. EHHEUR (8D

22 GEtBRAKEZED

A AR T TE AR AR T B R B R
F LR #8557 B9 A s B TS R E A

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Amendments to HKAS 1
Current or Non-current

(the “2020 Amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and

Classification of Liabilities as

Rt aE

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HKEFRS 7

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRS Accounting

Standards are described below:

(@)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the
seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain
or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. Since the
Group has no sale and leaseback transactions with variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
occurring from the date of initial application of HKFRS
16, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as
an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not
impact its classification. The 2022 Amendments further
clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from
a loan arrangement, only those with which an entity
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current.
Additional disclosures are required for non-current
liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with
future covenants within 12 months after the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 0 S i R M
For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 2025434318 LR
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2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of its
liabilities as at 1 April 2023 and 2024 and concluded
that the classification of its liabilities as current or non-
current remained unchanged upon initial application of the
amendments. Accordingly, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended
to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. As the
Group does not have supplier finance arrangements, the
amendments did not have any impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

2.3  Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRS Accounting Standards, that have been issued but are not

yet effective, in these financial statements. The Group intends to

apply these new and revised HKFRS Accounting Standards, if

applicable, when they become effective.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements’
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 21

Accountability: Disclosures’

Amendments to the
Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instruments’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Lack of Exchangeability'

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Amendments to HKFRS

Accounting Standards —
Volume 11

1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7°

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2027

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards
(Continued)

Further information about those HKFRS Accounting Standards
that are expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

HKEFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
While a number of sections have been brought forward from
HKAS 1 with limited changes, HKFRS 18 introduces new
requirements for presentation within the statement of profit or
loss, including specified totals and subtotals. Entities are required
to classify all income and expenses within the statement of
profit or loss into one of the five categories: operating, investing,
financing, income taxes and discontinued operations and to
present two new defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures
about management-defined performance measures in a single
note and introduces enhanced requirements on the grouping
(aggregation and disaggregation) and the location of information
in both the primary financial statements and the notes. Some
requirements previously included in HKAS 1 are moved to
HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors, which is renamed as HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of
Financial Statements. As a consequence of the issuance of HKFRS
18, limited, but widely applicable, amendments are made to
HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings per Share
and HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition, there are
minor consequential amendments to other HKFRS Accounting
Standards. HKFRS 18 and the consequential amendments to
other HKFRS Accounting Standards are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027 with earlier
application permitted. Retrospective application is required. The
Group is currently analysing the new requirements and assessing
the impact of HKFRS 18 on the presentation and disclosure of
the consolidated financial statements.

HKEFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply reduced
disclosure requirements while still applying the recognition,
measurement and presentation requirements in other HKFRS
Accounting Standards. To be eligible, at the end of the reporting
period, an entity must be a subsidiary as defined in HKFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements, cannot have public
accountability and must have a parent (ultimate or intermediate)
that prepares consolidated financial statements available for
public use which comply with HKFRS Accounting Standards.
Earlier application is permitted. As the Company is a listed
company, it is not eligible to elect to apply HKFRS 19. Some
of the Company’s subsidiaries are considering the application of
HKEFRS 19 in their specified financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Amendments to
the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments
clarify the date on which a financial asset or financial liability
is derecognised and introduce an accounting policy option
to derecognise a financial liability that is settled through
an electronic payment system before the settlement date if
specified criteria are met. The amendments clarify how to
assess the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets
with environmental, social and governance and other similar
contingent features. Moreover, the amendments clarify the
requirements for classifying financial assets with non-recourse
features and contractually linked instruments. The amendments
also include additional disclosures for investments in equity
instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial instruments with contingent features. The
amendments shall be applied retrospectively with an adjustment
to opening retained profits (or other component of equity) at
the initial application date. Prior periods are not required to be
restated and can only be restated without the use of hindsight.
Earlier application of either all the amendments at the same time
or only the amendments related to the classification of financial
assets is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting
from a downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of
assets constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA. However, the

amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and
how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement
date when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of financial statements
to understand the impact of a currency not being exchangeable.
Earlier application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments shall be recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or to
the cumulative amount of translation differences accumulated in
a separate component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of
initial application. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards —
Volume 11 set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7 (and the
accompanying Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7), HKFRS
9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of the amendments that are
expected to be applicable to the Group are as follows:

d HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The
amendments have updated certain wording in paragraph
B38 of HKFRS 7 and paragraphs IG1, IG14 and 1G20B
of the Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7 for the
purpose of simplification or achieving consistency with
other paragraphs in the standard and/or with the concepts
and terminology used in other standards. In addition, the
amendments clarify that the Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7 does not necessarily illustrate all the
requirements in the referenced paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor
does it create additional requirements. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

o HKEFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments clarify
that when a lessee has determined that a lease liability
has been extinguished in accordance with HKFRS 9, the
lessee is required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of HKFRS 9
and recognise any resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. In
addition, the amendments have updated certain wording in
paragraph 5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A of HKFRS
9 to remove potential confusion. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards
(Continued)

o HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The
amendments clarify that the relationship described in
paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just one example of
various relationships that might exist between the investor
and other parties acting as de facto agents of the investor,
which removes the inconsistency with the requirement
in paragraph B73 of HKFRS 10. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

o HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments
replace the term “cost method” with “at cost” in
paragraph 37 of HKAS 7 following the prior deletion
of the definition of “cost method”. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Material accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level I — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g. a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i1) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4  Material accounting policies (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

@

(i1)

(iii)

@iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment and computers 20% to 33%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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2.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Properties 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

The Group's right-of-use assets are separately disclosed in

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 0 S i R M
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2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4  Material accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the

payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g.,
a change to future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option

to purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are separately disclosed in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of car park lots (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a

purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”

below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the

asset.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments are also
recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of

consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual

terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the

default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. The Group considers that there has been a
significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

B By A 5 e A W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
202543 31H 1L

2. EHHEUR (8D

2.4

K &k BOR (81)

R 1k e VR 4 i A ()

DA ROy OETT R 2
LT 9 A DA R T B 4 ) 2K
i 2 S e o A < A AR A R A

4 il S TR A

AR T A 45 2 SAERE AR R A
BT A OB TR SE S SR 4R ([
W5 S s 18 ) fle SR A o TEDIAS SR
EEDAR- YN E SRR R TV RSSO A )
i DL A A 9 R S0 SCICR) T A B
Z TR B 22 8 i E - Sl L JRUE PR R SR
AT AR G B o T B U RN LA
B BT FRHEA B B & i B s RS 4
K B oAt £ B2 48 TH A s

— Ty i

T 5 6 e 18 20 w9 8 1 B e a2 o kA
T UCHE 8 LA A B B Sl 48 B
i {5 B8R B M = o TN (S B 1R R
A 12418 A TR AT RE B AR A 35 IR B
19 15 & s 18 (1218 A (5 Bk 18) 5
PR o b 1 YRk RD DL AR A B L B
H R B Y R AR R R T S
I i AR IR AR R A R BR R JELBR A
TR Y TE 15 B R 1 2 2R R B e 4R 4B A
(EMEMGEEER)

A i H O A SR T AT A e T
B 5 S0 B B T Ol s LU S 1 B
HHIN o AT FEAL B AR g
e H O R R A R A R
B BEL RS 1 W R WA B T L AR
H 2 A T B o 0 B B R G A B
IR ZR4E 2 it [ R A SOH g BY a4 15
B R > B R TR KR DE R R o i
A &) I 30 B B AS 4 J R
Ty s B R OK e BT

fist & %1 3KE A Woo H > HI AR 48 [ 32
& A o SR TR TR
o it PR S R A0 O R BEUR o AR wE
A KR [T A AT 0 4R B R T 5 O
AT > A SR [ OR AT BE 4 MU IROR 2
A B AR SR I AT RE RE A
B A o 5 A PR R A A
Bl o P A E o

IRl A R 2 ]
SRTHARRRE

125



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 0 S i R M
For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 2025434318 LR

126

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under

the general approach and they are classified within the following

stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which

apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an

amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit- impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplitied approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are all classified, at initial recognition, as

financial liabilities at amortised cost.

These financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,

net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables
and lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate

amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any

estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within
three months that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value held

for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s

cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset,
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included as finance
costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is

intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from sales of goods and
gold jewellery where the Group concludes that it is the principal
of the arrangement. When considering whether the Group is the
principal or agent in the arrangement, the Group has determined
that it controls the rights to the specified goods prior to transfer
of such goods to the customer. The Group is the primary obligor
and contracts with its customers as the owner of the underlying
goods. The Group also has inventory risk before entering into
a contract with any customer. Additionally, the Group has sole
discretion in establishing the price for the specified goods.

Sales of goods

The Group's revenue is mainly derived from sales of goods.
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group
transfers the control of goods to the customer and no longer
reserves any right to continue to manage and implement
effective control which is often associated with the goods, and
costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably. The
revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on prices received
or receivable from the customer according to the contract or
agreement. A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before

the payment is due.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the

Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
vest fully once made and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.

Share-based compensation benefits

The Company operates a share scheme. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services in exchange
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”). The cost
of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note 25 to

the consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as

at the beginning and end of that period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Share-based compensation benefits (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards,
but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part
of the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions
attached to an award, but without an associated service
requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-
vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet

recognised for the award is recognised immediately.

Options which are cancelled prior to their exercise date or lapse
are deleted from the register of outstanding options. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
the employee share-based compensation benefits is transferred to

retained profits as a movement in reserves.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in HKS$, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are

recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of monetary
items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of,
at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences
on those monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive

income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Material accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the

advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries established in
Mainland China and overseas are currencies other than HKS$.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into HK$ at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, expect to the extent that the differences are
attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that

particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of certain subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland
and overseas are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of these entities which arise throughout the year are
translated into HK$ at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

Events after the reporting period

If the Group receives information after the reporting period,
but prior to the date of authorisation for issue, about conditions
that existed at the end of the reporting period, it will assess
whether the information affects the amounts that it recognises
in its financial statements. The Group will adjust the amounts
recognised in its financial statements to reflect any adjusting
events after the reporting period and update the disclosures that
relate to those conditions in light of the new information. For
non-adjusting events after the reporting period, the Group will
not change the amounts recognised in its financial statements,
but will disclose the nature of the non-adjusting events and an
estimate of their financial effects, or a statement that such an
estimate cannot be made, if applicable.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 2025434318 LR

136

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATE

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is based on the estimated selling price
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal with
reference to prevailing market information. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience in selling
goods of a similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in market conditions. The Group reassesses the net realisable
value of inventories at the end of each reporting period. Further details

are contained in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fok 5 S 5 o W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 2025437 31H IR

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and disaggregated revenue

information is as follows:

L&Y Tigi g

A AR T 9 Wi i e 23 R WA R EERE R AT AT

2025

20254

HK$°000

T# %

Revenue recognised at a point in time A TR (] 6 Tl 58 9 Ui 25
— Sales of jewellery products — S R E 167,542 140,198
— Sales of precious metals and — R &

raw jewellery materials R M R 17,935 86,556
185,477 226,754

(i)  Operating segment

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sale of
jewellery products, trading of precious metals and raw jewellery
materials. Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision
makers, who have been identified as the executive directors
of the Company. Information reported to the Group’s chief
operating decision makers, for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, focuses on the operating results of
the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources are integrated.
Accordingly, the Group has identified one reportable operating
segment and no further analysis thereof is presented.

@

R o1k

A SR T E A g R T 6 RO E
DY'S A P8 U g
& T MR R R (T A
Ty AN R AT ) AR B A i
SE KE o HE o it E U O BE K S BT A
1] 7% 48 [ R R O 0 B R
5 E A AR R RE AR AT R TE
RAEENERC B S B, A4
Pl ) — {1 T i K B B
e 250 B — 20 e

IRl A R 2 ]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 B 5 R R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2025

#E 20253 31H 1L

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4.

(ii)  Geographical segment

(a) Revenue from external customers
Information about the Group’s revenue by geographical
location is presented based on the jurisdiction or country
in which the external customer is located.

W 25 & 43 78 & B (s
(i) M
(@ RHEIE P #K
9 I A b 3 ) 3 0 A 4R ] e 7%

BT ARAR SN S B A ) I
R 25

2025
20254

HK$°000
T

Hong Kong B
Chinese Mainland TN

180 91,997
185,297 134,757

185,477 226,754

(b)  Non-current assets excluding financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Information about the Group’s non-current assets,
excluding financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, is presented based on the locations of
the assets.

(b)

T By B (O L 46 4% & Fu fH &t
O\ FH 45 Y < A R DA B EE A TEAT
K~ 4 B B Al AR Y
il ¥ )

AR T OE U B B O RS A
FeAB FF AR S5 #Y 2 DL R s
AT SO ~ 2 4 R H At 8 ik
TE Y 4 B ) 1 BRI ARE
7 JIT 7E 1 i, 2 51 o

2025
20254F

HK$°000
T

Hong Kong ik
Chinese Mainland LT NS

2,361 2,261
143 257

2,504 2,518

The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands while the
Group operates its business in Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland.
During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, no revenue was
generated from any customer in the Cayman Islands and no assets
were located in the Cayman Islands.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B By W 5 e A M

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 202543 31H IR

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(iii) Information about major customers

(iv)

)

Revenue from each major customer which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group's revenue for the year, including sales to a
group of entities which are known to be under common control

with that customer, is set out below:

4. WaR Kooy B E B ()

(i) FHEBEREFNER

ERA BRSO A £ W
W %5 10% 2% LA B (BLHE 1) B %0 B 5% &
JF e ] £ 7 B — AR B AR 0 B )
A

2025
20254
HK$°000
T#u
Customer A H#FA 157,883 100,801
Customer B FB - 82,224
Liabilities related to contracts with customers vy ZEAAMBEARE
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities HEVE A B & S B AR
There was no revenue recognised in the current reporting period A 1A A I R R B 4E g A 40 B K
relating to carried-forward contract liabilities (2024: Nil). AH BE Y U 25 (2024 4F © 4EE) o
Performance obligations v) BAHERME

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of jewellery products

The Group’s performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the products and payment is generally due within 120 days (2024:
120 days) from delivery for major customers.

Sales of precious metals and raw jewellery materials

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
precious metals and raw jewellery materials and payment is
generally due within 20 to 120 days (2024: 20 to 120 days) from
delivery.

No transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are disclosed as at
31 March 2025 and 2024 because all the remaining performance
obligations are a part of contracts that have an original expected
duration of one year or less.

A B JB 2 AT EORH I

BB E N

A4 ] B A AT BE A A8 A R A
— R EEEF LA #1120 H (2024
4E 120 H) A EI AR -

B 8B A8 &5k R AR

A% 4L BB A AT R R 4 R Bk E R M
AE AT IR K — MR B 3SR EF 20
H #=120H (20244 : 20H £120H ) "
B WIAF K o

42025 K 202443 H 31 H - HE2E B 5%
4y B &R R B &) BT (R B R a8
REMR) ML GERK FRETART
B A AT ¥ 5 R TE R B — 4F 5
DLR B AR — 5B o

IRl A R 2 ]
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 20253 31H 1L

5. OTHERINCOME

5. HiblA

2025
20254
HK$’000
T# %
Government grants*® B Al B 3 23
Interest income from bank deposits SRAT AR RS A 161 467
Interest income from financial assets at fair value through A S AR AR 45 0 4 S E
profit or loss FE YA 871 -
Others HoAy 74 196
1,109 686
* Government grants were received by a subsidiary of the Company in * A5 A — [ e R R R A W) i BCBRT

Chinese Mainland as government subsidies. There are no unfulfilled

conditions or contingencies in relation to the grants.

6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through

IR S SR T o

6. H i W 73 B s 4H o ¥ A

2025
2025 4F

HK$°000
T

ey el FE AR AR 10 E E

il Bl A O 4l S o M908 A5 B A B Y o 2

profit or loss 2 B B - 124
Gain on disposal on financial assets at fair value through AR # A S A FE VIR A5 1Y 4

profit or loss 7 I AR (6,600) —
Loss on lease termination &L E - 44
Foreign exchange differences, net HNHE MR A A A > VRER (149) (245)
Other (gains)/losses, net HoAth (W 35), 1R > REE (6,749) 77)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 o 5 R W R

For the year ended 31 March 2025

B E 202543 31H IL4F T

FINANCE COSTS 7. BAE AR
2025
20254F
HK$’000
T#T
Interest on lease liabilities & A SRR 58 57
LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. BRBLHI S H
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): A AE T R B T TR AR A B (REA) R A1 £ TR
3= % &
2025
20254F
HK$’000
T# T
Cost of inventories sold B E R A 183,572 224,299
Employee benefits (including directors’ remuneration) 1§ B & Al (£ 1% # g5 37 1) 9,672 10,237
Salaries and other benefits 4 Mo HoAth A 25 9,316 9,859
Pension scheme contributions FERINE A R 356 378
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment LERN NS R 14 715 970
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i ME & E T e 16(a) 744 701
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value F2 08 S A AR 45 1 4 Rl A 1Y
through profit or loss VNVIWEEN <E i} - 124
Gain on disposal on financial assets at fair value % R (B R A A Y 4
through profit or loss j € 17(1) (6,600) -
Auditors’ remuneration 12 S0l P 4 1,660 1,590
Auditor of the Company EN/NIR % i di] 1,500 1,500
Other auditors HCAth, % B 160 90
Lease payments not included in the measurement A~ FTAHH B BT ARO AL A R
of lease liabilities 142 209
Reversal of write-down of inventories to net A7 B W g ) &=
realisable value A 5 B (E 1) = (565)
Impairment loss on financial assets, net G A WE R VA = 651
(i) The inventories were not write-down or reversal of write-down (i) B E 20253 H31 H IEF B > 178 84
to net realisable value for the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: 50 B DRk 438 R 3 T 8 B (E (2024 4F -
reversal of write-down of inventories to net realisable value of A7 & i 1 0] 2= 0] 58 B (E 565,000 #5
HK$565,000) is included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated JC) wF A &5 G 1 5 M A 4 T 0 4 R
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. o8 & LA -
Wk R A PR A B
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 A 95 e A B

For the year ended 31 March 2025

#E 20253 31H 1L

9. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9. HEHHEM KAE R
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules NIRRT A S IR R A A
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong T BRI b T R ) B A A R Ak 2R
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and section 383(1)(a), (b), () and (f) 383(1)@) > (b) * (© KO A KA A (4% 5% &
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and part 2 of the Companies 3R] g EORE) BB A5 T B B 0 HE S
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as /(1IN
follows:

2025
2025 4F
HK$’000
T ¥
Fees 4 4,563 4,428
Other emoluments: Al B 4
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind g AN K E WA £ 254 5
Pension scheme contributions AR A Bt K - -
4,817 4,433
(1) Independent non-executive directors 1 BWxIFEHMITESR
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the L ZE 2025 4F K 20244F3 H 31 H IE4F L
years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 were as follows: TR FEPATE ST -

2025
2025 4F

HK$°000

Yau Pak Yue AR Hir 133 132

Chung Wai Man #19 R 133 132

Ning Rui (Note i) A (K 5ED 55 132

Lin Ying (Note ii) OB (B 310 78 -

399 396

Notes B 51

i Resigned as independent non-executive director on 1 September i R202449 1 H BFAE 8 3 JF AT 8
2024, redesignated as non-executive director on 1 September Ho 3R 2024489 1 1 H BAAE 5 IR AT
2024. H o

ii Appointed as independent non-executive director on 1 September ii R 202449 H1 A M AR 5 M o0 IF B
2024. friidio

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent B A 202543 H31 H L4 B > 3 M 2 Ah

non-executive directors during the year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: JREASH 8 57 FF AT 00 35 (2024 4F

Nil). &) -
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fok 5 S 5 o W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 202543 31H IR

9. HHHEM KB R (4)

(Continued)
(2) Executive directors and non-executive director 2 PHITEFRIEAGTES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Termination  and benefits scheme
Fees benefits in kind contributions Total
Wi 4~ b B K &
Wme EBmEA REWR&E sFBgts fa st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T ¥t Tt T# T T ¥t
2025 2025 4%
Executive directors ATHE F
So Shu Fai TR B MR 2,040 = = = 2,040
Tom Xie AR 1,702 = 254 = 1,956
Non-executive director FEHATHE S
Chan Wai Dune it A4 ity 266 - - - 266
Ning Rui (Re-designated %% (i 2024 5
on 1 September 2024) 9H1H ML) 156 - - - 156
4,164 - 254 - 4,418
2024 2024 4F
Executive directors ATH F
So Shu Fai R A 1,980 - - - 1,980
Tom Xie A A A 1,788 - 4 - 1,792
Non-executive director FHAITHES
Chan Wai Dune I 4 ity 264 - 1 - 265
4,032 - 5 - 4,037
Wk R A PR A B
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. i NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 &5 BB i 3R B RE:
For the year ended 31 March 2025
202543 31H ILAFEE
9. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 9. P A K HE 4% ()
(Continued)
(2) Executive directors and non-executive director (Continued) 2 FITEFRIERATES (H)
During the year ended 31 March 2025, no consideration was TE# 20253 31 A IE4E N A A
provided to or receivable by third parties for making available A B At T S5 IR B I A5 = T 4 AR AR A R
directors’ services (2024: Nil). There are no loans, quasi-loans or M 2R = 7 W AR A (2024 4F ¢ ) o i
other dealings in favour of the directors, their controlled bodies B~ BB R ECH A A A R R
corporate and connected entities (2024: Nil). T P o i N I R B R R 0 2
(20244F : f®) -
10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. h#&wHMIER
The five highest paid employees during the year included two directors RN 4 o R B A4S T 4 (2024 4F ¢
(2024: two), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. W %) &> HFHM I &0 E SO i o H
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2024: i =4 (20244F © = 44) e i SR 2 09 4F 1R
three) highest paid employees are as follows: R .
2025
20254F
HK$’000
T# T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Bra o HAG KCE Y A 5 6,552 2,907
Pension scheme contributions FERINE T R 54 54
6,606 2,961
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose remuneration P 4 B LA T R Y IF O S R B A
fell within the following bands is as follows: B
2025
20254F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Tx 1,000,000%% 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7T % 1,500,000 #& 7T - 1
3 3
Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B By W 5 e A M

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 202543 31H IR

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11.

The income tax of the Group has been provided at the applicable tax
rates on estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong and Chinese

Mainland during the year.

Fie 15 Bt B 52

N ARG B s Kb O B E R
9 Al 1 HE SR B i ) S 8 B R 4R BT A5 B
{4 -

2025
2025 4F
HK$°000
T#
Current — Hong Kong B0
Charge for the year AEIN = -
Current — Chinese Mainland R — v [ K e
Charge for the year AR R 3T 46 13
Under-provision in prior years AR B A AN 2 = 51
Total tax expense for the year 4 T B8 TE BH S A0 46 64
(i) Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands corporate G MHEHREAABEABSHENNE
income tax i 43 Bt
The Company is not subject to any taxation in the Cayman AN B B B S B I AT ] B TE o
Islands.
The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in the British Virgin ARNFI R BT B S ([ B4
Islands (“BVI”) are not subject to any taxation in the BVI. REES D) BRI R ST Y B 4w O ZH B
A R A T R = AT AR B o
(i) Hong Kong profits tax (i) B

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong
are subject to Hong Kong profits tax at the rate of 16.5%
(2024: 16.5%). The operation in Hong Kong has incurred net
accumulated operating losses for income tax purposes and no
income tax provisions are recorded for the year ended 31 March
2025 (2024: Nil).

ARy T A U ST Y B A R ZE
¥ 16.5% (2024 4F 1 16.5%) M Bl 2K 8 4
FWAGB - T AR S > I FWB
MEHKCESAZFAESHERTE &
#20254F3 H 31 H 1E4F BE I 4 % A5 BT 15
MG (2024 4F © ) o

IRl A R 2 ]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 2025434318 LR
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11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

CIT provision was made on the estimated assessable profits
of entities within the Group established in the PRC and was
calculated in accordance with the relevant regulations of the
PRC after considering the available tax benefits from refunds
and allowances. The general PRC CIT rate was 25% for the years
ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

PRC withholding income tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Chinese Mainland. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Chinese Mainland
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by the subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland to foreign
shareholders in respect of earnings generated. As of 31 March
2025 and 2024, the directors of the Company estimated that the
retained earnings of the PRC subsidiaries would be retained in
Chinese Mainland for use in future operations and investments.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future
to their foreign shareholders. As at 31 March 2025, the aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised amounted to HK$1,206,000 (2024:
HK$725,000).

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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Fie 45 Bt BA 32 (40)

(iii)

(iv)

o B 4 3 P 9 B (14 38 P 14 B2 )

4 3 T 1S B A AR BE A S R R R
BT BB 0 A S RE SR B v A AE
T A P M B R R R e s AT
TEAS Y AR B R e e S B U fE o R E
20254F K 20244F3 H31 H IEF B> — %
oI A 2 T A BB R Sy 25% o

R TRy

MR b B A 2 BT A5 B 0L o i P R R
B SE Y A0 B A% A 2 2E s ) A B g
FE IR R E B2 10% T8 0B - il R
B A e BEL A R 1 R T e R A R
i A B 15 e &y > JU) T 4 I 7 0 B R
OB o DL > AR SR T ZE kR b K B
A ST A B S 7ok BT EE AR 7R 1) i
AN Y IR 0 B S A AL o R
20254F K 20244 F3 H31H » KA A #HE
A =t BB 2 )G AR B8 2 R K R R
R K B DA R A A R A -
B 5y %L MHE A RR K AT RE R AT
SR A 1) H i AN Ry TR w% 45 R e
R 20254F3 H 31 B > B o B K [ B
Al B A B o e R R 4E Bl JE A R
T IRy M 25 AE AR 151,206,000 8 T (2024
4 1 725,000 9C) ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ‘
A% B U B R M R
For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 20253 31H IE4F &
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11, J 13 B B 32 (#0)
A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax at the Fi A s 1Y 5 08 B R EH B R BR B AT e 1
statutory tax rate of Hong Kong to the tax expense at the effective tax 14 0 JEL G S BRL 4 BT IR B R H1OE 9 B TE BA 3
rate, is as follows: HIEHRT -

2025
2025 4F

HKS$’000
Tt

Loss before tax [ i A7 s 48 (8,410) (17,823)

Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5% P75 s 15 BL2616.5% 71 1 Bl I

% (1,388) (2,941)
Under-provision in prior years AT AR B AR = 51
Different tax rates for specific provinces or 2 AR R R B AR 5 b 7
enacted by local authority % R LA 1 AN (] B 2R 847 2,472
Income not subject to tax HJE BRI A (160) (246)
Expenses not deductible for tax ASw] B B 32 220 147
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised TR e T IR M 2 A I B R 249 113
Tax losses utilised from previous periods T ) JH i 1 0 W] Bl JE s 4H 92) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R e FRBE T s 18 1) BT e 370 468
Tax expense/(credit) at the Group’s effective tax rate Fig A A ) B BB R EE Y B E
B3 (K %R) 46 64
There was no share of tax attributable to a joint venture during the year B A 20253 H31 H BB WA & AT
ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil). JE A B TE (2024 4F © JE) o
DIVIDEND 12. kB
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the g R # A 2 20254F3 H31 H IEAEJE
year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: Nil). TR AT A I BB, (2024 4F © 4E) -
I AE I A PR 2w

TROEAERE 147



A5

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B U 5 e A W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 20253 31H 1L

13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 13, B2 5 ¥ R A R AN RE AN 4 B S 4R
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss for the BRAEARERIIRBEA LA S EREGFE
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and the N RE A AE N B 48 & AE TN B AT LR S
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. HEF- P4 BT o
For the year ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, the effects of all A2 2025 K2024F3 H31 H IE4F B> 5 &
outstanding share options and share awards were excluded from the g 1 S M L IR I T RORT R R AT I
computation of diluted loss per share as their effects were anti-dilutive. JBCHE T JBe 10y 5 B 119 52 2 > TR 2 BR Y B AL
L
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y3~ BB Kot i
Office
Leasehold Furniture and equipment Motor
improvements fixtures and computers vehicles Total
(Y ¥ 3]
ML % RKHE Je B H At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T
Year ended 31 March 2025 B E 202543 A 31 H IE4FJE
At 1 April 2024: 2024411 -
Cost A 1,837 3 564 5,138 7,542
Accumulated depreciation ESER (1,266) (3) (338) (4,463) (6,070)
Impairment B H - - - (542) (542)
Net carrying amount % T 5 (A 571 - 226 133 930
Net carrying amount: i T VA -
At 1 April 2024 202444 A1 H 571 = 226 133 930
Depreciation provided A N R TR
during the year (450) = (132) (133) (715)
At 31 March 2025 202583 H31H 121 - 94 - 215
At 31 March 2025: A20254F3 431 H
Cost JEA 1,837 3 564 5,138 7,542
Accumulated depreciation s (1,716) (3) (470) (4,596) (6,785)
Impairment E - - - (542) (542)
Net carrying amount I T 9 1 121 - 94 - 215
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 o 5 R W R ‘

For the year ended 31 March 2025 A

B E 202543 31H L4 Z '

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. W3~ BB Kot (a0

Year ended 31 March 2024 W 202443 A 31 A IL4E
At 1 April 2023: 2023410 ¢
Cost JEA 1,525 3 439 5,138 7,105
Accumulated depreciation Rt (647) @) (188) (4,263) (5,100)
Impairment WA - - - (542) (542)
Net carrying amount I TR V3 1 878 1 251 333 1,463
Net carrying amount: MR T O
At 1 April 2023 202384 H1H 878 1 251 333 1,463
Additions wE 312 - 125 - 437
Depreciation provided FRFHRITE
during the year (619) @ (150) (200) (970)
At 31 March 2024 J# 2024473 131 H 571 - 226 133 930
At 31 March 2024: 2024473 31 H ¢
Cost A 1,837 3 564 5,138 7,542
Accumulated depreciation Bt (1,266) 3) (338) (4,463) (6,070
Impairment E - - - (542) (542)
Net carrying amount R T 9 571 - 226 133 930
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B HEE
Intangible assets represented club memberships which have no specific T S R i AR R R R R A I A B
maturity dates pursuant to the terms and conditions of the memberships. BRI H ARSI R - H g ERNA
They are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an IR N I R R (= i R R = N
indication that they may be impaired. During the year, the directors of N o AR S ) 3 2 58 27 4 TE AT ¥ Y T (.
the Company are of the opinion that no impairment loss was incurred 15 w8 A NI A B A U i R R T (B A A
with reference to the market value of each of the intangible assets, so the ANEE o

carrying amount remained unchanged.

Sl P A R 4 )
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 A 95 e A B

For the year ended 31 March 2025

#E 2025437 31H 1L
16. LEASES 16. M
The Group as a lessee 7 4 A s R AN
The Group leases properties and rental contracts are made for fixed A A E Y AN EE MR B34
periods of 3 years (2024: 2 years or 3 years). (2024 4F : 24F B3 4F) ©
(@  Right-of-use assets (@ T RHEE PE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the A I (R IR T % 4 T A )
movements during the year are as follows: mr

At 1 April 2023 R202354H1H 1,223
Additions A 778
Lease termination & IEFHE (437)
Depreciation charge 185 28 1 (701)
Exchange realignment i 5, 77 #& 1
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 202443 H 31 H }2024F4H 1 H 864
Additions NE 1,449
Depreciation charge 185 28 1 (744)
Exchange realignment i 5, 77 #& (4)
At 31 March 2025 202543 A 31 H 1,565
(b)  Lease liabilities by HMEARE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements THEAERIE L AENZENT :

during the year are as follows:

2025
20254F
HK$’000
T#
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year A4 2 B T 903 1,278
Additions A 1,449 778
Lease termination #OEHE = (438)
Accretion of interest recognised during the year A TN HfE R R R 18 58 57
Payments Kk (814) (772)
Carrying amount at the end of the year AR R 2 MR T E 1,596 903
Analysed into: GrET A
Current portion R0 358 4 739 565
Non-current portion FF B 857 338
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 32 to LB & 6 B 19 L4 AT R A 6 BB
the consolidated financial statements. R FE32P 5% -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fok 5 S 5 o W

For the year ended 31 March 2025

HE2025%3H 31H 1L

16. LEASES (Continued)

A 45 1A 2y R AL (50)
TR A5 o R RR RO AL B B R R

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as

LT B R

HE A MRS

o7 P 9 B

e 403 FEL R B B S
(GE A8 B A 12

Loss from lease termination

Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in cost of sales and
administrative expenses)

A H e RS Y A8 AR

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated

statement of cash flows is as follows:

Operating activities

Financing activities

2025
2025 4F
HK$°000
T# 7t
- 44
58 57
744 701
142 209
944 1,011
HEeEmERNWHER SR E
2025
20254F
HK$°000
Tt
188 296
756 715
944 1,011
Sl P A R 4 )
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
7 W B A W R
For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 2025437 31H 1L
17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17. &2 Sl st A48 i 00 & il i
PROFIT OR LOSS
(i)  Classification of financial assets at fair value through (i) MWARMEFIABEWERE RSN
profit or loss
The Group classifies the following financial assets at fair value AR I DL 4 R E o BB R A R
through profit or loss: [EG WA= E
. debt instruments that do not qualify for measurement . RAF G i 8 A S A A
at either amortised cost or at fair value through other FECH A A T 0 g R A RS
comprehensive income; TH;
. equity investments that are held for trading; and . FHEE SN RAKRE &
. equity investments for which the entity has not elected . B SN0 08 R 0 o At 4 T R 4
to recognise fair value gains or losses through other T 58 2 o {45 B s 1R 1 I A
comprehensive income. B
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss /NS I NG > Bl iR I < g )
include the following: FHLLE 50
2025
20254
HK$’000
T#u
Included in non-current assets: st A JE W B) B -
Hong Kong listed equity securities (note a) W TR R (M k)
— Lisi Group (Holdings) Limited — P RE AL 1 (B A PR AR = 5,052
— Redsum Properties Group Limited — 5L Bl E A A PR A F - 199
— China Anchu Energy Storage Group Limited ~— — 1 [ % fath i VR4 ) A PR
A - 2,024
An unlisted equity security (note b) IE b B RERE F5 (W 5Eb)
— China U-Ton Future Space Industrial Group ~— — Hh I A R PR 2 ] S
Holdings Led. WA ﬁﬁl\ﬂ - -
Life insurance policy (note ¢) N FE PR B R B (B L) 19,481 18,786
19,481 26,061
(@)  These listed equity securities were classified as financial (@) H R AS S NG R R 4% e Dt &
assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group T Wit £ 5 N o i 4% B s 4R
has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss R 5% 55 T IR R A o
through other comprehensive income. The fair values of TN FAE L AR &5 00 4 V& R o
Hong Kong listed equity securities are determined based AR > B T RE B %
on quoted market closing prices available on the Stock (NP EESIS Rl -]
Exchange at the end of the reporting period. i E o
Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(i)  Classification of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(©)

(Continued)
During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, there
were no transfers of fair value measurement between Level

1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

During the year, the Group disposed of all listed equity
securities at the consideration of HK$13,875,000, and a
gain from the disposal at amount of HK$6,600,000 was
recognised accordingly.

The unlisted equity securities was classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as the Group has
not elected to recognise the fair value gain or loss through
other comprehensive income. The fair value of the unlisted
equity security is determined based on a valuation under
the asset approach, of which the fair value is measured
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of
the unlisted equity security remains unchanged during the
year.

During the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, there
were no transfers of fair value measurement between Level

1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

The life insurance policy was mandatorily classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as the
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal
and interest. Under the life insurance policy (the “Policy”),
the beneficiary and policy holder is KTL Jewellery Trading
Limited and the total insured sum is US$6,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$50,375,000). The Group paid an upfront
premium for the Policy of US$2,325,000 (equivalent to
HK$18,020,000) and may surrender at any time by filing
a written request and receive cash based on the surrender
value of the Policy at the date of withdrawal, which is
calculated by the insurer. In the opinion of the directors,
the surrender value of the Policy provided by the insurance
company is the best approximation of its fair value, which
is categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

On 2 May 2025, the Board approved and submitted the
relevant form to HSBC Life (International) Limited (“HSBC
Life”) for the withdrawal.

Details please refer to note 33 to the financial statements.

B By A 5 e A W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#2025 3 31H IR

17. ¥ S ff 5t A R 45 0 & 3l E ()

() A RAEE A S SR E
¢ 3 (40

(a)

(b)

(o)

(#7)

B 20254 K 20244F3 H31 0 1k
AERE B L AR R E T
2 (W] I R N A Bl
HAE =4 o

RN AR T AT LTI
w5 % U ME 513,875,000 4% TG
S AR R fE 5B B IR 256,600,000
WG ©

Fh 774 4 B0 0 S 98 4 0 f 2
T 1 3 A 4 1 3 A
IR 3 b i U HE 4 B
2 0 A SR 4 L 67 -
I I 1l HE A8 2506 25 A0 (80 B
A AR T B SEe A
S 24 e 08 0 48 = 49 it
CRE R W3 A TN
o (840 5 5

B £ 20254F K 20244F3 A31 H 1k
AERE B — S ELEE AN AUE R
B [H] I 0 B 5 g S A o
WA = o

R A KB &Rl Esin b X
fHA G A E > H A 255G
R i D W R /N W | I WG =
T 1 A A E o MR BN GE R B AR
W] > 288 AN MR B
BEANB=MHEREZSHFRAF
H & ff #8 4 % %5 6,500,000 3% I
(KA ¥ 1% 50,375,000 6 7C) © A< 42 4]
2 % PR TR AT AR 2 2,325,000 % 0
(A 1% 18,020,000 #5 7T ) K& 7] BE
7 4l F A0 T T W R R R AR AR 5 Sl
R % 5% 08 B 1] H 30 A 3R AR
(g 7 fR N FTERD) Ui BB 4
HER B > PRBR A A E 0% R
RAREE B LA REME > WS
By N FUAE R 28 =4 -

R20254Es A2 H » # H et
L ot 42 T S N R AR B (B
AR F(THE Y A 152/ 3
FH o

1R 2 R B R M RE 33

IRl A R 2 ]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£56 BS R E  GE

For the year ended 31 March 2025

B 20254F3H 31H IR B

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17.  $& 2 el st A\ 18 25 0 4 B & 2 (4

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(ii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

During the year, the following losses were recognised in profit or

loss:

Gi) 7 R A e A Y &
SEA - R B e R AR A P R

2025

20254F

HK$’000

T# T

Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value e oy FUAE FF AR 25 A9 4 &
through profit or loss 73 fe B G 18
— Hong Kong listed equity securities — T s b R = (124)
- (124)
18. £ H

18. INVENTORIES

Raw materials

Finished goods

2025
2025 4F

HK$°000
Tt

JER R 1,876
R 10,558

3,742
9,215

12,434

12,957

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

19. B 5 MWk IH

2025
2025 4F

HK$°000
T

& by ME SR IH 10,835
W SRR _

11,030

10,835

11,030

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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20.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B By W 5 e A M

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 202543 31H IR

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers. Before accepting any new customer, the Group
will apply an internal credit assessment policy to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and define credit limits for each customer. The
credit period is generally for a period of 120 days for major customers.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade
receivables as of 31 March 2025 were non-interest-bearing.

The gross trade receivables at 31 March 2025, based on the invoice date,
are all aged within 1 month.

The Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the assets. The expected credit losses as at 31 March 2025
and 2024 were considered to be minimal.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

19. 5 M Wosk IH (40)

AEMBEEFNE K FEELFEE
RPN o REBERTAIRE S 20> A%
B 5t B A A R A5 B ST AN R DL SR AL TR K
FMEEHEZNHESET NG EHEE -
FEEF WG — M 5120 H - i 4 i
H e A PR O WA ET o #K #2025 43 H 31
H o> 825 R IE A AL -

202543 H31H - ISR HMEINNE S
JEE K T AR AR S Y B — A A e

A A T T s DS A Y B 5 o R VE FF Y
b ik > AR 2 B Y2 R R L R
TE A7 &1 0 5 15 - 72025 4F K 20244F3 H 31
H 75 SR iR B o R -

20. TEATEKIE - 4 M b E WKk H

2025
20254F
HK$’000
T #& o
Deposits e & 99 240
Prepayments TE AT K IH 664 802
Other receivables At R i 5k TH 2,703 4,730
3,466 5,772
Impairment allowance (8 A (2,542) (2,542)
924 3,230
Portion classified as non-current assets O33R I A E R (130) (735)
Current portion it 3 B 43 794 2,495

Note 32 sets out information about the impairment of financial assets
and the Group's exposure to credit risk.

WA 329 51 45 A (L T R B EORE > DA R
A 42 1 1) £ B g o

IRl A R 2 ]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 7 A 95 e A B

For the year ended 31 March 2025

156

B 20254F3H 31H IR B
21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 21. Bl& R8T & B
2025
2025 4F
HK$°000
Tt
Cash and bank balances 4 KSR AT &5 i 36,280 36,394
Denominated in: Ty B
HKS$ T 29,139 33,639
Renminbi (“‘RMB”) PN (DN 6,002 1,510
Us$ BV 1,139 1,245
36,280 36,394

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn the respective interest. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

22, 22,

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

SRAT &5 R 4B 1R AT A ORS00 3 R
FHE - EMEMAA RN AERN T - E=
8 > 45T A 42 i BN 34 T ORI E I
Sl Et B o BRAT A5 B A O AT U 8 3 R Bk
FL{E B R 8RAT

N B WA HE Bk S0 fe R A B W o SR
AR e O O M R B A 1) B (K B -
HEE % ASF A7 R0 R ) - A 4 [ A 3 O A 4% e
K& A1 BE SE B 19 SRAT M N R S R At
o

B 5y B It JE £ 3% 0 K% R Gt £

2025

20254F

HK$’000

T#
Trade payables B 5y REA = 11

Other payables and accruals: At AT T R R R

Salaries and bonus payables JREAS 38 <65 B AE AL 59 59
Auditor’s remuneration A B P < 1,082 1,599
Others FHoAh 5,495 5,814
6,636 7,483
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 o 5 R W R ._
For the year ended 31 March 2025 A
202543 31H IL4FBE
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22, B 5y B 3L Aty E £°F 5k 0 KO w8 R (0
(Continued)
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting AR MR AR D0 5 A K
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: TE W) AR T an
2025
20254
HK$’000
T#u
Within 1 month &R = -
1 to 2 months —EWE A = -
2 to 3 months mME=MH = -
Over 3 months A = H = 11
- 11
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and the credit period of B EAT A T AR B S A
purchases ranges from 30 to 180 days. Other payables are non-interest- T30 H & 180 H o HoAth fE A} 3k H T3 A 51 E A
bearing and have an average credit term of 1 to 3 months. The Group has TR AE AR IR 251 &30 o A 4E [ C B i
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables 5 R A HR R > L E £ 4 B AR R E A AE
are paid within the credit time frame. E AT o
SHARE CAPITAL 23. A
2025
20254
HK$’000
T# %
Authorised: BE
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares with par value of 2,000,000,000 B 45 JB¢ 1 (£ 0.005 5 7T
HK$0.005 each 4 L 38 i 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: CLEEAT AR -
172,700,000 ordinary shares with par value of 172,700,000 /1 % 1 T8 {EL 0.005 #5 7T
HK$0.005 each (At 31 March 2024: 172,600,000 [ 3 78 JiE (% 20244F3 H 31 H -
shares) 172,600,000 /%) 863 863

IRl A R 2 ]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B By A 5 e e W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#2025 3 31H IE4FE

158

24,

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par value of
the shares of the Company and proceeds received from the issuance of
the shares of the Company. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is distributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company would be in a position to pay off its debt as they fall due in

the ordinary course of business.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the relevant law and regulations in the PRC, each of
the Company’s subsidiaries that was registered in the PRC is required to
appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit after tax (after offsetting
any prior years’ losses), determined in accordance with the PRC
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, to the statutory reserve until
the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s registered
capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses
or to increase capital, provided the remaining balance of the statutory
reserve is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose from the reorganisation for
the purpose of the Listing of the Group and acquisition of additional
interests in a subsidiary.

Capital surplus reserve

On 28 July 2014, a balance due to the immediate holding company of
the Company amounting to HK$105,366,000 was capitalised as equity
of the Group.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
2025 Annual Report
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B By A 5 e A W
For the year ended 31 March 2025
202543 31H 1L

SHARE SCHEME 25. J o st
On 14 September 2023, the Company passed a resolution in a #2023 F9H14H > AR ER R K & FiE
shareholders’ meeting for the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2023 R BRI R OHE S B (2023 48 1% M wH
Share Scheme”) for the purpose of providing the Company with a flexible B ) B AE B A A F AR A E 7 2w A 4R
means of giving incentives to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating [ 38 3 )0 (R B4R I Omh - 3% - R - A A
and/or providing benefits to the directors and employees of the Group B/ wAg A > LA B A AR 2N B g ] iR
and for such other purposes as the board of directors of the Company may WAt i HoAth B Y - RZEF BN S B 2 B
approve from time to time. Eligible participants of the scheme include CIEARLEHE RS -
the directors and employees of the Group.
(@)  Grant of share options () 5% H Vi g B
On 28 March 2024, the Company granted share options to R 20244F3 H 28 H » A A ) A 4 8] 2%
certain directors and employees of the Group to subscribe for, T3 F KR BB R DR A
in aggregate, up to 2,550,000 ordinary shares of the Company, I % £ 2,550,000 & A 2> v i M
subject to acceptance of the grantees under the 2023 Share AR R 352023 4 I 03 51 &) 7 LA
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$1.17 per share. The price of e AT B 79T o AR A H]
the Company’s shares at the date of grant was HK1.17 per share. JBE 03 A 45 1 HOHA Y B AR S B R 17 s
For detailed information, please refer to the announcement of the JG ° wEIE FE 2 B A A H 8 5 202443
Company dated 28 March 2024. H2s8 H Ao
The fair value of the equity-settled share options granted during AN PR DARE B &5 B 00 I I RE R 12
the year was estimated by Access Partner Professional Services HOH R 2 sofd i or 3265 B RN
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer, as at the fifi B e A SR 2E R B BR A AR A A
date of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the 2R R A o B R T R A 0 R RE Y
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. A ik B W A o
There are no cash settlement alternatives. The Group accounts for WA B 4 55 AT R o AR E A
the scheme as an equity-settled plan. ik B RR Z A HE 55 45 S EH ) -
The following table lists the inputs to the model used in RSN A R 2 20243 H 31 H
determining the fair value of the share options granted during the 1F A BE BT T TR HE 0 4 o A 1 T
year ended 31 March 2024: LN 6
Assumptions Inputs
1B % LN 8
Dividend yield (%) B % (%) 0%
Volatility (%) (Note) W (92) (B %) 75.85%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4o J g ) 2R (95) 3.49%
Exercise multiple A7 A% B 2.2-2.8
Forfeiture rate Wl R 13%-39%
Exercise price (HK$ per share) A7 A8 (15 1 o) 1.17

Note: Volatility is determined by reference to the historical share prices

of the Company before the date of grant.

BFGE R 2 B AT AR 2 T JE
e A8 18 AE o

IRl A R 2 ]
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 2025437 31H 1L
25. SHARE SCHEME (Continued) 25, JB it B (a)
(@  Grant of share options (Continued) (a)  T5% I 8 I HE (#0)
The following share options were outstanding under the 2023 AE N 2023 4F By w5 B IE N B R AT
Share Scheme during the year: 1R RE In T

Asat 1 April 2023 R20234FE4 11 H - -
Granted during the year R 1.17 2,550,000
As at 31 March 2024, 1 April 2024 and R20244F3 H31 H ~ 2024 4F

31 March 2025 411 H F202543 31 H 1.17 2,550,000
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options AR AR AR AT A R RE A AT (8
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: & AT W T -

2,550,000 1.17 28 March 2025-27 March 2034
202543 A28 H £20344F3 A27 H

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. SHARE SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

Grant of share awards

On 28 March 2024, the Company granted share awards to an
executive director of the Group to subscribe for, in aggregate, up
to 100,000 ordinary shares of the Company, subject to acceptance
of the grantees under the 2023 Share Scheme at an exercise price
of HK$1.17 per share. The price of the Company’s shares at the
date of grant was HK1.17 per share. For detailed information,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 March
2024.

The fair value of share awards as at the date of grant was HK$1.17
per share, which was estimated by adjusting the closing share
price at the grant date by the present value of expected dividend
payments during the vesting period.

The fair value of the share options and share awards granted under
2023 Share Scheme was HK$1,336,000 of which the Group recognised
employee share-based compensation benefits of HK$1,327,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2025 (2024: HK$9,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 2,550,000 shares

and 100,000 shares outstanding in regards to share options and share

awards, respectively, under the 2023 Share Scheme. If the outstanding

shares were exercised and awarded in full, an additional 2,650,000

ordinary shares of the Company would be issued, resulting in additional

share capital of approximately HK$2,984,000 (before issue expenses).

B By A 5 e A W

For the year ended 31 March 2025

#E20254F3H 31 H IL4F B
25.  JE O & 30 ()
(b) % it 1 3% 8

202443 H 28 H > A4y A 1) A 4E ] —
BT ERERZ B U S
I 4 £ 100,000 B A< 2 & 540 1 HEA
T AR A% R 38 2023 4F B 4y w181 T DL
W AT AE B 17 0 - AN A
By A 4% 1 B3 0 A A% B B L7
TG o wE I EE S B AR A W H W A 202443
H 28 H i A Afii

e 53 2 Iy 7S % i1 A o Fo e A e
V17 T > LY I8 i 1 B 0 A L A
A Y B (R A R A e I A i
T A 58

AR 35 2023 4F B 4y 51 3 BT B2 o R RE R M
1y 5% Jih 19 2 fo M8 51,336,000 0 > HoA A
A5 R 8 22025 4F3 H 31 H IR AF B #E 5R0 g
B0 il 5 A8 F) 51,327,000 % T (2024 4F ¢
9,000%5 JC) °

AR WA R - AR N AR 8 2023 4F 4y B g8
T3 7E A B B I R R % 3 5% ) e ¥ I 1 B 10y
£ H 4 Bl £ 2,550,000 B 5 100,000 B © i 5% 17
TE SN 03 8 R BT A% T > AN mIS R AN
472,650,000 B 48 M > LB AR R A AR
#)2,984,000 5 7T (411 % #5817 B S A1) o

IRl A R 2 ]
SRTHARRRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 20253 31H 1L
26. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 26. 3 %E P 15 Bt
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are as follows: AP P I AIE ol JE B A Y S T

Ac 1 April 2023, 31 March 2024, 202344 H 1 H ~ 20244F
1 April 2024 and 31 March 2025 3H31H - 20244471 H &

20254331 H (199) 93 (106)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward [R] &% we o TE e 48, T Al R A R 4E BT AR B B E -
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the 8 R 7 7 8 A AR JRE SR B s B B R B R k1
future taxable profits is probable. The expiry dates of these tax losses HAFEF B IE DL T MERE - 2 BLTE B M
are subject to the tax rulings of the respective jurisdictions, which are S H & B A B ES #
five years in Chinese Mainland and available indefinitely for offsetting AR Ok e B B A MR A AR M Ak AT R
against future taxable profits in Hong Kong. 1) 15 B4 A 2l JHE BB 5 R o
As at 31 March 2025, the Group has unrecognised tax losses for R 20254E3 A 31 H > A% 48 B ik 4K 8 o 2K I
offsetting against future taxable profits of HK$60,100,000 (2024: BB R R A R T BR BL T 5 48 60,100,000
HK$57,788,000), which were contributed by the Hong Kong s TT (2024 4+ 57,788,000 4% JT) M1 75 HE B 8§ 2
subsidiaries and can be carried forward indefinitely, and of HK$592,000 ] 5] Bl Ay 4 FR O AR DL 592,000 #E TT
(2024: HK$639,000) that arose in Chinese Mainland and will expire in (2024 % : 639,000 7T) it A BE K B & A 30 i
one to five years. A & AL N JE e

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fok 5 S 5 o W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 202543 31H IR

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(@ Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$1,449,000 (2024: HK$778,000)
in respect of lease arrangements for one leased office.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

27.

B Bl & R AW R

@

(b)

ERFEBHERS

R AEE-MEERAE M
TPk, IER S AR EFE NS
MR B A 51,449,000 TT (2024 4F ¢
778,000 #5 JC) ©

il G B A AR Y B )

At 1 April 2023 2023447 1H 1,278
Additions . 778
Lease termination #ARE (438)
Lease payment FH & AT 3K (772)
Accretion of interest recognised during the year A 7 HfE R RS 57
At 31 March 2024 and 1 April 2024 202443 H 31 H }2024%F4H 1 H 903
Additions WE 1,449
Lease payment LiER=E R (814)
Accretion of interest recognised during the year AF Tl 3R R B B 58
At 31 March 2025 20254331 H 1,596

(¢ Acquisition of non-controlling interests

On 19 July 2024, the Company acquired a 45% interest in Yuan
Chuan Technology Limited from a non-controlling shareholder for
a consideration of HK$207,000 and by offsetting receivables from
the non-controlling shareholder amounting to HK$1,800,000.

(c)

W N 452 Je i 2

R20244E7H19H > AR B — & 9k
2 O B Sl B A T N B A PR A R 2
459 ME 25 > A% 18 £ 207,000 7T K 4K T
JRE Wi I 2 B I B K T 1,800,000 5 TG ©

IRl A R 2 ]
CEROHEAERE 103
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28. COMMITMENTS 28.

At 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group had no capital commitments.

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29.

(i) The Group had no other material transactions with related parties
during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

(i)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

7R ¥

20254 K 202443 H31 H > A 4E [ A € &
A TR o

B W5 5 22 5%

() M FE2025%F K2024F3 H31 H ILEFE
AL EE W B E ALY -

Gi) A< 5 I A R AR R T

2025

20254F

HK$’000

Tt
Short-term employee benefits R R B g A 6,073 6,609
Share-based compensation benefits J A7 Al 4 A A 117 9
Pension scheme contributions AR T B AR K 22 36
6,212 6,654

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2025

B E 202543 31H L4 Z

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30, HEN B 50 @k TR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments R R A A R AR E
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Financial assets 4 &
2025
20254F
HK$°000
T# T
Financial assets at amortised cost: it 1 AR 37 AR 11 4 RlE E
Trade receivables 5 e WK IE 10,835 11,030
Financial assets included in prepayments, FEATEAT FOE T E K
deposits and other receivables At R i 5k T A 4 A 924 2,428
Cash and bank balances B4 B R AT &G R 36,280 36,394
48,039 49,852
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss F2 05 FUAERE AR £ 1 4 G 19,481 26,061
67,520 75,913
Financial liabilities A
2025
20254F
HK$°000
T ¥
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: e e B BAS 5 R Y < A A
Trade payables B 5y AT 3 - 11
Financial liabilities included in other payables i A At R A K TE B 4 £ R 1,534 2,471
1,534 2,482
Wk R A PR A B

TEROHEAERE 10
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202543 31H ILAFEE
31. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 31, <il TH A Al &2 fed g 8%
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial assets at AR B H S S AE FE IR A 00 4 B A YRR
fair value through profit or loss are as follows: A XA AREHINNT
Carrying amount Fair value
Financial assets 4 il & W T A 2 fe i
2025 2025
2025 4 2025 4
HK$°000 HK$’000
T ¥t T#T
Hong Kong listed equity securities F s bl A AR 5 = 7,275 - 7,275
An unlisted equity security FE LT R R - - - -
Life insurance policy N TR R B R B 19,481 18,786 19,481 18,786
19,481 26,061 19,481 26,061
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank balances, EHE DAL A R RATAS 6 - © 5 K
trade receivables, financial assets included in other receivables, trade T GFAHMBIREN SMEE 98
payables and financial liabilities included in other payables approximate A FRIE Rt A H At B AT OE R A R A E R
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of NAEHEIREEME > EEHRESE TER
these instruments. PSR- NN B

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2025
B E 202543 31H L4 Z

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value:

ik T 2 SU Al B 2 fo R A% (80

o FudH G %

TRANAEBRE N RHEFERSHM TR

9 2 o (i

As at 31 March 2025 202543 A31 H
Hong Kong listed equity securities & v b 11 JIE HE RS I3 = - - -
An unlisted equity security I B IR RERE 2 = - - -
Life insurance policy NFRBG R - - 19,481 19,481
= - 19,481 19,481

As at 31 March 2024 R202443 31 H
Hong Kong listed equity securities & w5 b 117 A 35 25 7,275 - - 7,275
Life insurance policy N FE AR B - - 18,786 18,786
7,275 - 18,786 26,061

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2025 and 2024.

The movements in fair value measurement within Level 3 during the
years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 are as disclosed in note 17.

During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for financial instruments.

A4 F R 2025 4F }2 2024 4E3 A 31 B I M8 AT fo]

ERREFEZEMAR-

B A 2025 4F K 2024 F3 H31H ILFEE > A R
w5 = SR 58 ) 7E Bf 5E 17 P A ER -

22025 4F K 202443 H 31 H 1k 4 B > 5k 4
AT E S R A REEIEZ
[i] Sl 40 RS > S R A B B AR e

IRl A R 2 ]
TROHEAERE 107
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32.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and short
term bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
other receivables and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and

trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group's exposure to market risk (including foreign currency risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk arises in the normal course of its business.
These risks are managed by the Group’s financial management policies
and practices described below:

As of 31 March 2025 and 2024, the Group had no short-term
borrowings, so there is no interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the
units’ functional currencies. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the level of foreign currency balances. The Group
currently has not entered into any foreign currency forward contracts to
hedge against foreign currency risk. Management will consider hedging
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
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FEARAAEBEEEEED - ALEA
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32.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, i.e., currencies other than
the functional currency of the respective group entities, which are mainly
trade receivables, other receivables, bank balances and trade and other
payables, at the end of the reporting period are approximately as follows:

B By A 5 e A W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#2025 3 31H IR

32. B LB A B H B K BOR (80

B e R B (40)

A SR R R IR LA AR TR B RO O e
MWLM R EN R EE R RTAMR
(20 5 o BECRIR ~ At 18 Wi s I ~ 4R
A7 &5 B DA R B T Al B S R IR ) I T (L
WA T

Assets Liabilities
& =R

2025 2024 2025 2024
2025 4F 2024 4F 2025 4F 2024 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T 7t T# T Tt T T
Us$ E 1,139 1,245 291 291
RMB AR ¥ = - = -

Since HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the HK$/US$ exchange rate.

The Group’s loss before tax has no significant exposure to foreign
currency risk on the reasonably possible change in the RMB exchange

rate.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk primarily in relation to its cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables as well as other receivables. The
carrying amounts of each class of the above financial assets represent the

Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. All cash and cash equivalents
were placed with state-owned banks and financial institutions in the
PRC and reputable international banks and financial institutions in
Hong Kong. The Group has policies in place to ensure that revenues
under credit terms are made to counterparties with an appropriate credit
history and management performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
counterparties. In addition, the Group has policies in place to ensure
that settlement of trade receivables is followed up on a timely basis. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

A s DT B9 ST B - A AR T s DT 5 %
TG A HE M A AT ] RS B

A 4L 1 2 R B I e 4R 2 PN R RE R 2
B A] e S B i 1 R 2O AN R R B o

5 £ B B

AR E R B KBS EY - "
Ty IR W TR e At R s JH A B ) A B L
B o I 4% 99 e A T S ) IR TRT L 98 AS 4 [ B
T I B < A B Y e K A R -

Joe\ B B

e B B 1% G TR VE S B o T A Bl B
& HE Y A B AR BB B A BT BB
R LA T 7 7 5 R R A Y IR PR AR AT T &
PR o AR SR T T M O - A DR Ui B R RS
A5 W BB B A TR Bk 2 B B T
3 A BT 1R A B A o B T AT AR AT
fili o BEAb A SR B O RO O B DR B IR R
B oy B SR TELRR) 465 0 o AR 4 TSI R T R 4R
HfE B R

IRl A R 2 ]
SRTHARRRE

169



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 W 5 R M Rk

For the year ended 31 March 2025

170

#E 20253 31H 1L
32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. BB A KA PR H B K BUR (80)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) e BB (41)
Impairment of financial assets 4 B ek A
The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to HKFRS 9’s A B B A W R A G R E ST R S BT
expected credit loss model: 5 ) 55 o R 0 FE A (S S AL
. trade receivables for sales of goods, and . SHEE N S RE I EKIAE 5 K
. other financial assets at amortised cost. . T B A R 0 A 4 i E o
While cash and cash equivalents were also subject to the impairment i 8 Bl 4 I B 4 55 8 ) O 8 2 Y A T B
requirements of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified. A4 1 JI 25 o 5% Y (B MR S > (SR R ik AT
(ORCHIY E
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to 2R BN B R A A L A BOK M AE B
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on e R A5 B B BT o % R A
past due information unless other information is available without undue W R > BRI A Rl AT LA R AN AR
cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 March. The W TR U E3I A3 0B
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. R BEMSHESMEENIR
[EEIER
As at 31 March 2025 720254331 H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A Y
fr £ i 4 9 78 £ B s AR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BB BB BB Wi 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T# 0 T#% T#u T# 50 T#u
Trade receivables* B W K T - = = 10,835 10,835
Financial assets included FEATE AT FOH
in prepayments, deposits P 4 B HoAth R Wi
and other receivables AN & &
— Normal** — 1EH 924 - - - 924
— Doubtful#* — A B - - 2,542 - 2,542
Cash and bank balances B B ORAT &5 B8R 36,280 - - - 36,280
37,204 - 2,542 10,835 50,581

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
2025 Annual Report



32.

fok 5 S 5 o W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
B E 202543 31H L4 Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

As at 31 March 2024

Yt 85 B\ B TR B BB ()

i % )L Bt (40)
4 il ¥ D0 (A1)

202443 H 31 H

Trade receivables* B 5 IR MUK I - - - 11,030 11,030
Financial assets included FHATE AT O
in prepayments, deposits e 4 B HAh R i
and other receivables KA I 2 Rl &
— Notmal*# — AE e 3,230 - - - 3,230
— Doubtful##* — 7 B e - - 2,542 - 2,542
Cash and bank balances Bl 4 B ARAT &5 B 36,394 - - - 36,394
39,624 - 2,542 11,030 53,196
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach * T A 42 T RE R AL Oy TR AT WUE Y B 5

for impairment, information is disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Hk The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the

credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

##%  The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments. As at 31 March 2025, a receivable with a
gross amount of HK$2,542,000 (2024: HK$2,542,000) has been fully
provided as the Group’s management does not have reasonable expectation

of recovering the contractual cash flows.
Liquidity risk
The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and credit lines to meet
its liquidity requirements. The Group finances its working capital

requirements through a combination of funds generated from operations
and leases.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period based
on contractual undiscounted payments including interest payments
computed using contractual rates.

W HE T R 0 A BB ORL I A B RS R 3
FE198 5% -

R TR AT BRI i G B A E R T Y
il Sl S A > L S 0 AT R 3R
% B ALVEE E WA TR DA I 5 AT B
BEEH - WA RE R AER] -5
S > A A R R OB A (A7 e -

wer B SR [ A 4 R R A BN £ AR R B 1Y
A EE T WA T T B A R R B A 5 R
% LR MR E - R2025%3731H -
A AR 42 B IR NI 0 A 3 FE 0 i e A A B
SR WA £ 2,542,000 TG (20244F
2,542,000 % JC) 149 JE iz 35 T8 2 R T 4 R 4 o

B & & B

2% S B 7 7 4R T A B B 15
LW AU ) e 9 o o A% S A o 2
e 0 VA SRR U A LA Y 4 R
SRR -

N M AL A G A i R Y A R G
HUAT 3K (CRLAE B & %0 F 5 51 50 R K
TH) 19 JF A7 A 4 B RS UL -

IRl A R 2 ]
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 32. BB A KA PR H B K BUR (80)

172

AND POLICIES (Continued)

As at 31 March 2025 202543 H31H

Trade and other payables B 5 B HoAth JE AT 3 IR 1,534 - - 1,534 1,534

Lease liabilities IR 802 891 - 1,693 1,596
2,336 891 = 3,227 3,130

As at 31 March 2024 202443 H31 H

Trade and other payables B 5 B oAb e AT #IE 2,482 - - 2,482 2,482

Lease liabilities RS 594 349 - 943 903
3,076 349 - 3,425 3,385

Capital management

The Group’s objectives for managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or sell assets to reduce debt.
No changes in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
were made during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, management considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of management, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of the debt.

The Group monitors capital using, inter alias, a gearing ratio which is
net debt divided by total equity plus net debt. As at 31 March 2025 and
31 March 2024, the Group had a net cash position.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Withdrawal of Life Insurance Policy

On 2 May 2025 (after trading hours), the Board approved and submitted
the relevant form to HSBC Life (International) Limited (“HSBC Life”)
for the withdrawal of life insurance policy by KTL Jewellery Trading
Limited ("KTL"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as the policy holder and beneficiary of a life insurance policy entered into
by KTL with HSBC Life on 26 June 2015 (the “Life Insurance Policy”),
at the surrender value (the “Withdrawal”).

Information about the Life Insurance Policy

The Life Insurance Policy is to insure for Mr. Kei York Pang Victor, who
was a controlling shareholder, an executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company. The current insured person is Mr. Tao Hongbo,
the chief operation officer of the Company who is responsible for daily
operation and strategy of the Company.

Financial Effects of the Withdrawal

Based on the surrender value of the Life Insurance Policy as at 2 May
2025 amounting to an aggregate of approximately US$2,480,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$19,344,000) and the single premium
paid of the Life Insurance Policy, the value of Life Insurance Policy
was already breakeven. As the Withdrawal will take effect on a date to
be mutually agreed between HSBC Life and KTL, after all surrender
requirements are received in good order by the Company to HSBC Life,
the surrender value may vary upon the effective date of the Withdrawal.
The Company will ensure that the highest applicable percentage ratio
calculated pursuant to Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the
Withdrawal at the effective date will be less than 25% and will comply
with the relevant Listing Rules.

It is expected that the net proceeds from the Withdrawal will be used to
increase working capital and develop gold jewellery products.

Reasons for and Benefits of the Withdrawal

Taking into account that the Withdrawal is expected to be already
breakeven, after due and careful consideration by the Board, it is
considered that the Withdrawal will increase working capital and
provide fund available for use to develop gold jewellery products. In view
of the above, the Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) are of the view that the terms of the Withdrawal are fair and
reasonable, and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

For details of the Withdrawal, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 2 May 2025.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other significant event of the Group
after the Reporting Period.

33.

B By A 5 e A W

For the year ended 31 March 2025
#2025 3 31H IR

e 1 4% B

NS

202545 H2 H (38 S REBLAR) » 3 5 & it i
ARrAMEEEREAR - NKEES A
B A (T=A00) (FF B = A B A 2215 B
(B A B2 |l (TS N2 ) it 20154F6 A
26 HARFT I N R BR IR B ([ AR IR ) #5
N B2 55 N) HOR R EE IR F R E > I
Bt U i N S5 R S A B RS (TR L) o

A BN 7 DR B R

N R AR A O I R R - BT R R
AT B AR RO A T S A PR o BLRF 2 AR N A
N EER R HAERARXAHA
R RN AR

P2 Y S 0 5

FE iR 20254Es Ho B N 5 14 ¥ 4B R B8 [ &
I #92,480,000 2 JC (FH & i %9 19,344,000 5 IC)
FNEMRENE AT — R A5 NS
HREECESR T FEYRAEZEZE
AN A H A EGRERE > hikt iR
T 7 O M A 2 B =R RE T W E B9 H O AR
5k R R A (B B IR 3R IR 2 H B B o AR
O Al A RE R AR DR LT RSB 407 R EH A
B 2 O A R H O T ) H SRR
259 > 3 #3087 AR B LT R

TE 30 £ BRI A K IE RN T A v o
GRB R GIREEMN -

2 G B P R 4R

BB 4R IR U5 2 OB > B A
WA B IRBUE I &
A 2 1 T AF B R A PR A A o EER b
MR EE (SR MITER) A
3 WU R A1 B S A A AR A A KRR
19 2 ) 2 o

& WURE I 2 B AR N\ H O 52025 4F 5 1 2
H 2 2 ffii o

W b 45 5 A - A G2 I E L A R o AR
KFIH -

IRl A R 2 ]
SRTHARRRE

17

2

o]



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& BB e 3k W E
For the year ended 31 March 2025
#E 20253 31H 1L

34.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. A E] AR O

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

ALy R R AR BEOR B IR UL R R B OR

the end of the reporting year is as follows: ey
2025
20254
HK$’000
T# T
Non-current assets Ik B E
Property, plant and equipment Wk B KR 7 100
Investments in subsidiaries AN E v <y 107,412 105,406
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss F2 08 FUAERE KR £ 1 4 O = 7,275
Total non-current assets JE W B A AR 107,419 112,781
Current assets w8 &
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEAT I ~ i 4 R A IR o 3T 572 2,373
Due from subsidiaries JRE Wiz o JBg 2 ] K I 15,744 12,186
Cash and bank balances W4 KSR AT &% B 17,430 1,222
Total current assets ) A A AR 33,746 15,781
Current liabilities Wi B A
Due to subsidiaries JRE AT Bt} Jog 2 ] 0B 59,818 41,310
Other payables and accruals T Ath JRE A 3 TE % JRE F T2 1,115 1,788
Total current liabilities il B £ R AL AR 60,933 43,098
Net current liabilities i B £ (27,187) (27,317)
Total assets less current liabilities B RS AR W B R 80,232 85,464
Net assets AR 80,232 85,464
Equity BE #3
Issued capital OB T A 863 863
Reserves (note) feti i (B 5E) 79,369 84,601
Total equity HE 45 A0 80,232 85,464

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
2025 Annual Report



34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

35.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 B 3 M Rk

For the year ended 31 March 2025
B E 202543 31H L4 Z

COMPANY (Continued)

Note: A summary of the reserve movements of the Company is as follows:

34.

A% 2y v B B IR D AR ()

WFRE A 2% Al i S B MR 2 40 F

Asac 1 April 2023 2023%F4 H 1 H 122,787 1,940 105,366 (130,314) 99,779
Loss for the year and total N R R
comprehensive loss for the year A A 4 T R 18 AR - - - (15,187) (15,187)
Employee share-based compensation 1§ 5 i 73 4 & 18 F1
benefits - 9 - - 9
As at 31 March 2024 and 202443 H31 H &
1 April 2024 2024441 H 122,787 1,949 105,366 (145,501) 84,601
Loss for the year and total AN R &
comprehensive loss for the year A TR 4 T s 1R AR 4R - - - (6,559) (6,559)
Employee share-based compensation i H & {7 iy A8 A A
benefits - 1,327 - - 1,327
As at 31 March 2025 202543 7 31 H 122,787 3,276 105,366 (152,060) 79,369
APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 35. b AR A B R R
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2025.

W H B 202546 H 26 H L HE K 557 5 1) 4
A BB R -

IRl A R 2 ]
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

176

Wb W
FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL RESULTS EIE R 3
Year ended 31 March
B®E3H31H ILAEE
2025
2025 4%
HK$°000
Tt
Revenue W £ 185,477 226,754 185,472 135,513 162,644
Cost of sales B B AR (183,572) (223,734) (182,436) (133,102) (155,625)
Gross profit EBH 1,905 3,020 3,036 2,411 7,019
Other income HAb g A 1,109 686 1,041 1,678 713
Selling expenses 565 B S (1,546) (2,716) (2,061) (1,977) (4,380)
Administrative expenses 1T BB X (16,569) (18,182) (19,251) (20,187) (22,033)

(Impairment losses)/reversal of S RAE E (E R R) /
impairment losses on financial 9(E e TR ]

assets, net R = (651) (1,891) 925 1,341
Other gains and losses, net Hoph i 45 K 548 > T 6,749 77 (7,060) (61,123) (56,963)
Finance costs W A (58) (57) (72) (78) (356)
Share of loss of a joint venture JEAL & 8 2 7 e 45 - - - (3) (13)
Impairment loss on a joint venture = % NN RN E = = - - (88) —
Loss before tax B3 Bt i B 48 (8,410) (17,823) (26,258) (78,442) (74,672)
Income tax credit/(expense) Ji 15 B4 0, (B 37) (46) (64) 178 (1) (326)

Loss for the year attributable to £ 2 W] HE %5 5 5 A\ JE 4l
the equity holders of the parent 4 I 5 16 (8,456) (17,887) (26,080) (78,443) (74,998)

As at 31 March
#3H31H

2025
20254F

HK$°000
Tt

Total assets, total liabilities and B R AR R

total equity HE #5 48 81
Total assets & E A 82,458 92,190 110,656 136,645 228,506
Total liabilities =Rk 8,693 8,852 8,561 8,671 23,173
Total equity HE 5 485 73,765 83,338 102,095 127,974 205,333

Domaine Power Holdings Limited
2025 Annual Report
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